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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of

investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will

be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents
of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for

any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of WLS Holdings Limited (“Company” or “WLS”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and beliet: (1) the information contained
in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no other

matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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“CIRCLE AND SQUARE” CONCEPT

In this intensely competitive world, the winners are those who take the
initiative to build a solid foundation and dedicate efforts on self improvement

and enhance business efficiencies.

WLS Holdings Limited, with excellent business acumen, takes a proactive
stance on incorporating the “Circle and Square” concept into its corporate
mission. The underlying meaning of having a “Circle” encompassing a
square symbolises the importance of offering smooth services and flexibility
to external parties, and “Square”encompassed by a circle symbolises the
requirement of cautiousness and striving after perfection. That is why
WLS shall adhere unwaveringly to its principle of perpetual emphasis and

continuous improvement on “Safety, Quality and Efficiency”.

WLS practises and preaches the theory of “Circle and Square” by integrating
flexibility into every step of its operations as well as abiding by every legal

regulation and restriction.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

#HZ U H =1 H Ik B B 4 B Financial Year ended 30 April

- e it —FE—JUE T — )\ e
2020 2019 2018 2017
T 0 T ¥ T o0 THs 0
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1)
(Restated)
B Turnover 139,516 179,503 152,175 185,633
o 56 T Js 4H Loss before taxation (113,991)* (50,120)* (122,469) (9,434)
ES/NCIESEEDN Loss for the year
JHE {15 A 4F B 5 48 attributable to the owners
of the Company (103,134)* (46,604)* (109,788) (15,954)
R EE (HAl) Loss per share (HK cent)
— HEA o — basic and diluted (0.718)* (0.324)* (0.848) (0.125)

* From continuing operations

* EREEEE Eit

6 ERERERAT WLS Holdings Limited
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SEREPERRABR AR WLS Holdings Limited

I have pleasure to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2020
(“Year”).

During the Year, the construction industry in Hong Kong grew steadily
following the completion of several major infrastructure projects. Despite
fierce competition for construction contracts as well as ageing workforce
and continuous labour shortage, we had been able to maintain our leading
position in the industry. A total of 12 new projects were awarded during the
Year, of which the notable ones are the provision of scaffolding services at
Wetland Park in TSW TL 33 & 34, Choi Fook Estate Phase 3 & Sports Centre
in Kwun Tong and To Shek Street No. 609, which is worth a total contract
sum of approximately HK$122 million. Due to less new construction projects
being approved by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR?”) as its operation has been limited by various measures
for prevention of the spread of coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”), and
the slowing down in the progress of existing construction projects caused
by (i) delay in the delivery process of construction materials imported from
mainland China as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19 and enhanced border
control for prevention of disease; and (ii) less available workers in the market
as a result of travel restrictions, the total revenue from the scaffolding business

has suffered a decrease for the Year.

During the Year, in respect of the fitting out services, we won 6 projects,
with a total contract sum of approximately HK$15.2 million. These projects
included interior design works for the units of commercial and residential
buildings such as Lotus Villa House, No.33 Valais, No. M8-M9, C6&C7
Tso Wo Road in Sai Kung and Yan Oi Tong Chan Wong Suk Fong Memorial

Secondary School.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The turnover of scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for
construction and buildings work segment decreased by approximately 31.0%
for the Year.

Our money lending operations remained stable during the Year, contributing
approximately HK$44.8 million to our Group’s turnover, which is representing
an increase of approximately 11.0% as compared with the previous financial
year (“Last Year”). The profit margin of our money lending business was also
maintained at a relatively high level which has boosted the Group’s overall
gross profit margin to approximately 42.1%. Without question, this business

segment was one of the key profit drivers of the Group in the Year.

On 11 December 2019, the Company, as vendor, and an independent third
party (“Purchaser”), as purchaser, entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (“SPA”), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to dispose of
the entire share capital of Bright Advantage Limited (“Bright Advantage”)
and OX Financial Group Limited (“OX Financial Group”) (“Disposal”).
Bright Advantage and OX Financial Group respectively own the entire
issued share capital of OX Financial Securities Limited (“OX Securities”), a
company licensed to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”), and OX Financial Assets Management Limited (“OX
Assets Management”), a company licensed to conduct type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.
In view of unfavourable market sentiment, it is believed that our strategy of
broadening business portfolio through developing the business of securities
brokerage and margin financing operations would be even more challenging,
and adjusting the overall corporate strategy to concentrating on our principal
businesses through the Disposal would be more beneficial to the Group as a
whole. Pursuant to the SPA, completion of the Disposal is conditional upon,
among other matters, the approval of the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”) for the Purchaser (and his nominees (if any)) to become substantial
shareholder(s) of OX Financial Group and Bright Advantage under the SFO
having been obtained. As at the date of this annual report, such approval has
not been obtained. After the Disposal, the Group will cease its business in the

segment of securities brokerage and margin financing.

Our assets management business declined for the Year. This business segment
generated revenue of approximately HK$2.0 million, representing a significant
decrease of approximately 58.3% as compared with the Last Year due to the
trade war between China and the United States, the outbreak of COVID-19

and the tightening control of fund transfer from China to Hong Kong.

ZZZTFEFH  Annual Report 2020
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Looking ahead, the Group is prudently optimistic about its prospects for the
coming year, at the same time cautious of the economic uncertainties brought
by the outbreak of COVID-19 since the end of 2019. The COVID-19 pandemic
has created uncertainties to the global economy, which may affect the business
operations and financial conditions of the Group in the foreseeable future.
Nonetheless, we expect 2020 to be a busy time for the construction industry.
Unfortunately, it is foreseeable that there will continuously be a shortage of
about 10,000 to 15,000 skilled workers in the construction industry. To cope
with these challenges, we will continue to promote the use of the “Pik Lik”
brand scaffolding system to help improve overall efficiency while boosting the

revenue and market share of our scaffolding segment.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, we will review our business strategies
and plans from time to time and flexibly adjust to the conditions in times of

economic uncertainties.

Last but not least, to facilitate a better review of the Group’s performance
and in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, we have
re-presented the operations and reportable segments as (i) scaffolding, fitting
out and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work, (ii)
money lending business, (iii) securities investment business, and (iv) assets

management business.

In conclusion, on behalf of the board (“Board”) of the Directors, I wish to
thank our management team and all staff members for their dedication, hard
work and commitment to the prosperity of our Group. I also extend special
gratitude to our business partners and shareholders as well for their dedicated

support over the past year.

So Yu Shing

Chairman

27 July 2020
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OVERVIEW

During the year ended 30 April 2020 (“Year”), the Group continued to face
challenges in its overall group business operations and recorded a decrease in
the Group’s total revenue to approximately HK$139.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 22.3% as compared with the year ended 30 April
2019 (“Last Year”). Net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Year from continuing operations was approximately HK$103.1 million,
representing a significant increase of approximately 121.3% as compared with
Last Year.

To facilitate a better review of the Group’s performance and in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, the operations and reportable
segments for the Year were re-presented as (i) scaffolding, fitting out and other
auxiliary services for construction and buildings work, (ii) money lending
business, (iii) securities investment business, and (iv) assets management
business. During the Year, the Group also reclassified the operating results
of the segment of securities brokerage and margin financing as discontinued

operation in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The detailed business and financial review of each business segment (as re-

presented) is stated below.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Scaffolding, Fitting out and Other Auxiliary Services for
Construction and Buildings Work

The scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction and
buildings work was presented as a new operating segment and was the largest
business segment for the Year. This segment includes scaffolding services,
fitting out services and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings
work. For the Year, revenue from this segment was approximately HK$92.7
million, representing a significant decrease of approximately HK$41.6 million
as compared with revenue of Last Year, due to less new construction projects
being approved by the Government of the HKSAR as its operation has been
limited by various measures for prevention of the spread of COVID-19, and
the slowing down in the progress of existing construction projects caused
by (i) delay in the delivery process of construction materials imported from
mainland China as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19 and enhanced border
control for prevention of disease; and (ii) less available workers in the market

as a result of travel restrictions.

ZZZTFEFH  Annual Report 2020
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

Scaffolding Services

In recent years, a number of large-scale infrastructure projects have been
carried out by the HKSAR to boost the construction industry and well-being
of the society. For this purpose, a multi-pronged strategy has been adopted by
the government to maintain a steady and sustainable land supply with the aim

to meet the continuing housing needs.

On the other hand, in the past few years, the entire scaffolding industry
encountered the major difficulty of shortage in supply of skilled workers
and experienced personnel. Such shortage resulted in rising labour costs and
diminishing profit margins throughout the industry, which further intensified
competition within the scaffolding sector. However, it is worth mentioning
that the Group’s patented scaffolding system, which is known as “Pik-Lik”,
has played a crucial role in saving manpower and enhancing efficiency in the

industry.

Leveraging the widespread recognition of the impeccable quality of services
and the strong relationships nurtured with clientele, the Group receives
positive feedback and prominent business support and takes pride in being one
of the leading scaffolding service providers in Hong Kong. During the Year,
the Group provided scaffolding services to 49 ongoing projects, 19 of which

were completed on schedule and 12 new contracts were awarded.
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Project portfolio of scaffolding services (as of 30 April 2020)

Comprehensive Development of Wetland Park, TSW TL No.33

Comprehensive Development of Wetland Park, TSW TL No.34

Development of Kwai Chung 522 Grade A Industrial Building
Hotel Development of ALVA Hotel By Royal

Hotel Vic on the Harbour

Industrial Building of 212-214, Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan

Kai Tak Children’s Hospital

New Data Centre at TKO TL 122

Nos. 1-3 Residential Development of Phrase 1B, Sha Po North
Novum West Residential Building

Pak Tin Community Complex

Public Housing Development at Shek Kip Mei Estate Phases 3, 6 & 7
Public Housing Development of Choi Fook Estate Phase 3 & Sports
Centre in Kwun Tong

Refurbishment of Chelsea Heights Shopping Mall, Phase 2
Refurbishment of External Walls of Shun Tak Centre
Refurbishment of Gate Gourmet Catering Building
Refurbishment of Junior Police Officers Married Quarters at Fan
Garden, Fanling

Refurbishment of Parker House

Suspended scaffolding of Phase I Building of The Wings
Refurbishment of Sheung Shui Advanced Technology Centre
Refurbishment of Tai Po Mega Mall

Refurbishment of V Walk Shopping Mall

Refurbishment of Valid Industrial Centre, Kwai Chung
Refurbishment Sun Yuen Long Centre

Residential Building of TKO Site No. 65C2

Residential Development of Century Link

Residential Development of Eden Manor

Residential Development of Eight Regency

Residential Development of Kai Tak Site 6567

Residential Development of No. 10 Le Prestige Lohas Park
Residential Development of To Shek Street 609

Residential Development of Victoria Harbour

Shek O Staff Club

Shopping Mall and Residential Development of Harbour North
Shopping Mall and Residential Development of West Rail Long Ping
Station (South) in Yuen Long

West Rail Nam Cheong Station (T6-T8)

Yally Industrial Building
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

Fitting out Services

For the fitting out services, the Group mainly provided fitting out services
to commercial institutions and luxury residence end-users during the Year.
The Group has also extended its scope of services to include ceiling work
and to date, it has been receiving encouraging feedback from its clients.
The competition of fitting out services is keen. The Group will continue to

proactively acquire new contracts.
Other Auxiliary Services for Construction and Buildings Work

For other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work, the Group
mainly provided gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation
and maintenance services. The Group has been actively cultivating its
gondolas rental business over the past several years and has gained positive
‘worth-of-mouth’ in the market. This has enabled the Group to secure a stable

number of new contracts despite the competitive local market.
Money Lending Business

Under the economic impacts from the outbreak of COVID-19 since the end
of 2019, there is an increasing trend for more corporations and individuals to
obtain loans for financing to reduce the cash-flow pressure on them and lessen
such local economic impacts of the outbreak. With relatively attractive interest
returns on short-term and long-term loans during the Year, the Group recorded

an increase of the revenue in this segment during the Year.

Leveraging on the management’s extensive network, several short-term and
long-term loan agreements have been secured during the Year. The business
segment generated an increase of revenue to the Group and the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$44.8 million for the Year (Last Year:
approximately HK$40.4 million). The principal amount of the loans granted
ranged from HK$0.2 million to HK$25 million with interest rates ranging

from 7.5% to 18% per annum during the Year.
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Securities Investment Business

In order to capture possible returns from the financial market, the Group has
formed the investment committee in year 2015/2016 and continued investing
in Hong Kong-listed securities during the Year. Due diligence was conducted
on every contemplated investment and each investment was taken into serious
consideration to ensure quality risk control and maximise shareholders’
benefits.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$17.8 million (Last
Year: net loss of approximately HK$18.4 million) for its investment portfolio
for the Year, which was mainly due to the volatility of the stock market in
Hong Kong. The Group foresees that the global economy will continue to
be unstable in year 2020/2021 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
threat of trade war and the technology war between China and the US. The
investment committee will continue to monitor the Group’s investment

portfolio closely in order to maximum shareholders’ returns.

Assets Management Business

Following the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Blue Pool
Ventures Limited (“Blue Pool”), the holding company of Mass Fidelity
Asset Management Limited (“Mass Fidelity”), a licensed insurance broker
and registered MPF Corporate Intermediary in Hong Kong, the Group had
commenced the business of assets management in March 2018. For the Year,
the assets management business recorded a turnover of approximately HK$2.0
million (Last Year: HK$4.9 million) due to the trade war between China and
the United States, the outbreak of the COVID-19 and the tightening control of
fund transfer from China to Hong Kong.

Disposal of OX Securities and OX Assets Management

On 11 December 2019, the Company as vendor entered into the SPA in respect
of the Disposal with Mr. Tsang Pui Lan Patrick, an independent third party (i.e.
the Purchaser), as purchaser, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to (i) sell the entire issued share capital of Bright Advantage and OX
Financial Group, each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (ii)
assign the benefit of the loans owing by each of Bright Advantage and OX
Financial Group to the Company as at completion of the SPA, to the Purchaser

at a consideration as determined in accordance with the terms of the SPA.
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

Bright Advantage and OX Financial Group respectively own the entire issued
share capital of OX Securities, a company licensed to carry out type 1 (dealing
in securities) regulated activity under the SFO, and OX Assets Management, a
company licensed to conduct type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset

management) regulated activities under the SFO.

The completion of the Disposal is conditional upon completion of the
conditions precedent as stated in the SPA being satisfied (or being waived)
on or before the long stop date, which is the date falling on expiry of 12
calendar months after the date of the SPA, or such later date as the Purchaser
and the Company may agree in writing. The aforesaid conditions precedent
require, among other matters, the approval of the SFC for the Purchaser
(and his nominees (if any)) to become substantial shareholder(s) of OX
Financial Group and Bright Advantage under the SFO having been obtained.
As at the date of this report, such approval has not been obtained and the
Disposal has not yet been completed. Details of the Disposal are set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 11 December 2019.

After completion of the Disposal, each of Bright Advantage, OX Financial
Group, OX Securities and OX Assets Management will cease to be a
subsidiary of the Company and the Group will cease its business in the

segment of securities brokerage and margin financing.

The operating results of the segment of securities brokerage and margin
financing was reclassified as discontinued operation during the Year which
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
The corresponding assets and liabilities were reclassified as assets classified
as held for sale or liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale.
Details are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements in this

report.
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IMPACT CAUSED BY THE OUTBREAK OF
COVID-19

Our business operations and financial conditions are affected by the outbreak
of COVID-19 at the end of 2019 and early 2020. Below are the relevant
analyses for our two largest business segments — scaffolding, fitting out
and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work and money

lending:

Scaffolding, Fitting Out and Other Auxiliary Services for
Construction and Buildings Work:

In the first half of 2020, since the operation of the Government of HKSAR has
been limited by various measures for prevention of the spread of COVID-19,
the number of new construction projects and contracts approved by the
relevant government department has decreased. The delivery process of
construction materials imported from mainland China was also delayed by the
outbreak of COVID-19 and enhanced border control for prevention of disease.
In addition, less workers are available in the market due to travel restrictions,
which further slowed down the progress of existing construction projects.
Competition within the construction industry has become even more intense
during this period as there are less new projects in the market. Therefore,
the Group recorded a decrease in its revenue from this segment for the Year

compared to that of Last Year.
Money Lending:

Under the economic impacts of COVID-19, there is an increasing trend for
more corporations and individuals to obtain loans for financing to reduce
the cash-flow pressure on them and lessen such impacts. Hence, our money
lending business recorded a increase in loan portfolio during the Year. On
the other hand, due to difficulties in repayment by customers caused by
the economic impacts of COVID-19, there was a significant increase in the
recognition of expected credit losses on loan receivable for the Year. Despite
such difficulties, the Group will continue putting efforts in the collection
procedure of loans receivable. For details of our money lending business,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —

Business Review — Money Lending Business” in this report.
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Due to various factors including the continued trade war between the US and
China as well as prolonged protests and demonstrations in Hong Kong during
the second half of calendar year 2019, Hong Kong’s economy experienced
negative growth and the property market was adversely affected. As we
entered calendar year 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 together with the
challenges posed by the political unrest in Hong Kong in the past months
mean a double blow to the Hong Kong economy and further contribute to a

downward trend in the Hong Kong property market.

The impacts of COVID-19 have caused pressure worldwide and dampened
the development of various industries, with no exception for the scaffolding
industry. In the past decade, the scaffolding industry has become increasingly
competitive. On the one hand, the costs have become high together with
rising labour costs, but productivity has suffered decline. In the face of a
phenomenon of ageing workers, young generation unwilling to join the
industry due to hard labour work and higher requirement of technological
qualifications, which has affected recruitment of talents in the industry, and
with heavier government regulations, without favourable factors such as
labour imports, the carrying capacity of the industry may be challenged. These

reflect a lack of confidence in the prospect of the scaffolding industry.

On the other hand, in response to demand from market development, many
contractors have adopted the use of iron scaffolds instead of bamboo scaffolds
nowadays. The general higher durability of iron scaffolds and the possibility
of calculating load bearing capacity have shortened the time for training of
workers. Hence, bamboo scaffolds may be eliminated in Hong Kong in the
future. According to recent trend, modern iron scaffolds have been adopted
by the industry, especially for high-end shopping malls which are aware of
exterior appearance. Therefore, the future direction of the scaffolding business

will be led by the adoption of mixed scaffolds and iron scaffolds.

The Group has been actively seeking profitable projects over the past several
years in order to diversify its business portfolio and eventually mitigate risks

from the competitive construction market.
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After a few years of serious efforts to develop its money lending operations,
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited (“Gold Medal”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and a licensed money lender in Hong Kong under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
generated stable income for the Year. The Group aims at targeting listed
companies, medium to large-sized enterprises that can provide corporate
guarantees or pledged securities, which the Group has encountered difficulties
obtaining during the Year due to a worsening economic environment. However,
the Group was able to secure clients within our business network in order
to maintain a relatively low bad debt level. The current loan portfolio has
reached approximately HK$462.4 million and is expected to remain stable in
coming years. Despite difficulties in repayment by customers during the Year
and especially in the first half of 2020, the Group will continue putting efforts

in the collection procedure of loans receivable.

During the Year, Mass Fidelity, a licensed insurance broker and registered
MPF Corporate Intermediary in Hong Kong principally engaged in assets
management, has recorded a decrease in revenue, due to the trade war between
China and the United States, the outbreak of the COVID-19 and the tightening

control of fund transfer from China to Hong Kong.

Looking ahead to 2020, in view of present economic uncertainty and
difficulties, the Group is reviewing its existing assets structure and business
strategies and may make adjustment to our existing assets structure, with the
aim to consolidate our resources, so as to be flexibly prepared for uncertainties
in the future. Meanwhile, in order to enhance our competitiveness, the Group
will look for opportunities to revitalise the scaffolding business to keep
up with the recent development and trend in the industry, in particular the
declining use of bamboo scaffolds. At the same time, the Group will continue
focusing on those business segments that generate higher profit margins and
show ample growth potential such as money lending operations. The Group
will strictly adhere to its cost control policy, and swiftly adjust business
strategies of its scaffolding business in response to ever-changing market

dynamics in order to generate better financial returns for shareholders.

Finally, we will actively explore all suitable investment opportunities to
diversify the Group’s business horizons and will work hard to strengthen
overall business development. The Group’s business strategy is in line with
the general direction of the government’s overall strategic development plans
for property construction, infrastructure investment and financial market

development.
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$139.5
million (Last Year: approximately HK$179.5 million), representing a
significant decrease of approximately 22.3% as compared with that of Last
Year. The Company recorded a net loss attributable to its owners from
continuing operations of approximately HK$103.1 million for the Year (Last
Year: approximately HK$46.6 million). The significant increase in net loss
was mainly due to (i) the recognition of expected credit losses on the balances
under the contract assets, trade and loan receivables of approximately
HK$58.0 million; (ii) the impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill
and of intangible asset of approximately HK$35.0 million; and (iii) the
decrease of revenue for the provision of scaffolding, fitting out and other
auxiliary services for construction and buildings work of approximately
HK$41.6 million for the Year.

The decrease in turnover was mainly due to the decrease in income generated
from the scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction

and buildings work during the Year.

In the Year, as the overall financial market was getting worse due to the trade
war between China and the US and the COVID-19 pandemic, the expansion of
assets management business was not carried out as planned, the Directors have
consequently determined impairment of intangible assets directly related to

assets management business amounting to HK$34.6 million.

For the Year, gross profit of the Group slightly decreased by approximately
2.3% to approximately HK$58.8 million as compared with Last Year (Last
Year: approximately HK$60.2 million) and gross profit margin increased to
approximately 42.1% (Last Year: approximately 33.5%). Gross profit margin
of the Group increased mainly because a comparatively more sharing of the
Group’s revenue for the Year came from its money lending business, which

had a relatively high profit margin.

During the Year, the operating and administrative expenses increased
from approximately HK$41.0 million in the Last Year to approximately
HK$44.0 million due to the recognition of share-based payment expenses
of approximately HK$2.8 million. Finance costs slightly increased from
approximately HK$8.6 million in the Last Year to approximately HK$9.8
million. The Group continued to adopt its policy of vigilant cost control for
the ensuing periods. Funds generated from financing activities strengthened
the working capital of the Group in anticipation of further investment and

diversification opportunities in the future.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by banking facilities,
finance leases provided by banks, loan from a financial institution and

proceeds from issue of coupon bonds.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, current assets, net current assets and total assets were approximately
HK$537.6 million (30 April 2019: approximately HK$646.0 million),
approximately HK$333.4 million (30 April 2019: approximately HK$273.1
million), approximately HK$130.1 million (30 April 2019: approximately
HK$110.8 million) and approximately HK$732.1 million (30 April 2019:
approximately HK$798.3 million) respectively.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings and bank overdrafts were
approximately HK$45.1 million (30 April 2019: approximately HK$34.5
million) and approximately HK$19.4 million (30 April 2019: approximately
HK$19.8 million) respectively. As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s other
loan and other borrowings was HK$82.0 million (30 April 2019: HK$70.0
million). Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 May 2019, the Group
reclassified obligations under finance leases (30 April 2019: approximately
HK$2.0 million) to lease liabilities and amended the lease liabilities to
approximately HK$9.2 million (30 April 2019: nil). As at 30 April 2020, other
loan and other borrowings included (i) the 8% coupon bond of HK$54 million
issued by Gold Medal, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
on 12 September 2018, (ii) the 8.5% coupon bond of HK$20 million issued
by Gold Medal, on 28 October 2019; and (iii) other loan of HK$8 million

refinanced from a financial institution during the Year.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s bank balances and cash in general accounts
amounted to approximately HK$78.3 million (30 April 2019: approximately
HK$110.1 million). As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio (total debts
divided by equity attributable to the owners of the Company then multiplied
by 100%) was approximately 27.5% (30 April 2019: approximately 19.6%).
For calculating the gearing ratios, total debts of the Group included bank
borrowings and bank overdrafts, other loan and other borrowings, obligations

under finance leases and lease liabilities.
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As at 30 April 2020, most of the Group’s bank balances and cash, bank
borrowings and bank overdrafts, other loan and other borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. All the bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts bore interest at variable market rates ranging from 3.34% to 5.25%
per annum (2019: 2.83% to 5.38% per annum) and were repayable on demand
or within one year. Obligations under finance leases that were re-classified
as lease liabilities had an average lease term ranging from two to four years
(30 April 2019: three to four years) and all such leases had interest rates
fixed at the contract date and fixed repayment bases. The other borrowings
represented the coupon bond issued in 2018 bearing interest at 8% per annum
and the coupon bond issued in 2019 bearing interest at 8.5% per annum,
which will mature on the second and third anniversary date of the issue date,
respectively. Both of the coupon bonds were secured by the Company’s
corporate guarantee and the bondholder may request early redemption of the
bond after one year of the issuance date of the bond. Other loan represents a
1-year loan of HK$8,000,000 secured by the Company’s corporate guarantee
which fell due on 27 December 2019 and was extended for another one year
by a financial institution with 12% (30 April 2019: 9.5%) interest rate per

annum.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF INTANGIBLE
ASSET AS AT 30 APRIL 2020

The Directors performed impairment review of the carrying amounts
of cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of Blue Pool Ventures Limited and its
subsidiary Mass Fidelity (hereafter collectively referred as the “Blue Pool
Group”) as at 30 April 2020 according to HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” by
using the value in use method. The value in use method had been reviewed by

an independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

HKAS 36 defines impairment loss as the amount by which the carrying amount
of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount of
an asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. In determining the fair value of Blue Pool Group as at 30 April
2020, the Directors prepared and estimated the future cash flows expected to
arise from Blue Pool Group based on the financial budgets covering a 5-year
period (the “Cash Flow Forecast”) and the independent valuer used the Cash
Flow Forecast as the basis to arrive at the fair value of the Blue Pool Group by
using the income approach. The income approach used is consistent with the
requirement of HKAS 36 and HKFRS 13 “Fair value Measurement” and that
it is a commonly adopted practice of valuers when using income approach to

arrive at the fair value of a CGU.
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In preparing the Cash Flow Forecast as at 30 April 2020 (“2020 Cash Flow
Forecast”), the Directors anticipated certain income which was expected to be
received by Blue Pool Group from the Cash Flow Forecast as at 30 April 2019
(“2019 Cash Flow Forecast”) as no longer applicable due to the change in the
business environment and suspension of certain business cooperation during
the year ended 30 April 2020.

Based on the 2020 Cash Flow Forecast, the recoverable amounts of Blue Pool
Group was negative as at 30 April 2020. According to paragraph 104 of the
HKAS 36:—

“An impairment loss shall be recognised for a cash-generating unit (the
smallest group of cash-generating units to which goodwill or a corporate asset
has been allocated) if, and only if, the recoverable amount of the unit (group
of units) is less than the carrying amount of the unit (group of units). The
impairment loss shall be allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets
of the unit (group of units) in the following order: (a) first, to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (group
of units); and (b) then, to the other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata

on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (group of units).”

Therefore, the Directors have determined impairment of intangible assets
directly related to the CGU of Blue Pool Group amounting to HK$34,600,000.
No other write-down of the assets of assets management business was

considered necessary.

Revenue and other income from insurance brokerage and
advisory income for the 2020 Cash Flow Forecast

Based on the Directors’ estimation, the revenue of Blue Pool Group would be
mainly contributed by the commission income of Mass Fidelity and referral
fee from insurance brokerage (“Insurance Brokerage Fee”), and advisory
income (“advisory Income”) from a financial advisory company (“Financial
Advisory Company”). The Directors estimated that the outbreak of COVID-19
since the end of 2019 created uncertainty to the business environment and may

adversely affect the revenue of Blue Pool Group in the coming year.

Insurance Brokerage Fee covered the following areas of services including
introducing, advising to and arranging a contract of insurance to potential
customers and professional charges on insurance brokerage service, mainly
involved in arranging various types of contracts of insurance provided
by global insurance providers for customers. With reference to the high
uncertainty of business environment and the outbreak of COVID-19, the
Directors applied zero growth rate for the revenue from the insurance

brokerage business.
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For the advisory Income, Mass Fidelity acted as an agent to provide advisory
service on insurance products to the Financial Advisory Company’s customers.
The Financial Advisory Company is engaged in financial planning and wealth

management services.

Besides, Mass Fidelity also offered to provide administration and advisory
services (“Administration and Advisory Services”) to the Financial Advisory

Company which enable Mass Fidelity to receive a service fee.

A memorandum of understanding (“MOU”), which was entered into
between Mass Fidelity and the Financial Advisory Company for the service
fee disclosed above, has expired in July 2019 without further business

cooperation.

In preparing the 2019 Cash Flow Forecast, the Directors anticipated the expiry
of the MOU disclosed above because during the year 2019, the Financial
Advisory Company which focused on customers from China, suffered decline
in the first half of 2019, due to the launch and implementation of Common
Reporting System in the first half of 2019, the trade war between China and
the United States, and the tightening control of fund transfer from China
to Hong Kong. The number of customers referred to Mass Fidelity by the
Financial Advisory Company was less than expected by the Directors. In
addition, with the down-scale of the operation of the Financial Advisory
Company and foreseeable difficulty in execution, the Financial Advisory
Company turned down the offer of the Administration and Advisory Services

to be provided by Mass Fidelity.

Cost of income and administrative expenses for the 2020 Cash
Flow Forecast

Based on the assessment, the Directors estimated the impact of COVID-19
will seriously affect the performance of Blue Pool Group and concluded that
no growth rate will be adopted in the cost of income which is in line with the
management’s forecast on that no growth is expected from the revenue during
the forecast period, in light of the substantial composition of cost of income
by commission expenses incurred by staff and agents which are largely
correlated to sales performance. For the administrative expenses, the growth
rate was also adjusted from 3% to 2.3% by reference to over five years of the

general consumer price index (“CPI”) in Hong Kong.
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Terminated growth rate adopted for preparation of Cash Flow
Forecasts

In accordance with paragraph 33(c) of HKAS 36 which states that “in
measuring value in use an entity shall estimate cash flow projections beyond
the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating
the projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justitied.
This growth rate shall not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified”.
As stated above, the recoverable amount of Blue Pool Group of CGU was
negative as at 30 April 2020, no terminated growth rate was adopted beyond

the projection period.
Determination of discount rate

The valuer adopted weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”) as discount
rate when applying present value techniques. WACC is frequently used in
assessing the value of investments and applying as the discount rate for future

cash flows in order to derive a business’s net present value.

From the view of Directors, it was appropriate for the valuer to use WACC as
discount rate as it is a financial metric used to measure the cost of capital to a
firm. Directors assessed the information extracted by the valuer and concluded

that the discount rate used in 2020 Cash Flow Forecast was appropriate.

Further details of the impairment assessment of intangible assets are set out in

note 20 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
SHARE CAPITAL

The Company did not issue any shares or debentures during the Year. Gold
Medal, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued a 3-year
8.5% coupon bonds in the principal amount of HK$20 million on 28 October
2019.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year
(Last Year: nil).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments

The Group is currently organised into four operating segments — (i)
scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction and
buildings work; (ii) money lending business; (iii) securities investment

business and (iv) assets management business.
Geographical segments

Customers of all four segments of the Group are situated in Hong Kong.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Except the Disposal disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Disposal of OX
Securities and OX Assets Management” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section above, the Group did not have material acquisitions or

disposals of subsidiaries or associates during the Year.
INVESTMENTS

As at 30 April 2020, the equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$9.3 million, representing approximately 1.3% of the Group’s audited total
assets as at 30 April 2020 and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) of the Group amounted to approximately HK$22.7 million
representing approximately 3.1% of the Group’s total assets as at 30 April
2020.

These investments mainly include equity securities of 18 companies listed in
Hong Kong and 2 unlisted investment funds. None of these investments in the
portfolio at FVTOCI and FVTPL has a value of 5% or more of the Group’s
audited total assets as at 30 April 2020.
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The Directors expect that the stock market in Hong Kong remains to be
volatile in 2020 and 2021 which may affect the performance of the Group’s
securities investments. Looking forward, the Board believes that the
performance of the securities investments of the Group will be dependent on
the financial and operating performance of investee companies and market
sentiment which are affected by factors such as interest rate movements, the
threat of trade war between the US and China, the political unrest in Hong
Kong, the outbreak of COVID-19 and performance of the macro economy.
In order to mitigate the associated risk, the Group will continuously remain
cautious in the allocation of resources and the identification and capture of
appropriate securities investment opportunities. It will review its investment
strategy regularly and take appropriate actions whenever necessary in response

to changes in the market.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

On 25 February 2020, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (“Memorandum”) with Capital Digital Asset
Limited (“Proposed Vendor”) for the proposed acquisition of CSPay Limited
(“CS Pay”) from the Proposed Vendor. CS Pay is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and principally operates in the business of electronic payment
service provision through a third-party payment platform, which includes the
functions of e-wallet, trading platform and payment gateway in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), Hong Kong and Japan.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the negotiation has been slowed
down. The Memorandum may or may not lead to the entering into of the
formal agreement with the Proposed Vendor and the proposed acquisition
contemplated thereunder may or may not proceed. Further announcement will

be made by the Company as and when appropriate.

Save as the aforesaid and disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Outlook” above, the Group does not have any future plans for material

investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 April 2020, the Group has pledged the following assets as security

for the general banking facilities granted to the Group:

SECEE R ONA
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In addition, the Group’s lease liabilities of motor vehicles for the amount of

HK$1,971,000 are secured by the lessor’s charge over the right-of-use assets.
TREASURY POLICY

The Group consistently employs a prudent treasury policy during its
development and generally finances its operations and business development
with internally generated resources and equity and/or debt financing activities.
The Group also adopts flexible and prudent fiscal policies to effectively
manage the Group’s assets and liabilities and strengthen the Group’s financial

position.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging purpose
during the Year, and did not have any outstanding hedging instrument as at
30 April 2020. When appropriate, for example at times when interest rate
or exchange rate are uncertain or volatile, the Group will consider the use
of hedging instruments including interest rate swap and foreign currency
forward contract to manage the Group’s exposures to interest rate and foreign

exchange rate fluctuations.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
risks which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates. The Directors have established a policy to ensure that significant
risks which may adversely affect the Group are identified, reported, monitored,
and managed on a continuous basis. Details of the risk management and
control systems of the Group are set out in the paragraphs headed “Risk
Management and Internal Control” in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section of this report. The Group has identified the following risks that
are considered to be significant to the Group and which may adversely
and/or materially affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of

operations and growth prospects as at the date of this report:
(a) Labour shortage

The Group’s scaffolding business and fitting out services business are
labour-intensive. In the event that there is a significant increase in the
costs and demand of labour and the Group has to retain its labour by
increasing their wages, the Group’s staff costs and/or subcontracting
costs will increase thereby lower the profitability. Further, if the Group
or the Group’s subcontractors fail to retain the Group’s existing labour
and/or recruit sufficient labour on a timely manner to cope with the need
of the Group’s existing or future projects, the Group may not be able
to complete the projects on schedule and within budget. The Group’s

operations and profitability may be adversely affected.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group is committed to providing our
employees with a safe, pleasant and healthy working environment and

competitive remuneration package with a view to retaining our labour.

(b) Failure to bid new contract

The Group’s scaffolding business relies on successful tenders of
contracts for scaffolding works and/or associated works. Given the non-
recurring nature of these contract awards and that the Group does not
have long-term commitment with its customers, the number of contracts
awarded to the Group may vary from year to year. Upon completion
of the contracts on hand, the Group’s financial performance may be
adversely affected if the Group is unable to secure new tenders or obtain
new contract awards with comparable contract sums or at all. In order
to alleviate such risk, the Group believes that it can leverage on the
existing relationship with the major customers to further develop new

business opportunities in the future.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Competition

The industries in which the Group operates are highly competitive,
for example, the scaffolding industry and the money-lending industry.
Areas of competition include contract price, production costs, marketing
campaign, customer services and interest rates for money lending. If
the Group does not respond timely to cope with the market conditions,
it may adversely affect the consumer demand for the Group’s services
and products, the reputation of the Group and the Group’s financial

performance.
Financial

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including credit, interest rate,
currency, liquidity and other price risks. In addition, the Group’s equity
instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity security price risk due to the fluctuation of fair value
of equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at FVTPL.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between shareholder return and a sound
capital position. Adjustments are made, when necessary, to maintain an

optimal capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are set out in note 47

to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
Technology

The Group relies on information technology systems and networks,
including internet and third-party hosted services for the Group’s
operation, inventory management and financial reporting. Any material
disruption or slowdown of information technology systems, such as
a disruption or slowdown caused by failure to successfully upgrade
the Group’s systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks could
cause a loss of data or operation interruption. Therefore, the Group will
continuously monitor and update, if necessary, relevant information
technology systems and networks so as to reduce failure and keep up

with the development of technology.
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(f) Employees

The Group’s success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability
to attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified
managerial, workers, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical
personnel. The loss of key personnel could materially and adversely

affect the Group’s prospects and operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2020, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
(30 April 2019: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2020, the total number of full-time employees of the Group was
90 (30 April 2019: 112). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to approximately HK$44.3 million for the Year (Last Year:
approximately HK$48.6 million). Employees were remunerated according
to their performance and working experience during the Year. In addition
to basic salaries and contribution to the mandatory provident fund scheme,
staff benefits include performance bonus, medical scheme, share options and
training. Further details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out
in the paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” in the “Directors’ Report”

section and in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company,

or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.
EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 has grown into a global pandemic during the first
quarter of 2020. The Group is closely monitoring and evaluating its potential
impact, and is taking precautionary and necessary measures to mitigate its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the Group. The
outbreak of COVID-19 is expected to have at least, a short-term negative
impact on the global economic environment which in turn, is likely to affect
the Group’s revenue and profit in the first half of 2020. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the change of situation and make timely response and

adjustments in the future.

Save as disclosed above, there is no important event affecting the Group which
have occurred since 30 April 2020.

—Z-Z44%  Annual Report 2020 31



32

o B i M o3

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

wHRLEG

ARFCHLEFGE TFLLZRE G ([FZX
ZE ) o FL T AT W &
B8 2T BRI - AR E B FE
Bt =& B R AT BRSO S
B % ML ST A e bk - A

FZ B G2 E BRI FHAR A ZAF W)
e H o~ 2 45 BE R, B % B2 i DL Rt B )
EHERUERLAE L - FRLZAEGTIAR
7 ) e BB A AR ) 2 S A AR DA B B
B RN RS

AEFCHBNKFELLZE G EHR-

W Z B G CFA R A 2 5 A M
e
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee of the Board (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference that clearly establish the Audit
Committee’s authority and duties. The Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report, namely
Mr. Law Man Sang, Mr. Lo Ka Ki and Ms. Lam Wai Yu.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports and to
provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process

and risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
Four Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the Year.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. So Yu Shing ( & ¥ i) (“Dr. So”), aged 68, is the chairman of the Group
(“Chairman”), an executive Director with effect from 23 July 2001 and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. So joined the Group
in September 1991. He holds a bachelor of arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong and a master of science degree in engineering business
management from the University of Warwick in the United Kingdom. In
2009, he acquired a doctorate degree in building and construction from the
City University of Hong Kong. Furthermore, Dr. So possesses the Registered
Safety Officer qualification. Dr. So served in the Labour Department of
the Hong Kong Government before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works
Company Limited (“Wui Loong Scaffolding”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, on 17 September 1991.
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Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca ( 2 %i %) (“Ms. Lai”), aged 65, is an executive
Director with effect from 6 August 2001 and a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lai joined the Group in March 1988 and
has been actively involved in the management of the Group. She had been
engaged in the teaching profession for over 18 years before joining Wui Loong
Scaffolding in 1988.
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Mr. Kong Kam Wang (VL#%!) (“Mr. Kong™), aged 63, is the chief executive
officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”), an executive Director and
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kong graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981 with a bachelor’s
degree in business management with honours. Mr. Kong also obtained an
executive master of business administration degree (EMBA) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in the banking
industry and has held senior management positions specialising in corporate
banking as well as retail banking in a number of banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Before joining the Company in March 2002 and being appointed
as an executive Director in June 2002, Mr. Kong was the Vice President
and Zone Manager of First Pacific Bank Limited. In 1994, Mr. Kong was
assigned by First Pacific Bank Limited as representative to set up a Shenzhen
representative office in the PRC. During that period, Mr. Kong established
close relationships with various PRC Government bureaus and other foreign
financial institutions whilst stationed in the Shenzhen representative office.
Mr. Kong was an independent non-executive director of KNK Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8039), a company whose shares are listed on GEM,
from 21 November 2016 to 28 August 2019.

Mr. Kong is currently a member of the Eleventh Nanning City Committee
under Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond ( # % #£) (“Mr. Edmond So”), aged 31, joined
the Group in 2012 as a finance manager in charge of the corporate finance matters
of the Group and has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from
17 March 2014. Mr. Edmond So is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Edmond So is involved in the management of scaffolding
business of the Group. He graduated from the University of Southern California in
the United States of America with a bachelor of arts degree in sociology. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Edmond So gained experience in corporate finance, initial
public offerings and other financial advisory services by working for a year in a
corporate advisory firm which provides advisory services to the PRC and Hong
Kong based companies.
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Mr. Yuen Chun Fai (Bt 5% ) (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 41, joined the Group
in April 2014. He is an executive Director, the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”), the compliance officer of the Company and
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
overseeing and monitoring corporate exercises and accounting and finance
functions of the Group. He holds a bachelor of science degree in accounting
and finance awarded by The London School of Economics and Political
Science in 2002. Mr. Yuen is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA”) and is also a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). He has over 17
years’ experience in the fields of financial reporting, financial management
and audit in Hong Kong, the PRC, Malaysia and Singapore.

Mr. Yuen is currently the company secretary and the authorised
representative of Edvance International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1410), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since 1 June 2020, and an independent non-executive
director of Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8391), a company whose shares are listed on GEM, since
22 January 2020. Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director
of China Biotech Services Holdings Limited (formerly known as Rui
Kang Pharmaceutical Group Investments Limited) (Stock Code: 8037), a
company whose shares are listed on GEM, from June 2014 to August 2017.

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Ka Ki ( EEXKEL) (“Mr. Lo™), aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 26 February 2018. Mr. Lo has obtained
his master degree of professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in October 2009. He is a practising member of the HKICPA and a fellow
member of the ACCA. Mr. Lo has over 10 years of experience in audit and business
advisory services and is currently the managing director of a CPA practice. Mr. Lo
has previously worked as an auditor at RSM Nelson Wheeler (currently known as
RSM Hong Kong) (“RSM”) from December 2005 to June 2007, a senior accountant
at LifeTec Enterprise Limited and a qualified accountant at Paradise Entertainment
Limited (Stock Code: 1180), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from June 2007 to July 2009 and an audit senior and later on
a manager at RSM from December 2009 to November 2014.

Mr. Lo was an independent non-executive director of Tian Chang Group Holdings
Ltd. (Stock Code: 2182), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, from February 2018 to May 2019.
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Mr. Law Man Sang ( & 3C:) (“Mr. Law™), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 December 2014. He
has joined KGI Asia Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO, since
December 2004 and is currently the executive director of such company.
Since June 2005, he has been acting as a responsible officer of KGI Asia
Limited in relation to Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under
the SFO. Since September 2009, he has been acting as a responsible officer
of KGI Futures (Hong Kong) Limited in relation to Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activity under the SFO. Since March 2013, he has been
acting as a responsible officer of KGI Asia Limited in relation to Type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activity under the SFO and of KGI Futures
(Hong Kong) Limited in relation to Type 5 (advising on futures contracts)
regulated activity under the SFO. Since February 2019, he has been acting as
a responsible officer of KGI Asset Management Limited in relation to Type 9
(asset management) regulated activity under the SFO. Mr. Law has extensive
experience in financial service management and actively participates in
various social and community organisations in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Ms. Lam Wai Yu (%2 W) (“Ms. Lam™), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 27 June 2017. She has

A+ over 16 years of experience in the logistic industry. Ms. Lam is currently the

general manager of Harper Shipping Limited, a Hong Kong private company
which is principally engaged in shipping business, and is mainly responsible
for supervising business operation as well as screening projects in the PRC,
Hong Kong and other countries.
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CHANGES IN EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

Further to the disclosures above, the emoluments of the following Directors
have been changed as follows:

B B
Details of Changes

(IR AL N

Dr. So Yu Shing

Rtk +

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

L8R R Je

Mr. Kong Kam Wang

Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond

BL B 1 S 2

Mr. Yuen Chun Fai

HOETRENA =+ HEAREHRE W E

T e — 2L )

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

R AR 19 - B A % ) AT R MRS S A > A4 BE 2 B < 493,243,000 T (b 4E
3,524,000 7T )

total emoluments for the Year pursuant to the service contract signed between Dr. So and the
Company was approximately HK$3,243,000 (Last Year: HK$3,524,000).

MR 2 B O W B RT R IR TS & 4 A AR I 2 28 4 471,906,500 T (L 4
2,171,000# 7C)

total emoluments for the Year pursuant to the service contract signed between Ms. Lai and
the Company was approximately HK$1,906,500 (Last Year: HK$2,171,000).

R 98V 5 AR B 20 W B RTI RB S 40 AR A R 2 HAT 4 491,027,200 T (L 4 B2
1,070,000%5 ¢ )

total emoluments for the Year pursuant to the service contract signed between Mr. Kong and
the Company was approximately HK$1,027,200 (Last Year: HK$1,070,000).

AR R 2 O S 2 B 24 ) BT IR B 5 A > A AR I 22 M 2 #9768,900 TG (F A -
732,000 7T )

total emoluments for the Year pursuant to the service contract signed between Mr. Edmond
So and the Company was approximately HK$768,900 (Last Year: HK$732,000).

MR Be 5 A BLAR 2 W] B0 AT 09 MBS & A AR AE 2 BRI 4 #9765,5009 T (B AF L
941,000 7T )

total emoluments for the Year pursuant to the service contract signed between Mr. Yuen and
the Company was approximately HK$765,500 (Last Year: HK$941,000).

There is no further change in emoluments of the Directors since 30 April 2020
up to the date of this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mok Yiu Cheung, Dennis ( 5L #) (“Mr. Mok™), aged 61, is the
chief operation officer of the Company. Mr. Mok joined the Group in 2018.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mok worked for a number of well-known
property developers and public listed construction companies. Mr. Mok holds
a bachelor degree with honours in Management Studies from the University
of Hong Kong as well as a Postgraduate Diploma in Mediation from HKU
SPACE. Having over 31 years of experience in the building and construction
industry, Mr. Mok has developed substantial expertise in all aspects of
construction and contractual management in Hong Kong, Macau & PRC.
Mr. Mok is a Chartered Construction Manager, a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers and a member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, member of Hong Kong Management Association and Affiliated
member of Chartered Institute of Building Services Engineer.
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Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward ( # % #8) (“Mr. Edward So”), aged 39, joined
the Group in 2000 as a director of Wui Loong Scaffolding. Mr. Edward So was
an executive Director from March 2011 to March 2014. He graduated from the
Oxford Brookes University in the United Kingdom with a bachelor of science
degree in business administration and information technology. He also holds
a master of science degree in engineering business management from the
University of Warwick in the United Kingdom.
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Ms. Yeung Wai Yan, Flora (#5 % %) (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 36, is the financial
controller of the Company. Ms. Yeung joined the Group in October 2015.
She holds a bachelor degree in accounting and finance from The University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and CPA (Australia)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(“HKICS”). Ms. Yeung had over 14 years’ experience in auditing, accounting

and financial management.
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Mr. So Yu Fai, David ( # %) (“Mr. David So™), aged 61, joined the Group
in 2006 as a director of Skylon International Limited (“Skylon International”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company carrying out gondolas rental
business. Mr. David So has a bachelor degree with honours in buildings
economics from a university in the United Kingdom and a master degree
in project management from a university in Australia. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and the Chartered Institute of Building. He had served on a number
of committees of these professional bodies over the last 23 years and has
an in-depth knowledge of professional matters related to a wide variety
of construction standards and ethics. In addition to his wide experience in
construction works, he also worked for the Australian Federal Government as

an administration officer for several years.
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Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy ( B 2 #F) (“Ms. Luk”), aged 60, is the human
resources manager of the Company. Ms. Luk joined the Group in December
1995. Ms. Luk holds a master of business administration degree from the
Liverpool John Moores University, a diploma in administrative management
from the Institute of Administrative Management in the United Kingdom
and a certificate in personnel management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management. She worked for Gammon Construction Limited for 13 years

before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding in December 1995.
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Ms. Li Wan Yee, Patricia (Z#H 5) (“Ms. Li”), aged 38, is the general
manager of Skylon International. She also assists in handling of company
secretarial matters. Ms. Li joined the Group in January 2016. She holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of Melbourne
in Australia. She is a certified public accountant of the CPA Australia and a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS) and
the Hong Kong Business Accountants Association (HKBAA). She had over 16
years’ experience in accounting management, audit and corporate secretarial

practice.
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For the information of the shareholders of the Company, Dr. So Yu Shing,
the Chairman and an executive Director, is the spouse of Ms. Lai Yuen Mei,
Rebecca, an executive Director. Dr. So and Ms. Lai are the parents of Mr. So
Wang Bon, Edward, a member of the senior management of the Group and
Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, an executive Director. Mr. So Wang Bon,
Edward is the spouse of Ms. Li Wan Yee, Patricia, a member of the senior
management of the Group. Dr. So is also the brother of Mr. So Yu Fai, Daivd,

a member of the senior management of the Group.

No Director is a director or employee of a company which has an interest
in the share capital of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions in Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the Company’s goals. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management,
successful business growth and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to

the enhancement of shareholders’ value.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders. By applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Company believes that its accountability and transparency will be improved
thereby instilling confidence to the shareholders of the Company and the
public. Throughout the Year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress
in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
CG Code. Meetings were held throughout the Year and where appropriate,
internal circulars and other guidance notes were issued to Directors and
senior management of the Company to ensure awareness of issues regarding
corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board, which comprised eight Directors as at the date of this corporate
governance report, is collectively responsible for supervising the management
of the business and affairs of the Company and the Group. Biographical
details of the Chairman and the other Directors and their relationships are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this
annual report. All Directors devoted sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company and the Group during the Year.

As at the date of this corporate governance report, the Board had five executive
Directors, namely Dr. So Yu Shing (Chairman), Mr. Kong Kam Wang (Chief
Executive Officer), Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond
and Mr. Yuen Chun Fai and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Law Man Sang, Mr. Lo Ka Ki and Ms. Lam Wai Yu. Ms. Lai Yuen Mei,
Rebecca is the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing and Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, is the
son of Dr. So Yu Shing and Ms. Lai Yuen Mei Rebecca.

The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is considered by
the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-executive
Directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide adequate
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the
Company. The independent non-executive Directors provide to the Company
a wide range of expertise and experience so that independent judgement can
be effectively exercised and the interests of all shareholders will be taken
into account. They are also responsible for participating in Board meetings,
dealing with potential conflicts of interest, serving on the Audit Committee,
the remuneration committee of the Board (“Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination Committee”),
scrutinising the Company and the Group’s performance and reporting. They
provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the
committees of the Board on which they serve so that the management process

can be critically reviewed and controlled.

During the Year and as at the date of this corporate governance report, at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and the Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”)
with effect from 1 September 2013. All Board appointments have been and
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against

objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Nomination and selection of candidates for Board membership by the
Nomination Committee have been and will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
Nomination Committee is of the opinion that a balanced diversity of the
Board has been achieved during the Year and as at the date of this corporate

governance report.
Board Meetings

Board meetings are held at least four times every year. At least 14 days’
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors and all Directors
will be all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion
at Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations in connection with
the meetings are observed and complied with. The finalised agenda and
accompanying board papers are then sent to all Directors at least three days

prior to the date of Board meetings.
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During the Year, 8 Board meetings were held and the following is an
attendance record of the meetings by each Director:

W &R
A FERATHY
R A (B RE)
Number of
meetings attended/
Total number of

meetings held &R

during the Year Attendance
LS Attendees (Note) percentage
PATEDSR Executive Directors
R TG So Yu Shing 8/8 100%
B Ipi i Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 8/8 100%
VL8R Kong Kam Wang 8/8 100%
W 2 ot So Wang Chun, Edmond 8/8 100%
e % N Yuen Chun Fai 8/8 100%
Bor AT H P Independent Non-executive Directors
B Law Man Sang 8/8 100%
MO N Lam Wai Yu 8/8 100%
JiE 5% Lo Ka Ki 8/8 100%

FEGE: S E AR 2 W KBRS Note: Attendances of the Directors during the Year were counted with reference to the number of such
for
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meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.

During the regular meetings of the Board held during the Year, the Directors
discussed and formulated the overall strategies of the Company and the Group,
monitored financial performances, discussed the annual and interim results,
set annual budgets, and discussed and decided on other significant matters.
The execution of daily operational matters is delegated to the management of
the Group.

The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting
in detail by keeping minutes, including the record of all resolutions of the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any)
during the meeting. Drafts of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for
comment and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times as
the Chairman ensures that the management will supply the Board and its
committees with all relevant information in a timely manner. They may make
further enquiries if it is in their opinion necessary or appropriate to request
for further information. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, who is held responsible for providing
Directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that all proper
Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed and
complied with. If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain independent professional advisers at the Company’s expense.
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In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director, such matter will be discussed in
a physical meeting and will not be dealt with by way of written resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be

present at such meetings dealing with the conflict issue.

The Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, have all adopted the applicable

practices and procedures used in Board meetings for all committee meetings.
Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication between the Company and
its shareholders and opportunities for shareholders’ participation. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint
proxy(ies) to attend and vote at such meetings on their behalf if they are

unable to attend the meetings.

During the Year, the Company has held one general meeting, being the annual
general meeting on 20 September 2019 (“2019 AGM”). The attendance record

of each Director at the general meeting are as follows:

Hh R T ROk
AAE P RAT Y

JBe SR B
Number of general

meetings attended/

Number of generating Ly
meetings held Attendance
hEH Attendees during the Year percentage
AT H R Executive Directors
R T AL So Yu Shing 1/1 100%
BRI Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 1/1 100%
VL8R 7 Kong Kam Wang 1/1 100%
i So Wang Chun, Edmond /1 100%
e % fi Yuen Chun Fai /1 100%
B or e BAT H F Independent Non-executive Directors
B Law Man Sang 1/1 100%
ME Lam Wai Yu 0/1 =
£ Lo Ka Ki 1/1 100%
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The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman, Dr. So Yu Shing, is responsible for the Company’s and the
Group’s overall strategy and business development. The Chairman determines
the broad strategic direction of the Group in consultation with other Directors
and is responsible for the macro top-level decisions with regard to the overall

business directions of the Company and the Group.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang is the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive
Officer has the authority and responsibility for running the Company’s
business and implementing the strategies of the Company and the Group.
The Chief Executive Officer, with the support of the executive Directors, is
responsible for the strategic planning of the different business functions and

the day-to-day management and operations of the Company and the Group.
The Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Yuen Chun Fai, CPA. In compliance with Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company Secretary had taken no less than

15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director will receive a formal, comprehensive and
tailor-made induction training on the first occasion of his appointment to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and business and is fully aware of the Director’s responsibilities under the
statues and common law, the GEM Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies. The
Company Secretary and the compliance officer of the Company will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance of the same by all Directors. During the year ended 30 April 2020,
the Directors had participated in continuous professional developments and
received training conducted by the Company’s Hong Kong legal advisers in

respect of their duties and responsibilities as a director of a listed company.
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The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors to
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their duties and responsibilities
as part of their continuous professional development. All Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal advisers
and/or any appropriated institutions at the Company’s expense and they have
been requested to provide the Company with their training records. According
to the training records maintained by the Company, the trainings received by
the each of the Directors (including Directors’ induction training) for the year

ended 30 April 2020 and up to the date of this annual report are summarised

as follows:
AR
Type of

HHEEA Name of Directors trainings
HATHEF Executive Directors
R T AL So Yu Shing A,B
B2 Ui fix Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca A,B
LR Kong Kam Wang A,B
T ofE So Wang Chun, Edmond AB
b 5 i Yuen Chun Fai AB
BT ES Independent Non-executive Directors
A S Law Man Sang AB
-3 Lam Wai Yu AB
i 7% B Lo Ka Ki AB
A BREEEG Gk IR A:  attending seminars/conferences/forums/training sessions
B: BB ABAE HUEE ARERKES B:  reading newspapers/journals and updates relating to the economy, general

5 T 4 0 BRAG e 7
EHNHRERS

RANFIRNEEEFETBRLHNRT
H A3 = > B GEM L i B HI 555.48 E5.671%
T #8258 Gy 0~ HE I [R] B S A o KK 1a) A EE
FAEH B A g > SRR S TR A
JE 3 <F GEM b i BRI Br #2238 5 b < HE RI) J2
AN TS E R TR S R - AT B
MBEAHRAELNFABIAANAFFRZNFHEZ
A B AR B IR ZE 25 5F N AR H GEM L i 8 R
BOE TTRR 48 5 o A< B A A AR BE I A AT o]
B

business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted procedures governing Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiries
have been made of all Directors and confirmations have been obtained from
all Directors that they have complied with the required standard of dealings in
the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s procedures governing Directors’
securities transactions during the Year. Relevant employees, who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company or securities of
the Company, are also subject to compliance with guidelines on no less
exacting terms than those set out in the GEM Listing Rules. No incident of

non-compliance was noted by the Company during the Year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2006. The chairman of the
committee is Mr. Law Man Sang, an independent non-executive Director.
Other members of this committee include Ms. Lam Wai Yu and Mr. Lo Ka Ki,
both being independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy, making recommendation
to the Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, as well as reviewing and making recommendation
on the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and
other compensation-related issues. This committee consults with the Chairman
on its proposals and recommendations and has access to independent
professional advice if necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also
provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
on websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. At the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed matters relating to the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management of the Group. The

following is an attendance record of the meeting by each committee member:

W aSRE

A AE BB ATHY

ok A (B L)

Number of

meetings attended
Total number of R
meetings held during Attendance
s & Attendees the Year (Note) percentage
B Law Man Sang 1/1 100%
ME N Lam Wai Yu 1/1 100%
JiE 5% Lo Ka Ki /1 100%

W © 45 070 % L LR 2
H T AR SCAE P 7 47
Z R R
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Note: Attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee during the Year was counted with

reference to the number of such meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. The chairman of the
committee is Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman and an executive Director. Other
members of this committee include Ms. Lam Wai Yu and Mr. Lo Ka Ki, both

being independent non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board at least annually, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s and
the Group’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting individuals to be nominated for
directorship, assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with, among others, the factors set out in Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time, and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning

for the Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a director nomination policy
(“Director Nomination Policy”) on 31 December 2018 which came into effect
on 1 January 2019, which serves to improve the transparency of the process
and criteria in selecting and recommending candidates as Directors for the
Board’s approval from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
The Directors and the Nomination Committee will consider and nominate
candidates, according to the Director Nomination Policy based on objective
criteria such as the appropriate qualifications, ability and perspectives
that would enable them to effectively fulfill their potential roles and
responsibilities as Directors, with due regard to the benefits of diversity and
measurable objectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, to the Board

for approval.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed and believes that the
current composition of the Board reflects an achievement of full consideration
of factors of Board diversity. The Board Diversity Policy will be reviewed on

a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Shareholders may also propose a person for election as Director at the general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-
laws”). The procedures for shareholders to nominate directors are posted on

the website of the Company.

The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination
Committee meets at least once a year. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to nominate candidates for directorships and
review the composition of the Board. The attendance record of the meeting by

each committee member is as follows:
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Number of

meetings attended
Total number of &R
meetings held during Attendance
iy Attendees the Year (Note) percentage
WR TG A So Yu Shing 1/1 100%
ARE Lam Wai Yu 1/1 100%
i R B Lo Ka Ki /1 100%
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Note: Attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee during the Year was counted with

reference to the number of such meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.

Term of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years, thereafter continuous until
terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three months’
notice in writing, or by payment of three months’ salary in lieu of such notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been appointed for a
term of one year unless terminated by one month’s notice in writing.

All Directors, including the executive and independent non-executive
Directors, would retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at
the annual general meeting once every three years pursuant to the Bye-laws.
In accordance with provision 84 of the Bye-laws, Dr. So Yu Shing, Mr. Law
Man Sang and Mr. Lo Ka Ki will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election.
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Audit Committee and Accountability

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the performance and prospects of the Company and the Group.
The Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company,
which shall give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
on a going-concern basis, and other inside information announcements
and other financial disclosures. The management of the Group provides all
relevant information and records to the Board enabling it to conduct the above
assessment and to prepare the accounts and other financial disclosures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly reports for the
three months ended 31 July 2019 and for the nine months ended 31 January
2020, the interim report for the six months ended 31 October 2019 and
the annual report for the year ended 30 April 2019. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,

accounting principles, practices and compliance.

The Audit Committee, established in 2001, is chaired by Mr. Lo Ka Ki, an
independent non-executive Director and the other members of this committee
include Mr. Law Man Sang and Ms. Lam Wai Yu, both being independent

non-executive Directors.

No existing member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing

auditing firm of the Company.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the independence of
the auditors of the Company, the audit process and the standard of reports

aforesaid. This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring that the Company’s
financial statements, annual, interim and quarterly reports and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s and the
Group’s financial position; reviewing the Company’s and the Group’s
financial control, internal control and risk management systems; and reviewing
the Company’s financial and accounting policies and practices. Other duties
of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific terms of reference which are
posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its

duties.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to carry out its
primary duties as mentioned above. The attendance record of the meetings by

each committee member is as follows:
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Number of

meetings attended
Total number of R
meetings held during Attendance
s & Attendees the Year (Note) percentage
B Law Man Sang 4/4 100%
ME N Lam Wai Yu 4/4 100%
i % I Lo Ka Ki 4/4 100%

BMieE: & Z B G RANAMSEZH Note: Attendance of the members of the Audit Committee during the Year was counted with reference to
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the number of such meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings
in line with practices of the Board meetings and other Board committee
meetings. Draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and

record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

Directors’ responsibility in preparing consolidated financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated
financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of the accounts is in

accordance with statutory requirements and applicable standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in relation to their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 77 of this annual report.
Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Company
has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for the foreseeable
future and for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board
is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
determining, developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year,
the Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and made recommendations to the Board; reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; reviewed and monitored the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate governance
report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The aggregate remuneration in respect of audit services provided by D &
PARTNERS CPA LIMITED to the Group during the Year was approximately
HK$870,000 (Last Year: approximately HK$860,000) and non-audit service
(including but not limited to professional advice on a proposed disposal of
subsidiary companies) amounted to approximately HK$170,000 (Last Year:
approximately HK$121,000).

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for making decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors have formal
service contracts or letters of appointment setting out key terms and conditions
regarding their appointments. Due to the diversity and volume of the Group’s
business, responsibility in relation to the daily operations and execution of the
strategic business plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, have specific terms of reference
clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities of the respective
committees. All Board committees are required by their terms of reference to
report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations,
and in certain specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking

any actions.

The Board reviews, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to different
Board committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and they
continue to be beneficial to the Company and its shareholders (“Shareholders”™)

as a whole.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and officers’ liability to
provide adequate cover, as determined by the Board, in respect of the Board
members and senior management of the Company as from June 2010 and

renewed annually in June since 2011.
Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to
its shareholders. The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of the Group’s activities can be reflected in many

aspects.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. A majority of the Directors
made an effort to attend the Company’s general meeting so that they may

answer any questions from the Shareholders.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organising, and personally chaired
the 2019 AGM during the Year in order to ensure that Shareholders’ views
were being communicated to the Board. A separate resolution was proposed
by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue at the 2019 AGM.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed by the Board
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices
regarding corporate governance. The relevant circular, which was circulated
to all Shareholders at least 21 days prior to the holding of the annual general
meeting, sets out the details in relation to each resolution proposed, voting
procedures and other relevant information. Members of the Board and D &
PARTNERS CPA LIMITED, the auditors of the Company, attended the 2019
AGM to answer questions of the Shareholders and all the resolutions were put
to vote by poll and Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure that all

votes were properly counted.

The Company also communicates with the Shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports and by means of announcement and circular
if and when necessary. The Directors, the Company Secretary or other
appropriate members of the senior management also respond promptly to

inquiries from Shareholders and potential investors of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene general meetings

Subject to the Bye-laws, the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable laws and
regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the following procedures:

1. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition (“Requisitionists”)
may require the Board to convene a general meeting of the Company by
depositing written requisitions at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark,
No. 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong
specifying the business to be transacted in such meeting and signed by
the Requisitionists. Such meeting shall be held within two months after

the deposit of such requisition; and

2. if the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company established a shareholders’ communication policy which had
been uploaded to the Company’s website (http://www.wls.com.hk) and details
of communication with the Board could be found in the policy.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary by post to the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

Investor relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to the Shareholders and potential investors.
The Company updates Shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars. The Company’s website
(www.wls.com.hk) provides a communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.

To strengthen its relationship with investors, the Company regularly meets
with analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of the press
and other economic journals.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the resolution which is
intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Such written requisition shall be made to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the Company’s head office and principal place of business at Rooms
1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark, No. 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong
Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information
of the Shareholder, his/her/its contact details and the proposal he/she/it intends
to put forward at a general meeting in the manner as mentioned above together

with supporting documents.
Constitutional documents

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s

memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and review their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of both the design and implementation of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, with a
view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee will

communicate any material issues to the Board.
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During the Year, the Group appointed Corporate Governance Professionals
Limited (“CGPL ”) to:

. assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group through a

series of workshops and interviews; and

. independently perform internal control review and assess effectiveness

of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment conducted by CGPL
were reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements
in internal control and risk management measures as recommended by CGPL
to enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the
findings and recommendations of CGPL as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered that the internal control and risk

management systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information in order to comply with Chapter 17 of
the GEM Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA of the SFO. The internal control
mechanism includes information flow and reporting processes, confidentiality

arrangements, disclosure procedures and staff training arrangements, etc.
Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management framework in
2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound and
effective internal controls are maintained, management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds of

risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks are identified,
assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments. The risk management
framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk Management — Integrated
Framework, which allows the Board and management to manage the risks of
the Group effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit

Committee which oversees risk management and internal audit functions.
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Principal Risks

During the Year, the following principal risks of the Group were identified and

classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance

B - risks.

JeEL o 48 45 F: 22 Jal b

Risk Areas Principal Risks

SR S L Bt e T AR R~ R AR S TN 0 R B T e B — 9 A B R REAR

Strategic Risks

i

o T By

Operational Risks

S5 J i

Financial Risks

a5 HLE B

Compliance Risks

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

SR SRR e R T S Y SR
Competitor landscape, risk of failure to meet customers’ expectation, risk
of over concentration of customer bases and risk of failure to maintain a

competitive edge in terms of construction innovation and process improvement

BHE B A2 248 5] BB IR R~ AT B - B O T M DR B Y
B~ AMER N T HR M 58 R SRR ~ A M RV A S TR SR

N F1d b~ BT o3 6 B VR TE N B 45 R TR B R e R ) R AT o€
FO i~ A AR I T T S A AR K

Insufficient safety guidelines and trainings to employees, risk of technology
breakdown, loss of business opportunity, risk of information leakage, risk of
burglary/stealing of resources by outside parties, poor quality of equipment
and resources, concentration of decision maker, decline in manpower, risk of
having new subcontractors and potential injury, risk of failure to complete
work before deadline, increase in operating costs and delay in repayment of

loans

U R R R~ A R B~ A B TR B K ) R LB

Liquidity risk, credit risk, foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk

B~ Al R T B AR A A1) B AN LR R R i A 4 A L B
Risk of non-compliance of ordinances related to safety, health and

environment and risk of legal disputes
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Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate governance structure
with operational management and controls performed by management of the
operational department, coupled with risk management monitoring carried out
by the finance and compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by CGPL. The Group maintains a risk register to keep
track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk register provides
the Board, the Audit Committee, and management with a profile of the
Group’s major risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register is
updated by management as the risk owners with addition of new risks and/or
removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk
evaluation has been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to those risks in their area

of responsibility so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

The risk management activities of the Group are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the risk management framework
will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management meeting is held
to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management is committed
to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals in an

effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent professionals to
review the Group’s systems of internal controls and risk management annually
and further enhance the Group’s internal control and risk management systems

as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Directors
have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and are of the view that
in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, it
would be more cost effective to appoint external independent professionals
to perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.
Nevertheless, the Directors will continue to review at least annually the need

for an internal audit function.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the Year. All cross-references mentioned in this directors’ report

form part of this directors’ report.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 49 and 22, to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.
RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 78 to 79 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year (Last

Year: nil).
BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and the likely future development of the Group can be found in the

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.
Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate its
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market

standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers
and customers to accomplish its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain
its market competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at delivering
constantly high quality service to its customers. During the Year, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or

customers.
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According to the credit rating of different customers, the Group allows an
average credit period from 30 days to 90 days to customers. In extending
credit terms to customers, the Group will carefully assess each of their
creditworthiness and financial standing. Management will also closely monitor
all outstanding debts and review their collectability periodically.

The largest customer of the Group is Sanfield Building Contractors Limited
(“SBCL”), which contributed to approximately 48% of the Group’s turnover
for the Year.

The credit terms given to SBCL accord with the payment terms stipulated in
the relevant tenders or contracts entered into between the Group and SBCL
which are in line with those granted to other customers of the Group. The
subsequent settlement of trade receivables from SBCL is on track with its
settlement history and there is no provision made during the Year.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to environment protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in its business
activities. One of the essential goals of the Group is to organise construction
operations in the most environmental-friendly manner while keeping energy
consumption at minimum. One example is the use and promotion of the
Metal-Bamboo Matrix System Scaffold (MBMSS) since 1999, which can
reduce construction waste. In addition, initiatives within the Group include,
but not limited to, waste reduction by double side printing and separating
recyclable paper, green procurement by avoiding single-use disposable
items and using office equipment with Energy Label issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department of the Hong Kong Government, and
energy reduction by switching off idle electronic appliances. The Group
will continually review its green practices to integrate environmental, health
and safety management and compliance considerations into operational
processes. By promoting green awareness amongst, and maintaining dialogue
with, employees and business partners, the Group is determined to improve
the environmental performance of its daily business operations towards
establishing a sustainable environment. The Directors are not aware of
any material non-compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations during the Year. Further information on the Group’s environmental
policy and performance will be set out in the environmental, social and
governance report of the Group to be published within three months after the

date of this annual report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2020. A
fair value loss on investment properties of HK$8.0 million was recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the Year. Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

and the schedule of properties on page 212 of this annual report.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at

the end of reporting year were as follows:

= LS

WH=+H WH=+H

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

T#5t TH#IT

HK$°000 HK$’000

ik ARkt Share premium 560,230 560,230
g RS Contributed surplus 191,087 191,087
2t EEE Accumulated losses (832,139) (230,041)
T I HE £ 1 Share option reserve 2,801 7,280
(78,021) 528,556
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Subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”) and the
Bye-laws, the Company may in general meeting make a distribution to its
shareholders out of any contributed surplus (as ascertained in accordance with
the Companies Act) but no dividend shall be paid or distribution shall be made
out of contributed surplus if to do so would render the Company unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due or the realisable value of its assets would

thereby become less than its liabilities.
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DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up to the
date of this directors’ report:

Executive Directors

Dr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Kong Kam Wang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond

Mr. Yuen Chun Fai

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Law Man Sang
Ms. Lam Wai Yu
Mr. Lo Ka Ki

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors as independent.

In accordance with provision 84 of the Bye-laws, Dr. So Yu Shing, Mr. Law
Man Sang and Mr. Lo Ka Ki will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years. All the such service contracts are
continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than
three months’ notice in writing, or by payment of three months’ salary in lieu
of such notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of
one year unless terminated by one month’s notice in writing. All Directors
are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of directors under the
Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 April 2020, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

/N S 20
WH=+H
A2 v B #AT
JB A 2 W %4 7 43 bk
il Approximate
Jot 4 35 28 it 80 H Ji& i B H percentage of the
Number of Number of issued share capital
HHREA 54 ordinary underlying of the Company
Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held as at 30 April 2020
R Y Ha A A 3,320,000
Dr. So Yu Shing Beneficial owner
Bt B HEAS (B E (a)) 3,320,000
Interest of spouse (note (a))
6,640,000 0.05%
Wi il A+ B A A 3,320,000
Beneficial owner
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca He R (B E ) 3,320,000
Interest of spouse (note (a))
6,640,000 0.05%
VL8R S Hia A A 1,778,000 0.01%
Mr. Kong Kam Wang Beneficial owner
R e Ha A A 800,000 0.01%
Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond Beneficial owner
e 5% 6 2 A= Hai A N (BEE®)) 143,671,010 1%

Mr. Yuen Chun Fai

Beneficial owner (note (b))

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited
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Notes:
(a) Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing.

(b) On 23 January 2020, the Company granted a total of 143,671,010 share options
to Mr. Yuen Chun Fai under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
30 August 2011, details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this directors’ report and in note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations as at 30 April
2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year, the following Directors had interests in the following
business which were considered to compete or likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group (other than those business
where the Directors were appointed as directors to represent the interests of

the Company and/or the Group):

SR A 4R 3 5 ot T
T B HE BT 2 T TR

HHEH

Name of Director

Name of entity which were
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the business of the Group

VL8R %

Kong Kam Wong

Sk

Law Man Sang KGI Asia Limited

MREFGR LN R T EFeH B
AT R g (RO A SR T AT AE SR
SR LB 2 T S OR 4R B A )R DT B
J& 3R

B L b BT 45 8 3 Oh o R AS A BE - 3 R
B A B R R AL 3
Je ) it S A B 1) 3 5 M Bl T A S OBE
SUBAE A 5% S N Bl A 48 B A A BRT RE AT AE
A ] A 1] 45 7 %€

R (o) e R [ER] R E A PR S ]
(A3 AR 5% - 8039)

KNK Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8039)

S 8 I mm YA R A A

Wt T 3E B B HE 45 PR B

Description of competing business Nature of interests

PRABLER G A SR R e TR W AT E R
J 11 Al s (A =& —JL4E

AH Z AN H BHE)
Provision of comprehensive Independent non-executive
director (resigned on

28 August 2019)
PATHEH

Executive director

architectural and structural
engineering consultancy service

i IF KE AL
Securities brokerage

As the Board is independent of the boards of directors of the above-mentioned
entities and each of the above Directors cannot control the Board, the Group is
therefore capable of carrying its business independently of and at arm’s length

from the businesses of these entities.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any business and
interest of the Directors or their respective close associates that competed
or might compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group during the

Year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for details of the share option scheme as disclosed below and in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements, during the Year, none of the Directors
(including their spouses and children under the age of 18) had any interest in
or was granted any right to subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHERS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 April 2020, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
were not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company whose interests were disclosed above) who had an interest in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for details of the Company’s share option scheme as disclosed below
and in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director has or had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of the Group during the Year is set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements. Such transaction constituted
fully-exempted connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

No connected transaction (including continuing connected transaction) which
would be subject to reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules was entered into by the Group during the Year or
subsisted as at the end of the Year.



EEEP KM ER

AR AEBRALREF 2 EEBH
i A 5 [ 2 R 4063 % > T AR 4R [ i K &
J5 28 SR AR I SRR 48 % -

A 2 (B R UG IR R 2 B S ARRE A A SR R
L8 FH 1509 - T A 4 [ i Rk E B 2 bR S AR
I AR 42 [ R W AR BB 40 19% o

AR AN FEMES  EH 2 REBHRA
bl B R (T R AR S F B AT IR
A5% DA 1) BESETA A SR B TR S R A R
H A AT ] HE i o

ik ot B w2

AAFARFF—F+—-AZTHLHAERZ
WA CRA LR —F——4E AN =+
B AT 2 e RO AR R AR 4 ) i o2 o
T PR R SR A 1L o M P R B A AR AR R
AN A% P A LA A O IS R > e O A T
B 2 Aot M T 2 S HE A L A 1 A
Ry S

REARAR F——F N NA=THRAZ
W P Mt ) (TRt )) 2 e > e gy i
Y 17 2 A s ) AT AT B R 2 A R
B (L% AR 2% /) AT o] B g 2 R AT~ 9
PUAT B S I AT I AR R AT R H A
2R Y ) 422 Ak P o DA R AR W B
fr- TEE WA BUBE S 5 G E A K
] o AR 4 R ) T A 2% ) AT AT G At T -
T 1 R AT G BT AT S RO 2 47 1 T LA
BTAT 2 ey MO AR AR AR R 8
FTIeA30% - 7t #l 2 F M H 2 —F ——F N
Ao LA Rl —EER-

R
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 63% of the Group’s
total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer

accounted for approximately 48% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 50% of the Group’s total purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 19% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in any
of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 November 2001
was terminated by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 August
2011. Upon termination of this share option scheme, no further share options
under this scheme could be granted, but the provisions of this share option
scheme will remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give

effect to the exercise of those share options granted prior to its termination.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
30 August 2011 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of providing
incentive to directors, eligible employees and consultants, the Board may,
at its absolute discretion, offer full-time employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
consultants or advisors of any member of the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum aggregate number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.The life of the Option Scheme was effective
until 29 August 2021.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted under the Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless separately approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such grantee and
his associates abstaining from voting, and the number and terms (including
the subscription price) of the options to be granted to such person must be
fixed before the shareholders’ approval. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is

payable on acceptance of each grant.

The subscription price may be determined by the Board, provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of offer of the options; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the options;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer provided that in
the event of fractional prices, the subscription price per share shall be rounded

upwards to the nearest whole cent.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which
the offer of the grant of the options is made in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme. There is no general requirement on the minimum period
for which an option must be held before an option can be exercised under the

terms of the Option Scheme.

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, options issued prior
to or during the financial year ended 30 April 2020 are fully vested before the

date of exercisable period.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at 20 September 2018, being the date of approval of
the refreshment of 10% general scheme limit under the Option Scheme by
the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 1,436,710,107 shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of this

annual report).
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Details of movements in the Company’s share options for the year ended
30 April 2020 are as follows:

i i HE
Number of share options
BB REBZRE
frfEMm (394 HA—H WA=+H
Bt A (LHERRMA) Tt i AT B EarE LLP) EPRESH R ATRE LEN i
Outstanding
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised as at
Exercisable period price per at 1 May during during during during 30 April
Date of grant (both dates inclusive) share 2019 the year the year the year the year 2020
B
w
s “E-tf TE-LEAATTEE 00186 1,149,030,000 - (1,149,030,000) - - -
MATIHH “E-NEAAZTAH
Consultants 15 September 2017 29 September 2017 to
28 September 2019
WS
Executive Director:
BUBRHE (WiEE) e S <2 CECEEZAARE 0.0212 - 143,671,010 - - - 143,671,010
—AZ+=H ZFZ-%AA%LH
Yuen Chun Fai (Note) 23 January 2020 6 February 2020 to
5 August 2021
18 (W3E) “EIFE CECRECAARE 0.0212 - 143,671,010 - - - 143671010
-AZ+=H ZEZ-FEAANLA
Employee (Note) 23 January 2020 6 February 2020 to
5 August 2021
1,149,030,000 287,342,020 (1,149,030,000) - - 287,342,020

BEGE - BRI —EFE—H S R
HFET > A AR 0 ST 1 £50.02 13 T ©

AN I R RE 00 o — B RN R AR A
kR 5Ea1 -

1 o I A

AR 2 ) A B BT AR I A M O A e I
REAGE > (A 24 R ZHAE A O W) BUAT B R 2 i
HHE LU 191 16 48 4 SR AT AR 2% RLRT M Ay o

Note: the closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on
which the share options were granted on 23 January 2020, is HK$0.021.

Further details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note

41 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares of the

Company on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined by the

Remuneration Committee on the basis of merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out above and in note 41

to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the remuneration of the senior

management of the Company for the Year by band is as follows:

N

Number of individuals

% £1,000,000% ¢
HEHERMNE R A m A L2
FEAR IR 45 A BB R B RELL -

5 M Rl B v
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W E - B O el i A
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

Nil to HK$1,000,000 6

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the five
individuals with highest emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated

financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any

relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float

throughout the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is being in

force for the benefit of the Directors.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the Year, the cooperation agreement dated 1 January 2017 entered
into between Mass Fidelity Asset Management Limited (“Mass Fidelity”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally engaged in assets
management, and GET Consulting Company Limited (“GET Consulting”) was
in force. Pursuant to such cooperation agreement, Mass Fidelity has engaged
GET Consulting to provide management services on the daily operation and
accounting and finance matters of Mass Fidelity. Such cooperation agreement
did not have a fixed term and no Director was interested in such cooperation

agreement.

Save as aforesaid, no other contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year ended 30 April
2020.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the Year, in order to raise funds to carry on and further develop the
money lending business of the Group, Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited (“Gold
Medal”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued 8.5%
coupon unlisted straight bond in the principal amount of HK$20 million on
28 October 2019, which will be matured on the third anniversary date of the

issue date. The Company acts as the guarantor of such bond.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries issue

any shares or debentures during the Year.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for details of the share option scheme as disclosed above and in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter
622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was entered into by the Company during

the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$89,000 (Last Year: HK$250,000).

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

On 14 March 2018, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED resigned, and D &
PARTNERS CPA LIMITED was appointed as the auditors of the Company.
Save as aforesaid, there has been no change in auditors of the Company in
the three years preceding the date of this annual report. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
re-appoint D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED as the independent auditors of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

So Yu Shing
Chairman

27 July 2020
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To the Shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WLS Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
78 to 210, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 April 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables

We identified the estimated impairment of loan and interest receivables arising
from the money lending business as a key audit matter due to significance of
the carrying amount and significant estimation required by the management on

assessing the impairment of loan and interest receivables.

As detailed in notes 4, 24 and 47 to the consolidated financial statements,
management assessed the provision for impairment of loan and interest
receivables based on the estimation of expected credit loss (“ECL”) under
a “three-stage” model. In developing the loss allowance of loan and interest
receivables, management use judgement in making the assumptions about the
probability of default and loss given default with reference to the historical
delinquency ratio of loans portfolio, repayment record, collateral values and

current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s net loan and interest receivables amounted
to approximately HK$462,442,000 (2019: HK$461,077,000). Allowance for
credit losses of loan and interest receivables under the ECL model amounted to
approximately HK$74,047,000 (2019: $41,056,000) and net impairment loss
arising from ECL for the amount of HK$57,146,000 (2019: HK$6,303,000).

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of loan and interest

receivables arising from the money lending business included:

. Understanding, evaluating and validating the control over impairment
assessment of loan and interest receivables, which related to
management’s identification of events that triggered the significant
increase in credit risk of loan and interest receivables and events of
default;
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O Carrying out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the existence and
accuracy of the aging of loan and interest receivables as at the reporting
date;

. Reviewing the valuation methodology and approach adopted by

management in the ECL assessment;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions, such as
delinquency ratio and collateral values used in assessing the ECL based

on the historical data as well as market economic data; and

. Testing the integrity of information used by management to develop the
impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables as at year-end

by checking the historical settlement records on a sample basis.
Key audit matter
Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible asset

We identified the valuation of goodwill and intangible asset as a key audit
matter due to the complexity and significant judgments involved in the

management’s impairment assessment process.

As detailed in the notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
in determining the amount of impairment for goodwill and intangible asset
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount, which is the value in use
of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which goodwill and intangible asset
has been allocated and the Group engages an independent external valuer
to perform such valuation. The value in use is based on cash flow forecast
of the CGU of the asset management business and take into account the key
assumptions used by management which including discount rate adopted for

cashflow forecast and growth rate of revenue.
Based on the managements’ assessment, an impairment loss of goodwill and

intangible asset approximately HK$354,000 and HK$34,600,000 were recognised
in profit or loss respectively, during the year ended 30 April 2020.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible asset included:

. Understanding how the management perform impairment assessment
including the preparation of cash flow forecast and assumptions

estimation;

. Evaluating the independent external valuer’s qualification, capabilities
and objectivity;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the value in use valuation model and
checking its mathematical accuracy;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions used in the
cash flow forecast, including discount rate, growth rate of revenue by
discussing with the management with reference to their expectations
for market development and comparing with the most recent financial
performance available;

. Performing sensitivity analysis on key assumptions and assessing the
potential impact on the value in use; and

. Evaluating the historical accuracy of the cash flow forecast and actual
performance for the year and future prospect from the CGU.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

D & PARTNERS CPA LIMITED
Certitied Public Accountants

Yeung Chun Yue, David
Practising Certiticate Number: P05595

Hong Kong, 27 July 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE—ZT—FTFE/MH=1HIFFEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2020

SROBE ST NE
2020 2019
B 5T T# T THs T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
(K5
(Restated)
PR g Continuing operations
I 75 Revenue 5 139,516 179,503
BB A Cost of sales (80,759) (119,351)
B Gross profit 58,757 60,152
BERINT N Other income 2,215 1,898
HoAth i 25 & (f518) Other gains and (losses) (78,194) (30,401)
i RATHE T Operating and administrative expenses (43,996) (41,000)
WEWHEZ NP EEH Fair value changes on investment
properties (8,080) 410
HEWZE- B K2 i Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 81 80
o T B TR E R Impairment loss recognised in respect of

WA 18 goodwill and intangible asset (34,954) (32,666)
W W Bt s & Loss on disposal and write-off of property,

R Js 1R plant and equipment (25) (28)
Fil i A Finance costs 9 (9,795) (8,565)
¥ i i fes 48 Loss before taxation (113,991) (50,120)
B IH Taxation 10 8,986 (463)
AR BE AR H R LA I 1R Loss for the year from continuing

operations 12 (105,005) (50,583)
b Discontinued operation
AR AR H # LR 58 1 s 1R Loss for the year from discontinued

operation 13 (5,754) (5,294)
A e 18 Loss for the year (110,759) (55,877)
EN/NCIEE DN X Loss for the year attributable to

A 1 owners of the Company:

— R B R — from continuing operations (103,134) (46,604)

— R G &I — from discontinued operation (5,754) (5,294)

(108,888) (51,898)
FEE T 45 EAL A4 EE B P 0 Loss for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests:
—2f R AR — from continuing operations (1,871) (3,979)
(110,759) (55.,877)
e H R AL AR From continuing and discontinued
operations
B s 1H — B AR R Loss per share — basic and diluted 15 (HK$0.758 cent #{ll) (HK$0.361 cent i fill)

PERS: Fit 1
5 JBOMe 18— LA %

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

From continuing operations

Loss per share — basic and diluted

(HK$0.718 cent i fill) (HK$0.324 cent # 1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE—F—THEP A=+ HIFFEZ  For the year ended 30 April 2020

TRTRE “E L
2020 2019
T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
(B E )
(Restated)
A4 JE i 4R Loss for the year (110,759) (55,877)
HoAth A2 TH S Other comprehensive expense:
TEAS B F 5K 1A 7 1 Item that will not be reclassitied to
HHAH - profit or loss:
T A w5 H A A T i #R Fair value loss on equity instruments
(M&AFEFEA at fair value through other
HAbh AU i ]) 2 comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
M TH 2NV (2,323) (862)
AR HoA A TH S R Other comprehensive expense
BiLIH for the year, net of taxation (2,323) (862)
AR FE AT SRR Total comprehensive expense for the year (113,082) (56,739)
EN/NCIES P SN NGy Total comprehensive expense for the year
A TH] ST H AR attributable to owners of the Company:
— R H RS — from continuing operations (105,457) (47,466)
— R E R — from discontinued operation (5,754) (5,294)
(111,211) (52,760)
IE P FROHE 2 B AL 4 1 32 Total comprehensive expense attributable
M to non-controlling interests:
— K H R — from continuing operations (1,871) (3,979)
(113,082) (56,739)

—Z-ZH4%  Annual Report 2020 79
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REFZZFFMA=4H At30 April 2020
ZEORE —E—-JU4E
2020 2019
B 5E T#5t TH#T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
I B & Non-current assets
wEwE Investment properties 16 48,900 56,980
L ENN N Property, plant and equipment 17 11,130 16,159
i M Right-of-use assets 18 7,585 -
7 Goodwill 19 - =
WY & Intangible asset 20 - 34,600
RBE AR KA/ AT Z MR Interests in associates and a joint venture 22 - -
T O AE wH A H At 2 T i #i Equity instruments at FVTOCI
Z M4 TR 23 9,255 11,578
JRE WA B 3 R A I Loan and interest receivables 24 311,224 404,011
22 4 o H At E SRR I Deposits and other receivables 25 755 1,596
I AL ol I Deferred tax assets 38 9,874 188
398,723 525,112
it B Current assets
JAEE e 5 K % A Loan and interest receivables 24 151,218 57,066
T R ~ 44 K Prepayments, deposits and
A R iR I other receivables 25 7,938 7,918
JRE i B 3K Trade receivables 26 27,206 42,119
AHRERE Contract assets 27 7,997 5,196
Pty Inventories 28 451 357
N PR AIHZS ([4%AF{H  Financial assets at fair value through
FEAIERLE ) 2 4 g E profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 29 22,686 40,762
JE AR [] B TH Tax recoverable 13 13
RATEE B LBl & —FREIRF Bank balances and cash — trust account 30 2 9,633
RATHE B Bl & —— IR Bank balances and cash — general accounts 30 78,298 110,074
295,809 273,138
SEBRHER B EE Assets classified as held for sale 31 37,587 -
333,396 273,138
i B £ 1% Current liabilities
JRE AR TR 39 B JEL At 1R AT 25 1 Trade and other payables 32 28,249 29,124
A AR Contract liabilities 33 9,097 4,655
GENE =K Lease liabilities 34 5,084 =
JREASH £ ] 48 3 I Retention monies payables 1,642 2,617
JEAH B 1A Tax payable 648 621
it T 4 7R 4 — B A 4 Obligations under finance leases
— current portion 35 - 952
AT B Bank borrowings 36 45,113 34,532
Al R R L Ath £ Other loan and other borrowings 37 82,000 70,000
RATIESL Bank overdrafts 36 19,396 19,827
191,229 162,328
O3B By R AR A Liabilities associated with assets
H B 2 A classified as held for sale 31 12,035 =
203,264 162,328
B & A Net current assets 130,132 110,810
AR T B £ AR Total assets less current liabilities 528,855 635,922

80 EmEmERAT  WLS Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

REFZFFMA=—+H At30April 2020

TRTRE “ELE
2020 2019
B 51 T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’ 000
I it B £ 4% Non-current liabilities
& & i Lease liabilities 34 4,141 =
il 5 L 4 7K 9% — IF RV HAER 43 Obligations under finance leases —
non-current portion 35 - 1,009
0 A B JH £ i Deferred tax liabilities 38 365 283
4,506 1,292
& E A Net assets 524,349 634,630
& A Ak Capital and reserves
R A Share capital 39 143,670 143,670
Tkt Reserves 393,959 502,369
EN/NCIES TSN F L Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 537,629 646,039
IE ¥ 1B 4 Non-controlling interests (13,280) (11,409)
HE 25 48 % Total equity 524,349 634,630
HISE20H X 45 B MBS R —F T4+ The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 210 were approved and
H =+t HRE 5 i AR R T T R authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 July 2020 and are signed
TN A on its behalf by:
B U B o 1% e
SO YU SHING YUEN CHUN FAI
FH FH
Director Director

—Z—Z44%  Annual Report 2020 811



82

32 g
GO RE 42 5

Bk

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE=—ZT-ZTF/mH =1 HIFF/Z Forthe year ended 30 April 2020

EYNCHZIN 11
Attributable to the owners of the Company
HATHE
AL
Bk RGEE  REER  AUHRE  WRERE 2mhaRE 0B B REE  EEAE
Share Non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger option FVIOCT  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Tt Tt Tt Tt T T Tin Tk Tt Tt
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(Wita) (Wtb) (Wiko)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
RZZ-NELA—H At 1 May 2018 143,670 560,230 191,087 m 7,280 (35,257) (170,433) 698,799 (7430) 691,369
FEERR Loss for the year - - - - - - (51,898) (51,898) (3979) (55877)
FATEAL AT G2 B4 Fair value loss on equity instruments - - - - - (862) - (862) - (862)
TRZATEER At FVT0CI
REERTHLHAH Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - - - (862) (51.898) (52,760) (3.979) (56,7%9)
b ERAFE AL AT Reclassification adjustment upon disposal - - - - - 76 (76) - - -
A AT Y L of equity instruments at FVTOCI
RZZ-AFNA=HA At30 April 2019 143,670 560,230 191,087 m 7,280 (36,043) (222.407) 646,039 (11,409) 634,630
AR AEL
Attributable to the owners of the Company
Hel P
AL
Rk RBEE  KMER  A0RE BRERE 20RERE  AHER A% kERES  Ea4E
Share Non-
Share Share ~ Contributed Merger option FVIOCI  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Fibn Fibn Fibn Fibn Fibn Fibn Ti#x T T T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
(Wita) (Bitb) (Wite)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note¢)
RZZ-NVERA-H At May 2019 143,670 560,230 191,087 10 7,80 (36,043 (222407) 646,039 (11,409) 634,630
KEEBR Loss for the year - - - - - - (108,888)  (108,388) (187 (110,759)
BATHEAFALM2E RS2 R Fair value loss on equity instruments - - - - - (2,323) - (2,323) - 2323
TRZATHER at FVTOC
AEERELHAR Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - - - (233)  (108888) (1121 (187 (11308
ek S R 3 Recognition of equity-settled share-based - - - - 2801 - - 2,801 - 2801
payment
BRHERH Lapse of share options - - - - (7,280) - 7,280 - - -
RF-ZENAZHH At 30 April 2020 143,670 560,230 191,087 m 2801 (38,366) (324,015) 537,629 (13,280) 524,349

SEREERABR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

HE—F—THEP A=+ HIFFEZ  For the year ended 30 April 2020

(i Notes:

(2) AR 2 BB AR AR AR RO TR — DU 4 (a)  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount transferred
NH TN H B AT 2 B R RO € b e from share premium amount upon the cancellation of the entire amount
T PR v S B B H B v A AR A standing to the credit of the share premium account as at 28 August
IR LA T 4B 1 IR 17 Vi A S R B o 2014 pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders at an

extraordinary general meeting held on that date.

(b  AEEZEHRMAEAL S BT ZRAE (b)  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
MR IR A LR —FE—F+—H nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
CHEZHETCEEEATEAREAFCD for the nominal value for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
BATRAHEHZ 5 - acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation on 23 November 2001.

(c) 7S5 B 22 o PIE ftt 4 4 70 A BRIt H W BT 4% (c)  The share option reserve of the Group represents the fair value of share
HE P A A 1 SR AT ) B RO 2 [ options granted at the relevant grant dates and outstanding as at end of
the reporting period.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE—ZT—FTFE/MH=1HIFFEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2020

84

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

TROERE ZEF N
2020 2019
Tt T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
REEH Operating activities
W i s 4R Loss before taxation (119,745) (55,414)
BT 54 AR A Adjustments for:
FLE A Interest income (1,380) (62)
N TEFI AR 2 &MERE 2 Fair value loss on financial assets

N EER at FVTPL 16,785 24,467
WEEAFEFABEZ Loss (gain) on disposal of financial assets

EMEE 2 EE Od) at FVTPL 1,008 (6,113)
i HE 5 LM i 1R Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 2,038 -
JOE i 5 3 R A B 2 Net impairment loss of loan and

GRIEN Ei=REkcl interest receivables 57,146 6,303
JRE i R Bk (1 Net impairment loss (reversal) of

R (5 )) AR trade receivables 832 (1,442)
B HE T ZW(E E HR ]V A Net impairment loss reversal of contract assets (23) (701)
JRE WS R 3K 2 R 48 [l Reversal of write-off of trade receivables (1,099) =
B RVE EE 2 R R Reversal of write-off of contract assets (200) =
BEMEZ N FEER (ki) Fair value loss (gain) on investment properties 8,080 (410)
g Depreciation 8,104 7,386
W RS KR Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (81) (80)
EN & Pk Loss on disposal and write-off of property,

B e plant and equipment 25 28
7 A e T R 2 (R 1R Impairment loss of goodwill and intangible asset 34,954 32,666
1= A R A5 R 3k 2 A R Write-off of long-aged trade payables (40) -
B A 5 5 2 AR S Share-based payment expenses 2,301 =
il A Finance costs 9,861 8,565
JRE Wi B 2k 2 B Write-off of trade receivables 1,707 2,197
JRE Wi B 3k e A L 2 SR Write-off of loan and interest receivables - 5,690

REEESEHHIRE Operating cash flows before movements
BEws in working capital 20,773 23,080



Ao By B U B A ()
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

HE—F—THEP A=+ HIFFEZ  For the year ended 30 April 2020

ZERIFE “E-HUE
2020 2019
T#x THT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
JHE i £ I B 88 o Increase in loan and interest receivables (58,511) (4,575)
FEAT AR - e K HAl Decrease (increase) in prepayments,

JEWCERTE D (58 n) deposits and other receivables 667 (70)
JRE Wi iR ik D Decrease in trade receivables 12,946 3,424
BHVERE () W (Increase) decrease in contract assets (2,578) 10,100
& (Bm) Wb (Increase) decrease in inventories 94) 15
N EF AR Z Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL

S B 283 4,656
SRATH R LB G B> —f55ERF Decrease in bank balances and cash — trust account 3,372 13,285
JRE AT W I LA JRE A5 s I Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables

() 3,582 (14,896)
BHA R (B) Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 4,442 (7,751)
JREASF A 8] 42 3RIE (b ) 38 (Decrease) increase in retention monies payables (975) 1,434
EH () S84 Cash (used in) generated from operations (16,093) 28,702
B A o A 15 8L Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (591) (1,516)
REEE (M) A& FH Net cash (used in) generated from

operating activities (16,684) 27,186
wEEE Investing activities
il ) 2 R B R A Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,271) (2,822)
%4 Placement of rental deposit (523) -
HERA T EFAHMARE S Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments

Z M4 TH 3308 at FVTOCI - 7,042
HEWE - BB K Proceeds from disposal of property,

JI A5 5K 0H plant and equipment 55 108
WA B — [T A 2 ) R A A Y Net cash inflow from acquisition additional interest

HERAFH of a subsidiary 233 =
B R S Interest received 1,320 35
BEEHE (M) BB E&FH Net cash (used in) generated from

investing activities (1,186) 4,363
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Ao By BB U R (A
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

HE—ZT—FTFE/MH=1HIFFEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2020

TR ORE ZEF N
2020 2019
Tt T T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
g Financing activities
s RITEE New bank borrowings raised 37,580 24,494
MR AT A Z HoA B Proceeds from other loan and other borrowings,
oAt 8 8 2 7 15 30H net of issue cost 20,000 =
e BT A& A Finance lease charges paid - (114)
ERME AR R Repayment of lease liabilities/obligations under
finance leases (3,210) (888)
A 3 b B R R L A A Repayment of other loan and other borrowings (8,000) (22,000)
AT FLE Interest paid (8,774) (7,372)
B BT E Repayment of bank borrowings (26,999) (18,968)
AEEHRG () H]E S8 Net cash generated from (used in)
financing activities 10,597 (24,848)
RERREFMEH (WA )M Net (decrease) increase in cash and
T8 cash equivalents (7,273) 6,701
RAERZ B & KRB & FHEH Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 90,247 83,546
RAERZHERIEFHIEH Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 82,974 90,247
Bl BB &S H 4 A Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
A H AR From continuing operations:
WATHIER B & — — R Bank balances and cash — general accounts 78,298 110,074
BATH X Bank overdrafts (19,396) (19,827)
58,902 90,247
REKIERE: From discontinued operation:
WATH B M B & — —RIRF Bank balances and cash — general accounts 24,072 -
82,974 90,247

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The head
office and the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding, fitting
out and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work, money
lending business, securities investment business and assets management

business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for

the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 16
HK(FRIC) — Int 23

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests In Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017

Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177), and the related

interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed

contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 May 2019, the Group
applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the requirements set

out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1 May 2019.

As at 1 May 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening accumulated losses and

comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS 16 at
transition, the Group applied the following practical expedients to leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-

by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i. relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by
applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment review;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial

application;

iii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use

assets at the date of initial application;

iv.  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date of
initial application in determining the lease term for the Group’s

leases with extension and termination options.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (CONTINUED)

A A BE 5 AL 02 B RT A v B R New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
e R HABRT AR (410) effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HEMBEHEEANE16HME 2.1
(#)

1EXBEBA (4)

PSR E AR EHECHEA
o IR > 7 4 B PR R o KB A
R 5 0 B RO R o I 2
Y- 3 1 A SRR R J55.1% -

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified
as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial application. The

weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied is 5.1%.

L
H—H
At 1 May 2019
Tl
HK$’000
hoE - LEMA = 1H Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 April 2019
Bl B 8 T B R 6,141
Tk A R A A — R A AE 1R Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases (4,761)
1,380
N FE VR — B ER A Lease liabilities relating to operating lease recognised
BT s A R 5 1 6557 1% e R 00 upon application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 May 2019
SACEH A R A K 1,310
e = F - JUE H =1 H#ERRRY Add: obligation under finance lease recognised at 30 April 2019
il AL 4 AR 1,961
3,271
GBI Analysed as:
B 41 Current 1,619
FF R Non-current

B o AR S T2 8 BT S A o U JH A% B 4 1R Note:
AL A #0126 R T R O A W S RLAG 52 55
T AT I T A s B o TR RS 16 SR AR A
WRIMEBLA & % 2 BT -

EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

1,652

The Group renewed the leases of warehouse and office premises by entering into
new lease contracts which commence after date of initial application. These new
contracts are accounted as lease modifications of the existing contracts upon
application of HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

RoFE—NFERLA—H - HHAEEEZ The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 May 2019 comprises
H THT BB 36 DA T 4508 - the following:
i1 1 RE
Right-of-use
assets
Wt Tt e
NOTES HK$’ 000
TR PR A s B o B T SR 16958 Right-of-use assets relating to operating lease
% MR B AR S T B A B recognised upon application of HKFRS 16
o 1,310
AR RS R AR [l AR B 4 Adjustments on refundable rental deposits (a) 12
MR s & 5T RS 7 98 5t A 2 - Amount included in property, plant and
75 o % A 1Y) 4 equipment under HKAS 17
— eI R R B A M EE — Assets previously held under finance leases (b) 2,301
3,623

(a) A RE T A s IS o o RIS 1698 1 - AN 4
A T AT 22 AT AR (A AR 4 A A At R i
HIETNEASGGFHERSI7TRZHE N
HE 4 B TTAT o AR A vl A 5 T BB 169
T ERIA 2 % %Sk e N IR R
P AR B RE R 2 BT I A R R DL
e 4 RE 2 B B R 2R o R K > 12,0005 JT
O R 2 O S AT 2 W] AR R A 4 4 2 A R

(b) REHIRBEMEHNENFANEENS > A%
H¥ R - E—JLEREA— B AME
TH A B & 2 R T (B 492,301,000 I
4 R B R M o AN AR SRR
F— LA H — B 5 5 R & R 8 49
952,000%% 7& & #11,009,000%# 7T 538 70 8 % 0
BRI RBABZME AR

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered refundable rental
deposits paid as rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under other receivables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use of the
underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition.
Accordingly, HK$12,000 was adjusted to refundable rental deposits paid and
rights-of-use assets.

In relation to assets previously held under finance leases, the Group recategorised
the carrying amounts of the relevant assets which were still under lease as at
1 May 2019 amounting to approximately HK$2,301,000 as right-of-use assets.
In addition, the Group reclassified the obligations under finance leases of
approximately HK$952,000 and approximately HK$1,009,000 to lease liabilities
as current and non-current liabilities respectively at 1 May 2019.
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the Group
is not required to make any adjustment on transition for leases in
which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases in accordance
with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application and comparative

information has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered into but
commence after the date of initial application relating to the same
underlying assets under existing lease contracts are accounted as if the
existing leases are modified as at 1 May 2019. The application has had
no impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position at
1 May 2019. However, effective on 1 May 2019, lease payments relating
to the revised lease term after modification are recognised as income on

straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

The initial application of HKFRS 16 as a lessor has no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial position as at 1 May 2019 and its
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

and consolidated statements of cash flow for the current year.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
2.1.1 Transition and summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 16

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 May 2019. Line items

o 3l 37 S W) R B 2 JH F A A TE

were not affected by the changes have not been included.

A o
/I Sy IS
] fH—H
/AR S| I 2 R 9% 7 i A B
MA=+H e R SR 1658
2 5 R T A i B Z MR
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
30 April 2019 Adjustments at 1 May 2019
T#5 7T THsTT T# T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
I B & E Non-current assets
L/ ENN & Property, plant and equipment 16,159 (2.301) 13.858
17 ) W Right-of-use assets - 3,623 3,623
W& Current asset
4 Deposits 2,053 12) 2,041
B B R Current liabilities
iEN=g =K Lease liabilities - (1,619) (1,619)
il R 40 R 3% — B AR 43 Obligation under finance leases
— current portion (952) 952 -
I B £ 4% Non-current liabilities
HE A Lease liabilities = (1,652) (1,652)
il 5 L 4 7K 4% — IF B HA B 43 Obligation under finance leases
— non-current portion (1,009) 1,009 -

Mek: MEHREE - F R FENA =T HIEFEZ
VTFIIE%(JILEWH FBASE) C 4% bR
ZEHAMBRAER -F—NFERA—HZ

WV BT ARG

Note: For the purpose of reporting consolidated cash flows for the year ended
30 April 2020, movements have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial positions as at 1 May 2019 as
disclosed above.
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EEZERARAET WLS Holdings Limited

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

Amendment to HKFRS early adopted by the Group

The Group has early adopted the following amendment to HKFRS, which are
relevant to its operations.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-related rent concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-related rent concessions allow
lessee to elect not to assess whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic is a
lease modification. Such practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all

of the following conditions are met:

. The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than the consideration for

the lease immediately preceding the change;

. Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021;

. There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the

lease.

A lease applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way it would account for the changes
applying HKFRS 16 if the changes were not lease modifications. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived
with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period

in which the event occurs.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Insurance Contracts'

Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 And HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
conceptual framework for financial reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 May 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements

in the foreseeable future.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”’) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by including
additional guidance and explanations in making materiality judgments. In

particular, the amendments:

. include the concept of “obscuring” material information in which the

effect is similar to omitting or misstating the information;

. replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could

influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence”; and

. include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than simply
referring to “users” which was considered too broad when deciding

what information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 May 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group but may affect the

presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the above, the Directors anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given

in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 (since 1 May
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would

use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted at
fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique equals the

transaction price.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to

the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land (classified
as finance lease) held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold

land and building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the

leasehold land is under finance lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Ownership interests in leasehold land and building (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their residual values over their estimated useful

lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 20%
Metal tubes and catwalks 20%
Gondolas’ related equipment 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit

or loss.
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties include land held for undetermined future

use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair values using the fair value model. All the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purpose are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit

or loss for the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period

in which the property is derecognised.
Intangible asset acquired in a business combination

Intangible asset acquired in a business combination is recognised separately
from goodwill and is initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition

date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits is expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy

above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s CGUs (or groups of cash generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose and not

larger than an operating segment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) is less than its carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the

carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

Interests in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over these

polices.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. A joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and the joint
venture used for equity accounting purpose are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, all investments in associates
or the joint venture are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of associates or
the joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or the joint venture (which includes any
long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional loss is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate or joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Interests in associates and a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in

which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in
an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that

the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or a joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of that associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and a joint venture (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with that associate or
joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements

only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as

a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after

the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Assets classified as held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint venture,
the investment or the portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the
Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that
is classified as held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion

of the investment) is classified as held for sale.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the

lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.

Financial Assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured

at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured
at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at
the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

Financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
. On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the

determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

(ii))  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on

disposal of the equity investments, and will continue to be held in the

FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of

the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”

line item in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at

FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any

dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the

“other gains and (losses)” line item.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”)
on financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
including loan and interest receivables, trade receivables, contract assets,
other receivables and bank balances. The amount of ECL is updated at each

reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month
(“12m”) ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting

date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate

groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases

in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit

default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor;

O an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are past due based on the
contractual terms, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a
debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if 1) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood

definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective

risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at individual instrument level may not yet be available, the

financial instruments are grouped on the the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade receivables,
and contract assets are each assessed as a separate group). Loan
and interest receivables, other receivables and bank balances are

assessed for expected credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI

reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not

reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to FVTOCI reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct

issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference

between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business combinations
on or after the date of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of
a property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease building

components, unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of some clinics that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.



B 7 S 5 R B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. EEGHBR @

ME (=)

7 55 A 2 R RN (R0 B 222 3 8% 1k 6 SC
TP W R A ol S MR U SR 165K 4R ) (40

1 HE &
il HE P AL
. WMXERZHEAMERE:

. T B iR H O B AR 2 AT A A
o AT 2 W B U

g S 0 A 2 AT ) 0 R A 5 B

o RSB PRBR KA R AR B K - R A
B T AE S M SO AR B R R R R
REL# fb 3K 2 A6 A i B3R AR DL T E AR 2
b5 RAS ©

5 AR U PR 25 AT AT 2R AT
s 1R - 3 gk AR BB AR AT T A

o

AL A S [ 7 AL 39T 4 SRR 5 B E 8 TR B AL
EHEABEZERNEEE . A MG R
2 AT A 3 4 RO T R R AT R o AE KL Al A
DUTN > T M S e A HL A R R R
SRS TR (LA 5 R ) I o

7 B T A A B 5 R DL 21 o R O E 2 8
R B -

A28 [ fH I 7

B 3 A 2wy AR o] L 2 4 T AR R A s A S R
oW I SEOTR AR > I 2 4 (A0 2P R o R
P15 WERB I 2 O3 V- (B o AR AR AN A 3K
A7 AT HE A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any

lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms

and conditions of the lease

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses, and adjusted for any measurement at lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term are
depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of

its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of

right-of-use assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease

incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially

measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;
. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain

to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects

the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest

accretion and lease payments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment

to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured

by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to
use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate

adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price

of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2)
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the Group
applies HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are separated from lease

component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments for
the new lease.

Leasing (prior to 1 May 2019)

The Group as a lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Leasing (prior to 1 May 2019) (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as obligations under finance

leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are

recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising from operating leases are recognised in the period

they incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of
incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time

pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the

carrying amount of the leased asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical costs in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
rationalisation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period

they arise.
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying

the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an

amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards complete

satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control

of goods or services.
Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (to specify), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using either
(a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount, depending on
which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the transaction
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty

associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting periods and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting periods.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss in the period they incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share based payments to directors and employees are measured

at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at the
grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting conditions
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the

revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

accumulated losses.
Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share based payment transactions with parties other than
directors and employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the services. The fair values of the goods or services received are recognised
as an expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve),
when the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render services,

unless the goods and services qualify for recognition as assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling

them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated profit of loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and it is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The
reasonable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.



b B BB S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. K65 A B A R W
M2 AR (w0

WE P €1 st SR 2 B KA B ()
H B Y5 2 B IH

sy wt B A EEE R 2 BOE Y T E
AZBRERIAAMR EFECHEMAELERZ
BOEY A G - MIBERE G AEE
B R EB BT R A Y B R
P W S B 0 T 41 B B B o 2 A O AR 0 R
A > T FE DA B 7 3o R0k - 8 A A
BOEY BRI > R RITAT
EHAG 2 GV IR EZ S & B S
Wi 1] 2 AR -

il A W 2 P 2 2 2R

VLN 2% B R R e 2 2 B Al sk > e i i R
filt 5 A BT B IR 2K 2 At T 2 AR U AR T RE
N o A R 2 A R TR (R R
K-

HE W Bk e P B 2 T A T A T

7 SR AR 0 I A e A U T ol il
RRCEE Y e e P R E: L KRR L
17 DU 52 B R A5 BRI AS AT e Tm] > S E i B
AR B A SRR A o AR A U S o Y U
SR Q5 ik Tl IR e % R B R JEL 22 8 {2 A
R H BT o e TE V) BRLOA A s AN ] - B AT BR) 22
RN 52 280 M WK TR 2 MR T % % il w5 B
] 2 9 M M 45 488 A - 7 2 I ot L o0 5 8
i 48 R A AR B 8 5 i A R B AR R
A S IR AR A T T KRR - BLAT T UL A
HIT B P A 5 A (8 40 B o BT A R Rl A
R < REAE AR R R M 4T

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model are recovered

entirely through sale is not rebutted.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimation of recoverability of loan and interest receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loan and interest receivables
based on an estimate of the recoverability of these receivables. Provisions
are applied to loan and interest receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of loan and interest receivables under HKFRS 9
requires the use of estimates and judgement. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
receivables and provision for impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. The Group uses judgement in making assumptions
and selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used

are disclosed in note 47.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible asset

In determining where goodwill and intangible asset are impaired, an
estimation of the value in use of CGUs to which goodwill and intangible
asset has been allocated is required. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The value
in use has also taken into account the key assumptions used by management
including growth rate, budgeted revenue and gross margin. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.
As at 30 April 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill is nil (2019: nil), net of
accumulated loss of HK$25,720,000 (2019: HK$25,366,000). As at 30 April
2020, the carrying amount of intangible asset is nil (2019: HK$34,600,000),
net of accumulated loss of HK$41,900,000 (2019: HK$7,300,000).
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5. Wi 5. REVENUE
BE R FENH =1 HILEE For the year ended 30 April 2020
(a RBABZEFALHWEMNSE (a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
—EoBE BNk
2020 2019
T T THs 7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(B HE )
(restated)
FHERBEAMRAREF GHWE Revenue from contracts with
customers from continuing
operations:
SR SR etk TR SR I 2 5 - MG B Contract revenue in respect of
FH A B R 2 & Kl i scaffolding, fitting out and other
auxiliary services for construction
and buildings work 92,690 134,261
GEEHER Assets management business 2,034 4,881
94,724 139,142
R E H AR Z WA - Revenue from other sources:
R E T A Loan interest income 44,792 40,361
5 48 408 T 15 AR 45 Total revenue from continuing
operations 139,516 179,503
CRORE —E U
2020 2019
T o0 T IT
HK$’000 HK$°000
(S
(restated)
T 5 8 T A WL 2 W Timing of revenue recognition
from continuing operations:
i IRF [H] Over time 94,724 139,142
He 1l 587 T S A0 A0 T FT R R SR E AR AR Revenue from contracts with customer from discontinued operation of securities
H %7 A& #8048 £5457,000% 00 ( —F—JuiE: brokerage and margin financing business amounted to HK$457,000 (2019: HK$803,000)
803,000%5 7T ) J7 4% g [iH] B 7 LA #fERR - are recognised at a point in time.

—Z—ZH44%  Annual Report 2020 133



Ao B U 25 A W
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S.

e 28 (a0

BEZFZTFENA =1 HILEE ()

(b)

REFHEZBENEF GHZ BT

PR R A TR OIS F#
15 R HAth 4 B R 5

AR T 2 R A R R AR AR AR B R
N 8 e L A i B R S o A1 AR 4R
A SR T — T E - i a% A
iCHR T IRF b RS A SR A RS R
iy TR — B TR ] A 22 PG — TR O BRUAE: -
ZEHERB R E RIS E L
Wi B R AR 5 2 B R

B EHEE

F A A S 40t 2 A R RES > T R
[F] B A S =2 A A 4R R PR ) ) 4 5 i
% B PR Y B B IR B B I ] e
o WEE MR ALALEBMETIRE &
7 B 1A ] A2 T 20 EE AR AR O o A S
A ) JE 4 30 Y T RS A F AR IR AR AR T
IR AT HE R A T MR 5 S AR B A« A
WA B P AT AL SR A E AR C R i
AT BEAS & i B E R [m] o B A RE R B
B o AW R B F B R AR A
03 30 - T 2 B2 A B B 4 30
A5 AR 230

134 Em#zRARAR  WLS Holdings Limited

S.

REVENUE (conTINUED)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers from

continuing operations

Scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction and

buildings work

The Group provides scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services
for construction and buildings work. Such services are recognised as
a performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these construction services based

on the stage of completion of the contract using input or output method.

Assets management business

Assets management services to customers are recognised over time
as the Group provides assets management services and the customers
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the
Group. The assets management income is charged at a fixed percentage
per annum of the asset value of the accounts under management of
the Group. The Group is also entitled to a performance fee for certain
accounts when pre-set performance target for the relevant performance
period is met. The performance fee is recognised when it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the revenue recognised will not
occur when the performance target is evaluated on an annual basis
for each of the account. Management fee is normally due on account
opening date and the subsequent anniversary date while performance

fee is normally due at the end of the relevant performance period.
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5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 30 April 2020 (Continued)

() RARILREBNEFGHNZBEHET (c) Performance obligations for contracts with customers from
discontinued operation
i B AE KR A [l B Securities brokerage and margin financing
A AL [ ) & P B A RE SR AR AT M0 T R The Group provides securities brokerage and margin financing services
B RS o 76 S5 KR AL S AT TR R 2 4 Ui to customers. Commission income from securities brokerage and margin
ALCHTHEZREENE -7 financing is determined at a certain percentage of the transaction value
o3 PR - 3 R BB AT HOMERR 2 0k of the trades executed and is recognised as income on the date the trades
A o Bk I B 32 ) 3 T4 A Wi o2 - 5 R &S are executed. Normal settlement terms are one or two days after trade
B E R AR EMK- date, unless specifically agreed with counterparties.
d) RHEEBW-BWERBRZFFGHS (d) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation
BEEBTHEAFML CRBTRES RE (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) for contracts with customers
A1) Z 2 5 T B e v WAL it 2 300 e ) that remain outstanding as at reporting date and the expected
mE: timing at recognising revenue is set out below:
SROEE SERE
2020 2019
T#5t T#IT
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRase s Continuing operations:
B SR vk T AR PR A e 48 - RS 38 % Scaffolding, fitting out and
LA wiy B IR S other auxiliary services for
construction and buildings work
—FR Within one year 283,168 103,485
—AE DL AE R R i W A More than one year but not
more than two years 28,444 33,175
LY More than two years 1,511 2,041
Fatss Total 313,123 138,701
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R S I H At il B IR B > (i) 15 B (i)
RSP K (iv) B B - R 5%
53 F0 8 i AN [ AT 2 B T BN R AR R S IR
W > e 43 B 4 B o

WE_F _FHENA =+ HIEFE
o s d TR £ A3k FE b il 8 e 5 LA 22 4% i %
W BB M5 — OF 2 50> A5 2 0 i it B 587 o0
TS o B 5% 4 MR AR A T A0 i 09 B R
HREB R | SRR L E A %5
e 75 14 TR ) AT o TR G DR B e T
MAEENBEREERE - BHE T - LFENA
=T HIEFEEZ MRS ERD T UES -

T R A Y 23 T R I N 4 R O R AL R AT R
B E ACEES T Tin Y I Y- P e
B 20 S A B R 13) A T s
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating and reportable segments based on the
reports, reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM?”), that
are used for resources allocation and assessment of performance focusing
specifically on the revenue analysis by principal categories of the Group’s
business and the profit of the Group as a whole. For the year ended 30 April
2020, the Group has four operating and reportable segments — (i) scaffolding,
fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work, (ii)
money lending business, (iii) securities investment business, and (iv) assets
management business. These segments are managed separately as they belong

to different industries and require different operating systems and strategies.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the other auxiliary services for
construction and buildings work was presented together with scaffolding and
fitting out services as a new reportable and operating segment. In the light
of contribution of such services to the total revenue of the Group and their
nature of businesses, the CODM focused the resources allocation of all the
services as a whole as it will facilitate a better view of the Group’s overall
performance. The corresponding segment information for the year ended
30 April 2019 has been restated.

The segment information reported does not include any amounts for the
securities brokerage and margin financing business which are classified as

discontinued operation and described in more details in note 13.
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BREFF4LNA =T HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results and segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results and assets and

liabilities by operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 30 April 2020

BRERREE TR
SO
Wik B R
Al o oy e
Scaffolding, fitting HHERE BEEN
out and other [ e *% E3i
auxiliary services Money Securities Assets
for construction lending investment management Mt
and buildings work business business business Total
Tt Tt Ttz T Tt
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HERE: Continuing operations:
Wi REVENUE
ot External revenue 92,690 44,792 - 2,034 139,516
Hthlesi & (B18) Other gains and (losses) (1,217) (57,146) (17,193) (2,038) (78,194)
AT R AR BB R Impairment loss recognised
in respect of intangible asset - - - (34,600) (34,600)
A Other income 259 100 1,129 74 1,562
A5t Total 91,732 (12,254) (16,664) (34,530) 28,284
SR Segment result (9,639) (38,599) 9,386 (38,761) (77,613)
REMEZ A TEES Fair value changes on investment
properties (8,080)
B B R 2 Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 81
AMEER B AER Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill (354)
VEN TV E TPy U Loss on disposal and write-off of
property, plant and equipment (25)
A& RA Finance costs (9,795)
FARZAFRA Unallocated corporate income 653
FARZ AT Unallocated corporate expenses (18,858)
FRBL A Loss before taxation (113,991)
REZZRENA=TH At 30 April 2020
B ASSETS
i Segment assels 50,646 498,250 53,533 326 605,655
AfA LIABILITIES
A Segment liabilities 94,888 78,363 2811 2,765 28827
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6. VBEP (a0 6.

a3 vl WL i B S A DA B gy BB A I SR Segment revenues and results and segment assets and liabilities
(#) (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

BEZZJLENA =+ HIEEE

For the year ended 30 April 2019

ARERBEIR
REMESE
BRI
HAh i B
Scaffolding, fitting BHE BEEH
out and other 8T Eais £33
auxiliary services Money Securities Assets
for construction and lending investment management it
buildings work business business business Total
Tt T T T T#T
HK$'000 HKS’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(BT (BEF) (B H5) (5 (BHT])
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
RERE: Continuing operations:
Yagi REVENUE
ESpI External revenue 134,261 40,361 - 4881 179,503
A & (B#) Other gains and (losses) (54) (11,993) (18,354) - (30,401)
BE YIS Al 2| Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill and intangible asset - - - (32,666) (32,666)
JeueA Other income 197 2 - 776 998
At Total 134,404 28,393 (18,354) (27,009) 117434
AHESE Segment result (7.206) (1,882) 4,120 (29,585) (34,553)
REMELATEED Fair value changes on investment properties 410
HEWE W RS2 Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 80
W3 BB k2 i Rk R Loss on disposal and write-off of
property, plant and equipment (28)
MERA Finance costs (8,565)
FARZARRA Unallocated corporate income 900
FARZ AT Unallocated corporate expenses (8,364)
B Loss before taxation (50,120)
REZ-RENAZTH At 30 April 2019
B ASSETS
AERE Segment assets 58,274 478426 87,632 40,062 664,394
ffd LIABILITIES
g i Segment liabilities 79,206 56,927 475 775 137,383
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results and segment assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the years ended 30 April
2020 and 2019.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment results represent the profits earned by/loss
from each segment without allocation of fair value changes on investment
properties, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, impairment loss
recognised in respect of goodwill, loss on disposal and write-off of property,
plant and equipment, finance costs, unallocated corporate income and
unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for

the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources

between segments:

. all assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments other than
investment properties, certain right-of-use assets, certain deferred tax
assets, certain property, plant and equipment, certain prepayments and

deposits and other receivables and certain bank balances and cash; and

. all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating segments other
than certain other payables, certain lease liabilities, certain tax payables

and certain other loan and other borrowings.
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6. & B s 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
A 53 5B & B Other Segment Information
BRERRETR
i P
Hi%BR
S 6 00 B¢
Scaffolding,
fitting out and L8213 B
other auxiliary fREH *#% 1%
services for Money Securities Assets
construction and lending investment management KaE fFis
buildings work business business business Unallocated Total
i Fit Tt T T Fit
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

PIAGHEA A FHEE AN HESER  Major amounts included in the measure
AWEEMEKEH: of segment results and segment assets
from continuing operations:

REZZZZENA=FHLEE  For the year ended 30 April 2020

BARRY Capital expenditure (2,104) - - (1) (83) (2,238)
VES AT b Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (4,039) - - (10) (539 (4,588)
MR ESE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (1,771) - - (897) (150) (2,818)
fEREEEREER Tmpairment loss of right-of-use assets - - - (2,038) - (2,038)
RENEZATFHEED Fair value changes on investment properties - - - - (8,080) (8,080)
HENE- B Rt Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 81 - - - - 81
AR R Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill - - - - (354) (354)
W W R 20 S RARER  Loss on disposal and write-off of property,
plant and equipment - - - - (25) (25)
DATEHARGZ RERL Fair value loss on financial assets
ATEER §H at FVTPL, net - - (16,785) - - (16,785)
HELATEI ARG SBEE Loss on disposal of financial assets
va i at FVTPL - - (1,008) - - (1,008)
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6. 4 HbE R a0 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
ot 43 FR &R (a0 Other Segment Information (Continued)
RRERBELR
Rltmpsg.
HEBR
SR R
Scaffolding,
fitting out and A BEE
other auxiliary fEEEH 5 E4
services for Money Securities Assets
construction and lending investment management AR st
buildings work business business business Unallocated Total
T T Tibx T T T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
(FHE5) (FHE5) (HE) (HE) (HE5]) (&5
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

FIAGHRAE RSB M2 HESKK  Major amounts included in the measure
AREENEREH: of segment results or segment assets
from continuing operations:

KREZZ-NWEMAZTHIESEE  Tor the year ended 30 April 2019

BAMNL Capital expenditure (3.384) - - - (105) (3.489)
VEN T T Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (6,569) - - - (546) (7,115)
RENEZATEED Fair value changes on investment properties - - - - 410 410
ENE- B k2 Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 80 - - - - 80
W& W R 20 S RARER  Loss on disposal and write-off of property,
plant and equipment (28) - - - - (28)
UATHIABEZ SREREL Fair value loss on financial assets
LYHEER B8 at FVTPL, net - - (24.467) - - (24467)
BEUATHEI ARG 2BER Gain on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
valeil - - 6113 - - 6,13
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical segments

The geographical location of customers from continuing operations is based
on the location at which the services were provided or the goods were
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-current assets is

based on the physical location of the asset.

W 2% 5 I il B ¥ R
Revenue Specified non-current assets

CERORE —E U R ORI —E-UAE

2020 2019 2020 2019

T T T T T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(R ) (% H )

(restated) (restated)

T Hong Kong 139,516 179,503 60,030 72,760
FEREFEH Information on major customers

WE_F_FHEWA=THILFERE A LM
M= 2 (2T JUE W) AR R A4
JE A 2R 10% DL B R ETT 2L 5 o AR B
SFEEEF P30 as p IR

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Group had transactions with one
(2019: two) customer who contributed over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year. A summary of revenue earned from these major customers is set

out below:

SECEE E N
2020 2019
Tt T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AE B A LR TR R Revenue earned from scaffolding, fitting out
BT 28 4 72 ~ K 2608 K L A il B and other auxiliary services for construction
JIR 5 BT A5 U 4k and buildings work:

®F— Customer 1 66,599 57,444
®KFE Customer 2 7,930 22,344
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7. HAtA 7. OTHER INCOME
FEKE BIERE s
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
ZRIRE CT-NE ZRSRE F-UE ZF0FE ZFNE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

T T T T T T
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$000

HEA Rental income 432 673 - 225 432 898
EMBRRA Management fee income 60 790 - = 60 790
HMESE A Sundry income 514 378 59 6 573 384
FEIRA Interest income 1,206 43 174 19 1,380 62
AN i i - R AR Foreign exchange gains, net 3 14 - - 3 14
2215 1,898 233 250 2,448 2,148

8. Hfttwesi & (fE548) 8. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated

“RURE CFOAF CRORE CFOAF CRORF CF AR
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

T T T T T T
HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000

WATHFARGEZ SR EE Fair value loss on financial

ZATFEREH B E assets at FVTPL, net (16,785) (24,467) - = (16,785) (24,467
HE DA FHEFABEZ (Loss) gain on disposal of
SHEEZ (EH) lE financial assets at FVTPL (1,008) 6,113 - = (1,008) 6,113
REEERAEER Impairment loss of right-of-use
assets (2,038) - - - (2,038) -
R Bl it T 51 Net impairment losses
BT (WEFR) f38 o) ok (A (recognised) reversed arising
FE R - from ECL on:
— REd &R E - Loan and interest receivables (57,146) (6,303) - - (57,146) (6,303)
— BER K ~ Trade receivables (832) 1,442 - = (832) 1,442
~AHEE — Contract assets 23 701 - = 23 701
JRE Wi T 2 i T 4 [l Reversal of write-off of trade
receivables 1,099 - - - 1,099 -
BRVEE Z WO Reversal of write-off of
contract assets 200 - - 200 -
JRE M ek 2 R Write-off of trade receivables (1,707) (2,197) - = (1,707) (2,197)
JRE A A B 2 Write-off of loan and
interest receivables - (5,690) - - - (5,690)
(78,194) (30,401) - - (78,194) (30,401)
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9. @l WA 9. FINANCE COSTS
FEKE BIERE s
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
SEOE CT-AE CRCE CFAF DR0EE TNk
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Tt T Tt T Tt Tl
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ATIE B RARATE A E Interest on bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts 2,974 2,448 - - 2,974 2,448
Mo e S HoA B Interest on other loan and
other borrowings 6,536 6,003 - - 6,536 6,003
MR A RE A E Interest on obligations under
finance leases - 114 - - - 114
HEAHEZHE Interest on lease liabilities 285 - 66 - 351 -
9,795 8,565 66 - 9,861 8,565
10. BiIH 10. TAXATION
RS RIERE Fski
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
SRORE CFAE CRCFE CFAF CRORE TNk
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Tl Tk Tl Tk Tl TikT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BIH A4 : Taxation comprises:
FHFHH Hong Kong Profits Tax
AR Current year charged 554 414 - - 554 414
DR AL (BAHME)  Under(over)provision
in prior year 64 (85) - - 64 (85)
AR A Deferred tax
AEE (%) Sl Current year (credited) charged (9,598) 134 - = (9,598) 134
DU AF B R Overprovision in prior year (6) = - = (6) =
(8,986) 463 - - (8,986) 463

R E =/ FEZA -t —H  FHB A EE
i QOITEBLH (BRT) (579%) kil 5 %)
(MBI L) > 51 AR 45 Bl W &l o 3% 1 6
HRERTE - EZA T FNHEEEER
S A B T o B RSB AR S > & B ks
& A8 192,000,000% JC Vi ] 19 B R £58.25% »
1M 48 #8.2,000,0005 7G i 1| H BL % £516.5% ° AN
5 45 M A5 B SR 00 45 1 BT 2 v P A
¥216.5% 2 &t — Bl R BB
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On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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10. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The Directors considered the amount involved upon implementation of the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Loss before taxation is reconciled to taxation in profit or loss in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss from continuing operations as follows:

ZERRAE —E-4E
2020 2019
Tt THs T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
(K3
(restated)
A& [ 5 A8 £ 8 1 R B i S 48 Loss before taxation from
continuing operations (113,991) (50,120)
FiHR B W) 1A R B ) 2 BRI 2 BLIH Tax at tax rate applicable in
the relevant jurisdictions (18,809) (8,270)
AL 2 B S 2 B R B Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 9,494 11,173
DR RRBL 2 A 2 BLFS 3 2 Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (4,972) (4,999)
T WERR 2 BTG 18 2 Bl R 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 5,523 3,294
e 5 08 A NI o i 5T 2 o T s 48 2 B S Tax effect of recognition of tax losses
previously not recognised - (59)
) 2 AT S A il R 2 B T i 18 2 BRS  B Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (219) (406)
TlE 2 208 1 37 oA Tl 5 2 Y IR 22 B 2 LS g Tax effect of recognition of
temporary differences previously
not recognised 124 -
DIAE AR BE A S 2 B BRI Under(over)provision in prior year 58 (85)
T S il ol 2R 2 Tl S S Tax effect on two-tiered tax rate (165) (165)
ol JE {5 2 Tax concession (20) (20)
AR BE AR R AR 1 B IR Taxation for the year from continuing
operations (8,986) 463

0 S O IHL 2 538 Y AR O B R 38

Details of movements of deferred taxation are set out in note 38.
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11. #HFREEME 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EHFME (a) Directors’ emoluments

952 % ) GEM b i B ~ 2 w] e ] & 556226 Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

AT (Y EETEF A A R O R to the applicable GEM Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the

o AT B R R A AF B 22 B An Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap.622G), are as follows:

B~ HG R B A
HhH Al LT
Salaries, A Contribution to A 4
#4  allowances and Discretionary retirement Total
Fee  benefits in kind bonus  benefit schemes emoluments
T Ti#n T T T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REZRORE For the year ended
YIS N 30 April 2020
BfES Executive Directors
3471 So Yu Shing - 3,168 75 - 3,243
(Note) (Bfik)
Rl sk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca - 1,836 60 11 1,907
L% Kong Kam Wang - 979 30 18 1,027
R So Wang Chun, Edmond - 696 38 35 769
e B4 it Yuen Chun Fai - 698 50 18 766
BvkaTES Independent Non-Executive
Directors
B Law Man Sang 120 - - - 120
M Lam Wai Yu 120 - - - 120
I Lo KaKi 216 - - - 216
Bt Total 456 7,377 253 82 8,168
B 5 - Note:
BRI AR LR E ZF FEN ] = H R ERE The emoluments received by Dr. So Yu Shing for the year ended 30 April 2020 included
e 3 F) I < 6L A 4 B R 3t B0 £ 5 R 720,000 housing allowance of HK$720,000 provided by the Group.
IE 0
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Frd R Bk
WA aF LK
Salaries, FfEfEA Contribution to AT 4
4 allowances and Discretionary retirement Total
Fee benefits in kind bonus benefit schemes emoluments
Tt T T T#T THT
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
BEZZ0LE For the year ended
PUH =4 H kA 30 April 2019
HiTE S Executive Directors
B So Yu Shing - 3,124 400 - 3,524
(Note) (Ff&E)
R Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca - 1,803 350 18 2,171
L% Kong Kam Wang - 962 90 18 1,070
B So Wang Chun, Edmond - 656 43 33 732
I Bt g Yuen Chun Fai - 834 90 18 942
BEpsES Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Bk Law Man Sang 120 - - - 120
M Lam Wai Yu 120 - - - 120
I % Lo Ka Ki 216 - - - 216
At Total 456 7,379 973 87 8,895
BT Note:

BRI LR E F— UM A = H R E
WS T < L A AR 4R 4 04 £ B HE 720,000

I ©

(b) T I w6 B O B

WE _F_FFEWHA =+ HILFEE AEM
hEAmEHEMALEFE =8 (ZF - JLE:
VU7 ) AR s m R LN A A b AR
AMBBRRGE(2) c AFEER T WA (2
T— U4 — %) BR IR AL ] 98 JR AT BLAR

The emoluments received by Dr. So Yu Shing for the year ended 30 April 2019 included
housing allowance of HK$720,000 provided by the Group.

(b) Five highest paid employees

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the five highest paid individuals
included three directors of the Company (2019: four), details of whose

emoluments are set out in note 11(a) to the consolidated financial statements

above. The emoluments of the two (2019: one) remaining individuals who

are neither directors nor chief executives of the Company for the year are as

2N L2 FHE s follows:

“ROEE FONE
2020 2019
T o0 THs 7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
3 4 S HoAth A A Salaries and other benefits 1,714 781

AR B E R Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 36 18
1% fE AL Discretionary bonus 45 35
1,795 834
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11. EH KIEBME w0

(b) HAERHMER (8

RN 44 e BN £ (N JEBE ) 2 35 Ak
AR -

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

The emoluments of the two remaining highest paid individuals who are not the

Directors are within the following band:

SECRE CFNUE
2020 2019
% 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 1

T AE A A > AR A R A g AT ] S R ST T
T 4% e 190 I 2 S AT AT P 2 A 2 A A
A5 T B0 A IR 22 5% Y A 2 G A O
AL AT 4 o

b SO R B AT I A B A
O R B A G T S ) R

ESCHT R B 8 S IR AT T N 2 R A B
U8 A T = B R o

ERLERZMELEATIZRALEER RS
SEA RN R B R w] R i 8 O T A

PR DEER E-FFEMA =1 H %
I BLHE S TT N7 DLAT B HE S sz ok 2
PE T E S B A2 N 2 B HE A B A 28
Gy Gk o

WE _F_FFEWH=1THILFEE AL
AT T o (o e el L 7% A 2 1 I S AR
e HE T ) % B HE o U JBCHE W B O R A
R A R M R4 -
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The Group did not pay any Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
any emoluments for inducement to join the Group or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office, and none of the Directors has waived

any emoluments for both years.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and

the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as Directors.

Discretionary bonus for Directors and employees were determined with
reference to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, there are no loans, quasi loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of Directors, controlled bodies and corporate

or controlled entities with such directors.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, Mr. Yuen Chun Fai, an executive
director of the Company was granted share options in respect of his services to
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the share

option scheme are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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12, A4 12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
FEKE Bk s
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
ZRIRE CT-NE ZRSRE F-UE ZF0FE ZFNE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

T T T T T T
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$000

AEFERD (GEA) BT Loss for the year has been arrived

B %5 : at after (crediting) charging:
2 M A5 R 2 IR Write-off of long-aged trade
payables (40) - - - (40) -
BTN 42 Auditor’s remuneration
—F AR ~ audit service 870 795 115 80 985 875
— R ~ non-audit service 170 121 - = 170 121
TR B B L 2 A B A Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense 4,624 8,551 - - 4,624 8,551
AT EFIABE Z &M ERE 2 Fair value loss (gain) on financial
AFEREE (k) assets at FVTPL
—HEEE — Held for trading 16,930 10,522 - = 16,930 10,522
— T8 E B AT EF A RS - Designated as FVTPL (145) 13,945 - = (145) 13,945
16,785 24,467 - - 16,785 24,467
VEN: NG K Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 4,588 7,115 231 271 4,819 7,386
AR Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,818 - 467 - 3,285 -
sz BRERA Gross rental income from
investment properties 432 560 - - 432 560
W AFEEETERAZRE  Less: direct operating expenses
WMEFTEE 2 HEREH X incurred for investment
properties that generate
rental income during
the year (120) (279 - - (120) (279
312 281 - - 312 281
BIHA (AEESEME) Staff costs including directors’
emoluments
—HEAH & A EAbE A K - Basis salaries, bonus,
SRR T 313 other benefits and retirement
benefit scheme contributions 40,845 47,990 618 624 41,463 48,614
— ARG EZ FIRI L — Share-based payment expenses 2,801 = - = 2,801 =
43,646 47,990 618 624 44,264 48,614

—Z—ZH44%  Annual Report 2020 149



A 7 S 5 e B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13, I RE

WoE—-NEF A+ B ARE (A
o) BLAEE 2 M = O g A (fE
BEF(TEF)) )R ra & (18 %=
wl) PR A R HAEF S R ETE A
BHRIEBEARNFANHE EEHEAT 2
RO BATRA B EE B 22 G HE
T (TE B RME AR HRE s saa
RIFREEER) ([HMEFE])  HeNRE
£47,000,0005 JC 55 i B B B JE 2 7R 52 B
HMz GEFM A - E-FFWHA=1+H
FAH A H O W = 0E ok 58 B 58 AR
5 B E W T A S P R Y B R (B S AT
FHEREANERELEZA G ([HEE])
RIHEAE) o O B B o ml R —F AR A
= H B A FRE R RN M RE3D)

AW B BB B A1l B o A A 1R AR N HA
A TR A 2R R LR B B E A DA S B
BRI 2 g

AR AL KB R T

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 11 December 2019, the Company as vendor entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with Mr. Tsang Pui Lan
Patrick (the “Buyer”) as purchaser, being independent third party of the
Group, pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell, and
the Buyer conditionally agreed to buy the entire issued share capital of two
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, together with their respective
wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Disposed Subsidiaries”) which were engaged
in the securities brokerage and margin financing business (the “Disposal”),
for a cash consideration of HK$7,000,000 plus the net asset value of Disposed
Subsidiaries as at completion date. As at 30 April 2020 and the date of this
report, the Disposal is not yet completed and completion is pending fulfilment
of the conditions precedent as stated in the S&P Agreement, which include
having obtained the approval of the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC”). The Disposal Subsidiaries are classified as held for
sale as at 30 April 2020 (details are set out in note 31) and are treated and
presented as discontinued operation. Comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been restated

to disclose separately the profit or loss from discontinued operation.

The loss for the year from discontinued operation is set out below:

ZEORE —E -4
2020 2019
T T THs T
HK$°000 HK$°000
i 4 Revenue 457 803
HoAthlie A Other income 233 250
B RATHE Operating and administrative
expenses (6,378) (6,347)
il A Finance costs (66) -
AR FE AL R i 1R Loss for the year from discontinued
operation (5,754) (5,294)

BEF FFENA=+HILFEE AEH
B A% 1 5848 A 508 2605 O T BT L B R
14,505,000 76 ( =& — JLAF : fir /3 Bl & i &=
£57,644,00085 7T ) > 1E 4% & SE G 05 TH BT Bl
i 451,040,000 00 ( ~E— L THB 4
i & £2,885,000% J0) K 7 @l & £ 1w B
53 4 B £53,332,0000 8 ( & — JL4E
) °

e,
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During the year ended 30 April 2020, the discontinued operation of the
Group used cashflow of HK$14,505,000 (2019: generated cashflow
of HK$7,644,000) in respect of operating activities, used cashflow of
HK$1,040,000 (2019: used cashflow of HK$2,885,000) in respect of investing
activities and generated cashflow of HK$3,332,000 (2019: nil) in respect of

financing activities.
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14. &8
MM E —F - FFEWH =+ HIEFER
AR T 22 2 M SRR B B B R W
IR R 0 R R R BT IR (
— U )

7% & 18
I Ik A K 9 s 4R
(a) ZRAREZEERRILESR

AN TR N A A T AR T M 4R T AR
S VM € i

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 30 April 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2019: nil).

15. LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted loss per share
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

SRR —E L
2020 2019
T#0 T#IT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
JH DG g I A R T s 1R 2 AR A T Loss for the year attributable to
PEAT N AL 2 4F ¥ 5 18 owners of the Company, for
the purpose of basic and diluted
loss per share 108,888 51,898
it 4 % H B % H
Number Number
of shares of shares
FH DA B B A gl 48 2 5 Tl e B H Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
loss per share 14,367,101,072 14,367,101,072

A7 58 1 I AR Y L O TR

FH DA S i P 4 s 8 2 2 2 o - 2 B

R 7S B RE AT (8 I MR A4 8 0 g M 48 0 s £ B8
D A A 3 A0 5L 5 g A 4 4R

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

shares in respect of share options 220,649,237 698,532,735
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares for the purpose of diluted

loss per share 14,587,750,309 15,065,633,807

No diluted loss per share is presented for both years since the assumed
exercise of the share options would result in a decrease in diluted loss per

share.

—Z—Z44%  Annual Report 2020 157



A 7 S 5 e B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. BB (=)
A JBE 3 A B 9 0 4 ()
(b) KHBERE

A0 m A NBEAL 2 B Fr AE 8 2 45 R AR

15. LOSS PER SHARE (coNTINUED)
Basic and diluted loss per share (Continued)
(b) From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from continuing

B R 18 T AR BE DA T SRR - operations attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:
RTRE ZE U
2020 2019
Tt TH#s 7T
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
A RS AR AR R T 1R Loss for the year from continuing
operations 103,134 46,604

Jv (5 PR 22 5 Ak B SO A A S R A B e
B T A A ] -

R A I 8 AT (8 S S B S50 P 4 9 s 4
o B AR AR B Y I 2SR A AR 2 A
i 4 24 s 19

(c) ZRARKIEEE

HEFZ FTFENA=ZFTHIEFEE - KAK
1E £ %8 2 B R R s 48 2 45 10,0435 (L (=
F—JLAF B B0.03 73 1) > THARAE AR A 4 1k
488 2 AR Y B51R5,754,0008 00 ( L F— JLAE
5,294,00095 76 ) K b R REuk 2 4y BERHE -

16. & M¥E

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and

diluted loss per share.

No diluted loss per share from continuing operations is presented for both
years since the assumed exercise of the share options would result in a

decrease in diluted loss per share.
(c) From discontinued operation

For the year end 30 April 2020, basic loss per share from discontinued
operation was HK$0.04 cents per share (2019: HK$0.037 cents per share),
which were calculated based on the loss from discontinued operation for the
year of HK$5,754,000 (2019: HK$5,294,000) and the denominators detailed

above.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

T
HK$’000

AR ik FAIR VALUE
WoF—NEHHA—H At 1 May 2018 56,570
TA B %5 TERR 2 T (H 38 Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 410
AR —JAEMNH =1 H At 30 April 2019 56,980
48 5 B AR 2 T D Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (8,080)
RoZ2FEMA=1H At 30 April 2020 48,900

152 ER#ZBERAR  WLS Holdings Limited



B 7 S 5 R B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. B&EW¥E w0

AL 2 AT T N 2R BCEY K
AEBHMERFEEA R EN & AEH
BE W 3 UL P E R EH R 3 A
MRIIE B -

B 26 h TR ERE S A R AR (T3CTH])
(= —JUAF + JOHs i i WA L) A PR W
(T A% 7 1) ) (B A 4 [ S 40 Bl 2 22 8 Sr &
e S SE A R AT ) AT A B - DA O B 4 1
ARATR (NERESER]D) 562 & a0 En
“ECEFERFE-NEFEEA=ZTHBRF
{Ho

SRR E PN S VL REY/E P 3P 8 §E
o P 2 L B IR 2 (P AR DL - A L B AR
BN At (e B0 B8 5 5 AR e Sr A SO 2 Al (7
R AR - AR BCE Y EPT A AP
RTINS =

il 4L 35 7§

Al (B OBAAR A s S Y 0 A SFE TS
F2 T 85 Lk 48 225 IR I 2 T g v]
B g 2 W& LR ) T T e R
14,0037 7T £18,615% 7T ( & — JL4E
9,450%5 JC 217,993 7o) A9 8 18 K &8 R
] S A B I R

P W S b (BT R 3 A Wl A i A R
T RS EH B BB R L B BB R R
T EL R B BRI 2 TR A IR (] 22 B AR A i
4 568 50 28 52 B MR AR o BT T Y RSB AR 22 ) A
W 38 B - E R MR 0 > R 2 R AR -

B 4 B SR A0 A T D 9 A6 9l
M ZFELZE-NFENA =T H &

B ORI DA A T AR 4R G — R AT
& (LM EE42) -

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

All of the Group’s investment properties are under operating lease held for
earning rentals or for capital appreciation purposes. The Group’s investment
properties are measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

Valuation of investment properties was performed by Ascent Partners
Valuation Services Limited (“Ascent Partners”) (2019: Messrs Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”)), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group, to determine the fair value of
investment properties held by Wui Loong Holdings Company Limited (“WL
Holdings™) as at 30 April 2020 and 2019.

In estimating of the fair value of properties, the highest and the best use of
the properties is their current use. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. All of the fair value measurements of the Group’s

investment properties were categorised into Level 3.
Valuation techniques

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong which were
tenanted as at the date of valuation is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot ranges from HK$14,003 to HK$18,615 (2019: HK$9,450 to
HK$17,993) basis using market observable transactions of similar properties

and adjusted unobservable inputs.

The key unobservable inputs used was the adjusted transaction price after
taking into account the difference in location, size, condition and timing
difference between date of comparable transactions and date of valuation of
the investment properties. A slight increase in the adjusted transaction price

used would result in a significant increase in fair value, and vice versa.
There were no changes from the valuation techniques used in the prior year.

The investment properties were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group as at 30 April 2020 and 2019 (see note 42).
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17. Y3 - W5 Bk i

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

i) mLER
R SRE  RHBERMG
Leasehold 7 & ##5 KR Gondolas RE HEREE
land and Plantand  Metal tubes  and related Motor Furniture Mt
buildings  machinery and catwalks  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
T TiT T T T T T
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
A Cost
R-Z—AFEHEH—H At 1 May 2018 9,829 684 29,683 7,362 6,404 8,353 62315
WE Additions = 37 1216 1,302 693 241 3,489
& Disposals = = (930) (3,950) (43) = (4,925)
ki Written off = @1 (89) = = (13) (123)
MEF-AENA=Z+H  At30 April 2019 9,829 700 29,880 4714 7,052 8,581 60,756
TEE 5 i B 5 e ) Transfer to right-of-use assets upon
Bl EEEMHMEERE  application of HKFRS 16 = = = = (4432) = (4432)
WEE-NERA—H At May2019 9,829 700 29,880 4714 2,620 8,581 56,324
NE Additions = 278 517 128 1,135 278 2,336
R — IR BRI A Acquisition of additional interest
HUOMES (I5:23) in a subsidiary (Note 23) = = = = 65 = 65
ik Disposals = (12) (120) = (348) = (540)
s Written off = = = (101) = = (101)
BEHABEHEHELE  Reclassified as assets classified
(Fft3E31) as held for sale (Note 31) (556) = = = = (524) (1,080)
WEEZEFELA=FH  At30 April 2020 9,273 906 30,277 4,741 34T 8,335 57,004
g Depreciation
WoE—-AEHA—H At 1 May 2018 2,835 529 21,887 6,440 3,929 6,583 42203
AR SR Provided for the year 415 80 4778 662 839 612 7,386
8 Eliminated on disposals = = (884) (3,950) #3) = (4,877)
s o Eliminated on written off = 1) (89) = = ) (115)
REFE-AENA=FH  At30 April 2019 3,250 588 25,692 3,152 4725 7,190 44,507
FER AW BTSSR Transfer to right-of-use assets upon
FlORAEREMMEEE  application of HKFRS 16 = = = = ,131) = 2,131
MoFE-AEHA—H  At]May2019 3,250 588 25,692 3,152 2,504 7,190 42,466
RAEE A Provided for the year 369 103 3,169 527 86 565 4819
8 i Eliminated on disposals = @) (120) = (284) = 476)
s v Eliminated on written off = = = (101) = = (101)
THMEEGEREEE  Reclassified as assets classified
(Fi3E31) as held for sale (Note 31) (556) = = = = (278) (834)
MEEZREOAZ4H At30 April 2020 3,063 619 28,741 3,578 2,396 1471 45,874
I i Carrying Values
RZZZZENA=ZFH  At30 April 2020 6,210 287 1,536 1,163 1,076 858 11,130
WEZE=ERA=FH  At30 April 2019 6,579 112 4,188 1,562 2,327 1,391 16,159
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17. W3~ M5 Bk i (w0 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

W ZFEZRERZE—FMA =+ H Leasehold land and buildings with net book value of approximately

U THI 15 1 476,210,000 70 ( = F — JL4- 4 A HK$6,210,000 (2019: HK$6,579,000) have been pledged to secure general

=1 H 16,579,000 70) & i L EEFEE banking facilities granted to the Group as at 30 April 2020 (see note 42).
HEAEIR AU 2 T A L B ) — SBLRATRLVE (5

Bf5E42) -
18. f3 FiI HE & & 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
LiBE/ES WL A
Leased properties Motor vehicles Total
T#T T T#IT
HK$’ 000 HK’000 HK$°000
W FE—JAELA—H As at 1 May 2019
% T (L Carrying amount 1,322 2,301 3,623
RERZRENWA=+H At 30 April 2020
G T F Carrying amount 5,614 1,971 7,585
BE_FZ EFWA=+H For the year ended 30 April 2020
L} 4F B
rEE M Depreciation charge 2,348 937 3,285
A B E K B & W% Expenses relating to short-term leases and
ok e QI 2B 1695 H H AL E! other leases with lease terms end
1218 H R &5 R R S within 12 months of the date of
AR 5 2 B X initial application of HKFRS 16 3,626 = 3,626
& 2 B4 A0 Total cash outflow for leases 6,045 1,142 7,187
TS0 2 i RE Additions to right-of-use assets 13,810 607 14,417
AR EREEE Reclassification as assets classified
(B 5E31) as held for sale (Note 31) 5,132 = 5,132
Bl 52 W (B R 18 (BT ) Impairment loss recognised (Note) 2,038 = 2,038
Mtsh: E - _FFENHA =+ HILFERE BEFE Note: During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Directors determined that the assets
EEEEMER R XAER ABAGELB management business was underperformed and would not generate cash inflow
WA G AR R R EEAN B in the future. Accordingly, the right-of-use assets related to assets management
P E TS AH T 0 PR AR (o e (E M 4R business were impaired based on the assessment of the Directors. Impairment loss
2,038,000 JG £ 74 48 £ ffE 72 o of HK$2,038,000 has been recognised in the profit or loss.
A (G T A R Y 2 HOE R B A E R For both years, the Group leases offices and warehouses for its operations.
B - BRI E AN BRI E &AW E 2 Except for short-term leases, lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
HHBR 2% 25 DM AR o A A [ A R O A A B R AG two to four years. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
R AEE B 0 BRIRE - 8% T A 4 1 E 26000 8 E the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
£ #0758 T BAT YRR determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.
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18. 16 FH BE & &8 (m)

7% B [ S A R A T S A A o ﬁ/\#
FEOFFENA = TH A EREH AR 30 April 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
LA PR SR AR 4 R AR B BH S TR b S 4 of short-term leases to which the short-term expense included in rental and
TR EREHG RS -

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

The Group entered into short-term leases for offices and warehouses. As at

related expenses and disclosed in above.

A TE CFAENH = H o A 4 [E] 3 4 T 5 As at 30 April 2020, the Group has no lease with variable lease payment. The
T B A5 2 ) R B o AR 5 Bah o 17 40 i o A {7 {5 lease agreements do not impose any extension or termination options which
T Hﬂ 2'—‘% 911 AR A R AT 2 S R are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessors.

H bR -

A ZFRFEM ] =+ 0 A T R S As at 30 April 2020, no new lease contracts entered by the Group which have
R B G TR R G 4 not yet commenced.
A > A ] 2 R B B A 1,971,000 5T In addition, the Group’s lease liabilities of motor vehicles for the amount of

DA A0 8 R 11 = HK$1,971,000 are secured by the lessor’s charge over the right-of-use assets.

7 & 19. GOODWILL
T
HK$’000
%N COST

AT NFEEH—HE-F—JLFENHA=+H Atl May 2018 and 30 April 2019 25,366
HT o8 0 — [ B J > B E R (B 5E23) Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 23) 354
AZEFEMA=+H At 30 April 2020 25,720

WA IMPAIRMENT
W FE—NAELH AR ZF—JU4EMA=Z1TH At 1 May 2018 and 30 April 2019 25,366
AR AR FE T e R 8 (B i 1R Impairment loss recognised for the year 354
W oEFAFEMA =+ H At 30 April 2020 25,720

W THi AE
REFFENA=1H

RZFE—EMA=1+H

A T T R B A R R S R 21
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CARRYING VALUE
At 30 April 2020

At 30 April 2019

Particulars of the impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 21.
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20. L& @E

20. INTANGIBLE ASSET

A% 4 LR
Broker License
T
HK$’000
B AR COST
AZE—/ERLA—H ZF—JLFEMA At 1 May 2018, 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2020
=+A L -FE FENA=Z+A 41,900
WA IMPAIRMENT
WE-NELH —H A _F—LEMH] =1+H At 1 May 2018 and 30 April 2019 7,300
AR AR i ER A s 18 Impairment loss recognised for the year 34,600
WZEZERENH =1 H At 30 April 2020 41,900
i Tl CARRYING VALUE
BoROEENA=1H At 30 April 2020 =
hoE - LEMA=1H At 30 April 2019 34,600

TV G 5 AR AT B IR o A8 AT B IR AT A AR T
R A B A - SRR S A 4R IO 4 A A
M A RE T AN AT 3 o A SR IR B O ST
B T 85 KO AE R A TS BT AR
RSB TELIUY L Ty A 4 I A B v R R
ST Sl A T A L PR o

PRI T 8 A AL T R A 25 0 B A YR R
A R A A AT B I LA R AR e AR
O T 2 PR E T T AR 0 o A
J > #56 H0 B IR AR O AT R B B HOWT iR
807 By A A7 90 B0 ol o

e TE2 7 ol (L W sk AT R S R 21 -

The intangible asset represents broker license. The license can be renewed
every year at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the license continuously and has the ability to do so. Varied
studies including market and competitive have been performed by management
of the Group, which supports that the licence has no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the license are expected to generate net cash flows for the
Group.

As a result, the license is considered by the Directors as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The license will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an

indication that it may be impaired.

Particulars of the impairment testing on intangible asset are disclosed in note
21.
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21. 7R M HL S BR w fi A A )
H T8 B A 2 A B

-

W (E B M B RE 19 K20 B A E
P 2L A B 2 e e L PR a4 2
BEEECHREREETMETRAH 2 H 4
B A LA o

ME-FZ FENWA=Z+HILEE #HHix
i o B B ISR B A A Y Y
W(E o M T 7 B (1 4R 4 Bl 534,600,000
J6 (=% — JL4F £ 7,300,000% 7 ) B 48 %5
ERR o

BE F FENA =+ HIRERE BEE
TS A 0 R R e (- (S 1R
25,366,000k 7 & A 18 £5 i RE

AN B EE23FTRE AL AL E B T Sk E
B 5y I b T A 4R R AR 45 A
Wi J H fE B P EE354,0000 I o Y R AR
WA=+H BEERALKEE S EHRBEAR
FE> B A G A B4 WA TR A - Ot e A
299 (B 5 15354,0009 IC ©

B B P SE S A B 2 B4 R EEL A 2 Wl
o] 4 B 2 AR UE G A SF 2 A B AR wR AR 2k 4
T

7% B 4 B AR LI AT i (] 4 A OO R AT R
{EwE0A R 2 o A7 B R 08 R AR B 40 48 2 g ik
T TR 25 R AR 0T Y S TG D R R AR
P9A = B R 14.00%( & — JL4E
15.10% ) i 72 19 B 4 i & T IAE - 5 F AR 30
NP RRAEET (FE—JLFE 1 5%) > )
RIEE G E NGRS KRBT S
K 201956 1R 975 B 96 5% 2 0 Ak FHAS o B fil
JAAE(E A H Al R R B SR A B4
o CEIEEE A K ERR) WA EE R -
HRMEI I REZR S EA RN RERE
o 55 B T ST 3 0 R 0 TE I BT A S o R
BB AT AT 5% S5 B BT AT A B T RE AR )
S B B 4 i AR B A R T A T
1 [ 4 o
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSET WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible asset with
indefinite useful lives related to assets management business set out in the
notes 19 and 20 have been allocated to CGU related to assets management

business.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Directors have consequently
determined impairment of intangible assets directly related to assets
management business. Impairment loss of intangible assets amounted to
HK$34,600,000 (2019: HK$7,300,000) has been recognised in the profit or

loss.

During the year ended 30 April 2019, goodwill related to assets management
business had been fully impaired and impairment loss of HK$25,366,000 was

recognised in the profit or loss.

As detailed in note 23, the Group acquired additional interests of an unlisted
equity investment which engaged in jewellery trading business and goodwill
of HK$354,000 has been recognised from the acquisition. As at 30 April
2020, the Directors considered that the business of jewellery trading was
underperformed and would not generate a net cash inflow in the future,

impairment loss of HK$354,000 has been recognised against the goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the CGU related to assets
management business and their major underlying assumptions are summarised

below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based on a value in
use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management cover a 5-year period, and discount rate of
14.00% as at 30 April 2020 (2019: 15.10%). The revenue growth rate during
the 5-year period is nil (2019: 5%) which is based on the management’s
estimation regarding human resources capacity, future business plan and
impact of COVID-19. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on the CGU’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market development. The
management determines that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its

recoverable amount.
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT

SECEE CF N
2020 2019
Tt T#s T
HK$’000 HK$°000
T /NI & < ¥ N Costs of investment in associates:
JE b Unlisted 200 200
BB A A B 1% i ) % fath A Share of post-acquisition profits and reserve 380 380
580 580
W B E R Less: accumulated impairment loss (580) (580)

TR AL AR A A Z R IE

as follows:

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are

EBRMER A i i O 4R B
T i) 4 18 Form of G 2 Proportion of equity interests and FEEHK
Name of associate business structure  Place of incorporation voting rights held by the Company Principal activity
“EORE “E-0E
2020 2019
Hi il % B k3
directly indirectly directly indirectly
BM Technologies Limited 2 ML KEARANS (EBETAHE])) 36.36% - 36.36% - BEHR
Incorporated British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) Investment holding
EREHARAT FEM AL Hif - 36.36% - 3636%  CHEER
Waui Chun Building Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Dormant

(b) REEAVFZHESR (b) Interest in a joint venture

A 4L E A — [ & %8 /A A Favourite Number
Limited (— [H] % 5 J88 4 77 5% BF 55 ok 1 Al Sz 19
AN P A3% ( ZF — JLAF 1 43% ) AR RE
fit o TEE A F543% 50 ([£50]) (33505
(B o AR4E A 2wl i o > A 4 [ B 5y — 44 i
TR ] 4 4 A s F I S B R -
REEANFREE ZF FAFE R FE—JLFE
MO = Bk AR B R B A S sl M
AR BT 3R o N Y AR R

The Group holds 43% (2019: 43%) equity interest with investment cost of
United States Dollar (“US$”) US$43 (equivalent to HK$335) in a joint venture
named Favourite Number Limited, which is a company incorporated in BVI.
Based on the joint venture agreement, the Group and another shareholder
jointly control over the financial and operating policy of the joint venture.
No financial information of the joint venture has been disclosed in these
consolidation financial statements as the joint venture did not commence
business during the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019.
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23, $B AP AR T A il % 1 WY

23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

fn Z HEf2 T H
—Bo®E SR
2020 2019
Tt T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
AW E TR A S (K ika) Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (Note a) 2,761 4,650
FAPEFIAZ I E a4 Unlisted investment funds at fair value
(Fff5EDb) (Note b) 6,494 6,596
FEEHBE A VE (FgEc) Unlisted investment at fair value (Note c) - 332
9,255 11,578
R o AL N IHE Analysed for reporting purposes as:
JE B Non-current assets 9,255 11,578
it & Notes
(@) bl BT RABCE R AR b s e (a)  The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of entities listed

(®)

(©)

%A PR Y R R R Ay R SR 0 1
FoER OB EN G TRSEIRER
YA RN R N E I

AEFFER SR SUENA =T HEL
WHREREWAFHEHC S EREEEZ ES
R i O R A3 0 A T S o R
MR > BOE IR 4 2 Ik BN BT 2 3L 69 08 1
DSBS B 5 B Sl 2 R R 2 e
fg

bl R b T R AR AR AR B R — R
5 S ST M RL N AR 2 e A R
— \AE L — BRI A v S R A
FOWRIE R DR S LARE
Rl R /A G| N L T e <
—JUVEWH =4 H o AREE R IE E R
BERE A 49% 2 A BE 25 o A A 42 [8] 317 4
FI A B 4 A& MR ok 2 A B
W o S ek bR e BT
RBEAR B A 4 ) 2 W 8 ) o A T — JUAR
ToHA—HAEEC KRB HEEEE SN
JE LTI A K T BRS5 19 B HE > B4 (U
55,1008 0 R F—NET A —HE
{8 1 48 F5349,000 7T > 42 48 £5354,0009 7€ 2
PR M fE R o i R R R B LR AR
£ [ 11 A B A T o
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(b)

(c)

in Hong Kong. These investments are held for trading and held for long-term
strategic purposes. The Directors have elected to designate these investments as
equity instruments at FVTOCI.

The fair values of the unlisted investment funds as at 30 April 2020 and 2019
have been determined by reference to the quotation provided by the fund manager
of the investment funds at the reporting date. The Directors believe that the
estimated fair values provided by the fund manager of the investment funds are
reasonable, and that is the most appropriate value at the end of the reporting
periods.

The above unlisted equity investment represented the Group’s equity interest in a
private entity incorporated Hong Kong. The Directors elected to designate these
investments as equity instruments at FVTOCI at the initial application of HKFRS
9 on 1 May 2018. As at 30 April 2019, the Group indirectly held 49% equity
interest in the unlisted investments. The unlisted investment was not regarded as
an associate of the Group because the Group had no right to vote at both meetings
of shareholders and directors of such private entity relating to the financial
investing and operating decisions. On 1 December 2019, the Group acquired the
remaining 51% equity interest in the unlisted equity investment which engaged
in jewellery trading with cash consideration of HK$5,100. The net liabilities
as at 1 December 2019 was HK$349,000, goodwill of HK$354,000 has been
recognised. Subsequent to the acquisition, the entity became a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group.
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24, W KA B 24. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

SRORE CFNE

2020 2019

Tt AR P

HK$’000 HKS$’ 000

R i R R S Loan and interest receivables 536,489 502,133
W5 B R ﬁx‘ﬁ Less: Allowance for credit losses (74,047) (41,056)
462,442 461,077

2'—‘ A2 190 R o ] 7 ) e B T 3 1) B % L B % The exposure of the Group’s fixed rate loan receivables to interest rate risks

HEHBW A W - and their contractual maturity dates are as follows:
SROEE DERE
2020 2019
T# T Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000
— A R B 3] 310E Amounts fall due within one year 151,218 57,066
B — AR AR N OH Amounts fall due within one to second year 101,899 128,817
B TUAE FGE AR TR B 3 3K OHE Amounts fall due within second to fifth year 209,325 275,194
462,442 461,077
AR B R R B R B AL At the reporting date, loan and interest receivables consisted of:
ZEORAE —E-u4E
2020 2019
Tt T#s T
HK$’000 HK$°000
DIAE R AAE AR 2 450 Amounts secured with guarantor 20,688 34,134
DLE IR VR 2 480 (B sEa) Amounts secured with securities (Note a) 123,870 135,996
AP AR 2 &8 (f5ED) Amounts secured with properties (Note b) 6,217 -
I 2 43 Amounts unsecured 311,667 290,947
462,442 461,077
B 5 - Notes:
(a) AR S Fy g sc i A R 2 R o (a) The securities are ordinary shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
(b) A ENIN - (b)  The properties are situated in Hong Kong.
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24, EWEZ LA B )

AR RENH = A H o AR5 B E R
) B A B L5 7 S O O TR T AR
#)7%16,171,000%5 7C ( —ZF — JL4F 31,992,000
W TT) 19 IR K > H H #93,265,0009 7T (=
ZF— JL4E 1 1,693,0009 JT) %841 4 k308 >
#1242,000% 76 (% — JLAF © 4,033,000% 7T)
O A 30 H {H AN B 90 H > #1416,000%
TE—JLAFE 1361,000% C) B 6 4 1 90
HERBE®H180H > £11,481,000% 7C (&
— JLAF £ 25,905,000 7T ) 481 ] M 180 H (A
Kﬁi@lﬁyﬁéfwm,oooﬁéﬁ (= F— LA
f) Cm AR - R RR S m o0
EWEWEE KB 2 5 B E R O OKE T &
W% A% B ) R A 180 H Y ME U B SR R B B
5 B R

T AR A = A B K R B
W T (B 60 45 2 RS B 38 45 574,047,000 45
JG (= F—JLAF 1 41,056,000 7€)

REEZ FFENA = HIRE R B
A5 3K I R B A BT &9 7 A B a2 B R SR
BN FEETSEEISE (—F—JLF 6.5
JH %24)F)
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24. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 30 April 2020, included in the Group’s loan and interest receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,171,000 (2019: HK$31,992,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date, of which approximately HK$3,265,000 (2019: HK$1,693,000) has been
past due less than 30 days, approximately HK$242,000 (2019: HK$4,033,000)
has been past due more than 30 days but less than 90 days, approximately
HK$416,000 (2019: HK$361,000) has been past due more than 90 days but
less than 180 days, approximately HK$11,481,000 (2019: HK$25,905,000)
has been past due more than 180 days but less than 1 year, and approximately
HK$767,000 (2019: nil) has been past due more than 1 year. The Directors
consider credit risks of loan and interest receivables that are past due more
than 90 days have increased significantly and those past due more than 180

days are considered as credit-impaired.

Included in the carrying amount of loan and interest receivables as at 30 April
2020 is accumulated allowance for credit losses of HK$74,047,000 (2019:
HK$41,056,000).

During the year ended 30 April 2020, loan and interest receivables were
charged on fixed interest rate mutually agreed between the contracting parties,
ranging from 7.5% to 18% (2019: 6.5% to 24%) per annum.
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25. TEAT 3K E > ¥ 4 B i E IR 25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

WK JH RECEIVABLES
TE A 3~ e S A ESGKIH Z FEIB R Details of prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as follows:
TR TR SR JUF
2020 2019
Tt T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRTELKME AR —2ES Loans to staff and a director of a subsidiary
(BE3E) (Note) 347 1,014
RN Prepayments 1,580 1,070
¥ 4 Deposits 1,174 2,053
FEAte s B IH Other receivables 5,592 5,377
8,693 9,514
YR & o M 2y DL N JE E - Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Ik it By Non-current assets 755 1,596
it B A Current assets 7,938 7,918
fifsk: R oF FHEMA =T H T EERY A Note: As at 30 April 2020, all of the loans are non-trade nature, unsecured and
I T VR I 4 R R e R repayable according to repayment schedule. Except for HK$27,000 which is
$:27,00045 JC 2 6 240 i —F — JLAE I A interest-free, all other loans are interest-bearing at fixed interest rate of 3% per
= H > A AR R [ 8 A A #3% s annum as at 30 April 2019.
IS
26. JEWHR 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
TR R ZE— U4
2020 2019
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R 81 45 JE T A5 1 i TR 3K Trade receivables from
— R E s TR R 2 — Scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary
F4 H  REHAE B At il B IR S services for construction and buildings
(Fft5Ea) work (Note a) 28,657 39,565
— B SRR A M AT R FNE SETHS (B sEDb) - Securities brokerage and margin financing
business (Note b) - 4,003
28,657 43,568
W A5 B T A Less: Allowance for credit losses (1,451) (1,449)
27,206 42,119
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26. JEWCIE K (s
Wi 3t

(@)  BEA AR Rk TR LA AR R A o B
o FC AUl B ARBS 1 16 5 4 A 0 & R R A 2 A
R T AR B AT B 45 B A RT ) 2 A B
42 A3 o 7 i 35 0 R 7 98 5 1 R B
15 B s SRS A 2 R O B R 23 T A T

26.

Notes:

(a)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (conNTINUED)

The credit terms given to each individual customer of scaffolding, fitting out and
other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work were in accordance
with the payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The ageing
analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of allowance for credit losses is as follows:

ERORAE ZEUE

2020 2019

Tk Tk 0

HK$’000 HK$’000

90H A Within 90 days 24,092 31,781
91-180H 91 to 180 days 731 2,539
181-365H 181 to 365 days 381 793
R 1A Above 1 year 2,002 3,003
27,206 38,116

AR RAED A = H o AR S R R K
#E AR IR N IR H ) ) R AR AR 1 (40
%43,330,000% 76 ( =& — JL4F 1 6,335,000
JG) MU IR K - N % F E M WA B R 40
3,086,000 It (& — JL4E : 3,796,000 7C)
EL 78 A 4 o0 H > (H NG R W B 4T > Th i
A R% S5 BROE Y 5 RN B K s ) B
AT B A 2 T AR o A 4 O NI A0 sl 5% 5 465 R 4
AT AT o

B ka2 T d AR B F a5 R el AR SR AL 4
FAH R 8 B H A B IR B 2 I i R 3K A
17,738,000% 7 ( —%& — JL4E : 918,118,000
e 0 ) O KA 1 2 32 T AR 42 I — A SR AT
BZAER-

1 7 A 5 R TAR SR A L - M %
6 T H A iy ) G255 2 M oS R L 374 2
15 > HOR W4T
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As at 30 April 2020, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,330,000 (2019:
HK$6,335,000), which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, approximately HK$3,086,000 (2019: HK$3,796,000) has been
past due more than 90 days and is not considered as in default as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered

recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables from scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services
for construction and buildings work of approximately HK$17,738,000 (2019:
approximately HK$18,118,000) are set out in note 42 have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables of scaffolding, fitting out
and others auxiliary services for construction and buildings work are set out in
note 47.
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26. JEWCIE K (s

(b)

A 8 AC % T R B B 2 B IR AR
FAE R (331 o 5 A G 5 F71F
T T R R A A T L R 2
Wi BBk 2 % R W A 28 B HAR2R

MRE-FZRFEMA =+ H R AFEHFEL R
T TR il 2E 755 IR AU MR > T R AR 2 (B 2
JRE i Kk T 4% > £9533,0009 8 (& — JLAE -
4,003,000%5 76) - H A WG R EF 2 ik
% %om%m ZE — JUAF £ 3,824,000

Jt) 2 1E £5234,0009 00 ( . F — JL4F:
%yﬁmwﬁngﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁ
HEMBLHY BEGB L TRAD IR RS
%ﬁm%%uﬁf%ﬁﬁﬁ7fuiﬁﬂ$
10508 (=& —JLF 10.58) 5H & - i % T
%P DAL B IR %%%Fﬁm \BREEE D)
BT R BRI 5 5% 5 AT e B 3 [ e 4 A
RIS ( ZF—JL4E 15H) 518 - 5 gt
THREZFFRILELIGHE P REE - &K
f 3 IR O AF A B IR A B IT R EE
Bl B R & 5 LR S A s o AR

@TM%%%%Z%W%&%M%%HE%
J5 A 2 A ] A 2 R A
WEZFZRERZF - NFHA =+ HIE

ﬁ@TF»MﬁM%%N@&H%@%%%
TR B I T (M 4R A A o

p A B I T FF R A R IR A AR 2 100%
(= E— LA 1 100% ) J5 HE Wit A 48 B 1K 11
JR% P 22 B - WA A ) T A AR PR
MEFERN —F FFENHA =T HAFHEL
234,000%5 76 ( — % — JL4F 1 10,851,000%5 7T
2% PR 5 A A o B K 44 B
e R DL B R A R AN WA L
TR 2 W] AR o 35 8 W8 I RS A0 AT R LB
W 2 MR B R L AR 4 T I M AE AME
F o PRSI 48 4% 5 R 5% 0 AT

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (conTINUED)

(b)

Trade receivables from the securities brokerage and margin financing business are
classified as assets held for sale (note 31). The normal settlement terms of trade
receivables from securities brokerage and margin financing business which are
included under assets classified as held for sale are 2 days after trade date.

Trade receivables from securities brokerage and margin financing business, net
of individually impaired receivables, amounted to approximately HK$533,000
(2019: HK$4,003,000), of which trade receivables from margin clients amounting
to HK$35,000 (2019: HK$3,824,000) as at 30 April 2020 are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$234,000 (2019: HK$93,345,000). All
of the pledged securities are listed equity securities in Hong Kong. The margin
loans are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date and carry at fixed
interest rate of 10.5% (2019: 10.5%) per annum. In respect of margin loans lent
to client for allotment of Initial Public Offering (“IPO”), such margin loans carry
at fixed interest rate of 1.5% (2019: 1.5%) per annum. Securities are assigned
with specific margin ratios for calculating their margin values. Additional funds
or collateral are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin
value of securities deposited. The collateral held can be sold at the Group’s
discretion to settle any outstanding amount owed by margin clients.

No impairment loss allowance have been recognised for trade receivables from
securities brokerage and margin financing business for both of the years ended
30 April 2020 and 2019.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 100% (2019: 100%) of the total
trade receivables from margin clients which are due from the Group’s five largest
margin clients. The whole amount is secured by clients’ pledged securities
with the fair value of approximately HK$234,000 as at 30 April 2020 (2019:
HK$10,851,000). The Group believes that the amount is considered recoverable
given the collateral is sufficient to cover the entire balance on individual basis.
No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of business of
securities brokerage and margin financing.
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27. BRI E R 27. CONTRACT ASSETS
R oR TR A F— L
MA=+H /WH=+H
At 30 April At 30 April
2020 2019
F#oc T IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
2 H 2 4 B R i TR BR R e Contract assets from scaffolding,
&~ R 5 15 B B fl v Bh IR B fitting out and other auxiliary services
HRIEE for construction and buildings works
Gy KT By T - Analysed as current:
APHE 55 (M5Ea) Unbilled revenue (Note a) 5,642 2,828
MEW AR 1E 4 (Bff 55D ) Retention monies receivables (Note b) 2,355 2,368
7,997 5,196

BRI -

Notes:

(a) ARG E R B s T A SEE i T 2 T (a)
AHL 1 A BR R AR A B AR A R > DRI 2
HBMERERFE T EMAEMERN G4 T
AR5 Al VEE B B TR E A% sk o156 3
R RS o B A BRI A S AR IR (3
WAL R F ARG % T
B H) TR B RS ) A 2 MR R K

(b) A A A B R (] A A ) % B (b)
0 I - JE 1 A 2R A ORS A8 R b B
I 5 < #4015 3 T A 00 M S o SR T <
PR ) 10 2 S A0 1 IS 03 2 R WS A o B Wi R
W] < 7% SR~ EL D B 8 1 &4 ik B 3
A 0 465 R i [ o A B [ S 90 R 46 45 0 4

A7 AL T HE A o

AEEMZECHEEIBRRBEE T
P A S5 T T 30D JFG A O U T 5 B

GHE-

WE EE42 BT Y = F FAFEWA =+ H > %k
B A R TR (M e A s RS B
D e Al il B IR B 0 G %0 7 49 55509,00095
JC (. — JL4E 1 554,0008 7T ) B BIK IR A
PP A 2 — R SRAT A E M SR

B # BT BA AEL fl E  RORS Bf 47 -
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As at

Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents the Group’s right to
receive consideration for work completed but not yet billed because the rights are
conditional upon the satisfaction by the customers on the contract work completed
by the Group and the work is pending for the certification by the customers or
external surveyors. The contract assets are transferred to the trade receivables
when the rights become unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group
obtains the certification of the completed contract work from the customers or
external surveyors.

Retention monies receivables included in contract assets represents amounts not
yet billed to customers which is conditional until the expiry of defect liability
period in respect of scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services contracts.
The retention receivables are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional. Retention monies receivables are unsecured, interest-free
and recoverable at the end of the defect liability period of individual contracts.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because the Group

expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

30 April 2020, contract assets from scaffolding, fitting out and other

auxiliary services from construction and buildings work of approximately
HK$509,000 (2019: HK$554,000) which are set out in note 42 have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Details of the impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in note 47.
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28. # &

28. INVENTORIES

SROEE TN
2020 2019

T oo T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

JE KL R Raw materials 451 357

29. &P ALEH AR £ Z 5l
¥ &

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

TRTRE “E L
2020 2019
Tt TH#s T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEEE A L IRAEH Hong Kong listed equity securities held for trading 22,686 25,907

6B RN FEF ARG Z Investment in convertible bond designated as
AR I 2 B FVTPL - 14,855
22,686 40,762

E i A AL N IHE Analysed for reporting purpose as:

i ) & Current assets 22,686 40,762

TR R B A (B T AR AR S R S B
1 € -

H 7 a0 T (AR A B3 2 T W 2 4
o T (A S O 0 A
S GO ) AT A 0 D 2 R M =
FUEMA =+ B2 AT AT EEHR
2 A 5 W 347 -

THBRESRIRE F BENA = A I
I

30. ST AN E
BRATEE B R B & — S5tk P

A% B2 ) A R AT MRS A A4 252,000 00 (-
T — JL4E 1 9,633,0004 70 ) 2 M8 5 B> DL
HEEBRBETIHAEEFES AEFID
il 58 B A FR B 5 5 T oAt A B 5 5 DA B A
R 14 D R B ST B K R » AN 4 (B 35 WG I 4
B U5 S M A5 R K B BT A AT SRR B 2 R
il AT A

The fair values of listed securities are based on the bid prices quoted in active
markets in Hong Kong.

The valuation of investment in convertible bond designated as FVTPL was
performed by Messrs, Ascent Partners, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group, to determine the fair value of the bond
investment as at 30 April 2019. Details of the fair value measurement is
disclosed in note 47.

The convertible bond matured during the year ended 30 April 2020.

30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances and cash - trust account

The Group maintains segregated accounts with an amount of approximately
HK$2,000 (2019: HK$9,633,000) with authorised institutions to hold client
money in the normal course of business. The Group has also recognised
the corresponding trade payables to respective clients and other respective
clients and other institutions. However, the Group does not have a currently
enforceable right to offset those payables with the deposits placed.
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30. SRITHEBRABE w0
MITHEBABRE ——RIER

SRAT &5 0 B B4 A 15 A 4 1 o 15 2 B 4 R
FH 2 =W A 8L R 2 A R AT IR K e 4R
T8 R A T0% 2£0.38% (. F —JL4E 1 0%
F0.26% ) 2 F G5

3. A E AR EEE &
gﬁ%@&%%%ﬁ%z
415

Al PR R 13 BT R AL o A 2N W RT AL E o kL
H 1 o R R A R A R B SE R B R
Ao “ERENA =+ H EHEARYE
SRR VLR S

Mo ECRENA=Z+H-EHC WAL A
FAT7,000,00095 I 1F £ 4% 4 (B 5E32) - E F
TE I H AT AT ] RE S R e (B E
ST o — JE S P R TR AE ) > 3R R A
AU 120 A R SE R B I B A
EHEEER N EAREREEE MBI &
5l B R i R AR A = H 4
A BEFS IR L3R AL B TE R B E Bl
mr:

30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)
Bank balances and cash — general accounts

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank
deposit with an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 0.38% (2019: 0% to 0.26%).

31. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

As detailed in note 13, the Company entered into the S&P Agreement to
dispose of the subsidiaries which engaged in the business of securities
brokerage and margin financing. The Disposal is not yet completed as at
30 April 2020 and up to the date of this report.

As at 30 April 2020, the Buyer had paid the Company a sum of HK$7,000,000
as deposit (note 32). The Directors expect it is highly probable to obtain the
approval from SFC as required in one of the conditions precedent contained in
the S&P Agreement, and the Disposal to be completed within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. The followings are assets and liabilities
of the discontinued operation that have been classified as assets held for
sale or liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale and were
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 April 2020:

“EoRg

2020

T

HK$’000

L ENN N Property, plant and equipment 246

il R ¥ Right-of-use assets 5,132

TE AT K B~ e 4 T L Ath BB iRk Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,345

JHE W HEE 3 Trade receivables 533

SRATH R M B & —FatIEF Bank balances and cash — trust account 6,259

SRATHE B M Bl — — IR Bank balances and cash — general accounts 24,072

SRR B Total assets classified as held for sale 37,587

A HR K B L At R A 25 T Trade and other payables 6,938

& AR Lease liabilities 5,097
SRR FEAE B A B 2 AR AR Total liabilities associated with assets classified

as held for sale 12,035
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W Ak R ik B L Al JE A5F ik JH

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

SROBE SERE
2020 2019
T#5T T#IT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T3 4% 5 2 AT R Trade payables to

R A8 A0 T R L S Securities brokerage and margin financing business
—BE&RFREEF (Kika) — Cash and margin clients (Note a) - 9,177
AT (M5Ea) — Clearing house (Note a) - 21
m%%h%A Fitb) Other trade creditors (Note b) 8,549 10,097
JREASF M 3k A Total trade payables 8,549 19,295
A A B I Other payables 5,880 3,584
o B S TE O s (B RE3T) Deposit received from the Disposal (Note 31) 7,000 -
i i Accruals 6,820 6,245
JARE AT R 2 R JEL At JRE AT 35 T 4 A Total trade and other payables 28,249 29,124

(a) IR AR AL BT R R G ST 2 E A IR K K A
E%{Jm TEONRE B R A 1 B Y A AR B 2 B (T
FE31) o wE S AS A0 M T R A 2 AR 2
fFER B 2 &5 5501 5 28 5 H 82K ok 1 81 45 4
Frith ez BB RS 2 - Bl R IF R B P 2
JRE At B 3 20 i B R M 2 - S A W O S A AT
JR T G 2 MR R B IR 4 b I 4
FEAME B o RO Sl 0 B 5 R A M e A R
TERENHA Z+H AR AT 2 RS ER R
R B Bl G AT R B P O R R A 2 A5 7E %
%vﬁﬁ“%ﬁ > I A B 3K £96,825,0009

T F LA 19,198,000 7T ) T ZH [ B 4
&%%Egﬁu&%ﬁ;%miﬁo%ﬁﬁ>$;%
T IR ST 4 T B 5% 4 I A< B KB T A A BRI
B 2 o B AT REF o

(b)  LATR 2% HA B2 5 fETHE N 2 JE Ao MR AR 4 9

Notes:

(a) Trade and other payables from the securities brokerage and margin financing
business are classified as liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sale (note 31). The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business are 2 days after trade date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing house. Trade payables to cash and margin clients are
repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
Directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of securities brokerage and margin financing business. As at 30 April 2020, trade
payables amounting to approximately HK$6,825,000 (2019: HK$9,198,000) were
payable to cash and margin clients and clearing house in respect of the trust and
segregated bank balances received and held for cash and margin clients in the
course of the conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not have a
currently enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits placed.

(b) The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables to other trade creditors

H 1Y AR 84 43 A7 < based on the invoice date:
TR R ZE U
2020 2019
Tt T#IT
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
90 H A Within 90 days 5,472 7,214
91-180H 91 to 180 days 622 1,110
181-365H 181 to 365 days 2,455 1,773
8,549 10,097

|7t A B K 2 7 205 BRI A - 30 R 290K -
$%@EM¢%%R% HHOR WA

JREASF S TR £ B 0 R0

within the credit timeframe.
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The average credit period ranged from 30 days to 90 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled
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33. AAAME

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

TR R L4
2020 2019
T#x Tt
HK$’000 HKS$’000
RE RS TR Amounts due to customers of
WG 2 15 B B ik il Bh M 5 1) ME A & )5 3k 0H scaffolding, fitting out and
other auxiliary services for
construction and buildings work
AT B T B Analysed as current 9,097 4,655

TSI A A 4 ) IE 7 2 2 0 s A R A0
BB RE A

HE-FZ FENA=Z1THILEE KAA
B Sk TREPEAEAN e s - BB R H
by ol By IR S U A (CAERDEE A B &) B S8R
/43,815,000% 70 ( — % — JLAFE © 12,406,000
JC) o

%0 O R A0 R0 B — B A K
Pk E

Ty R T TR SR AR R RS R
Lt al 3l e B5

fief A 4 7 e 2 5% ) B A T ARG OB
A Rl B 4 BRGE BR A B I I
AR B R B AN B A A A SR A Ui AR
B RGeS 1k -
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Contract liabilities which are expected to be settled within the Group’s normal

operating cycle, are classified as current.

Revenue from scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for
construction and buildings work during the year ended 30 April 2020 that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounted to
HK$3,815,000 (2019: HK$12,406,000).

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction and
buildings work

When the Group receives upfront payment or cash advances from its
customers before the construction activity commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the

relevant contract exceeds the amount of the cash advance.
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES

=
2020
T# 5t
HK$’000
JHE A AL 5% 2 i Lease liabilities payable:
— 4R Within one year 5,084
A — A > (B 3 W AR 2 0 ] Within a period of more than one year but not more than
two years 3,836
T P A o (H S A T AR 2 0 ] Within a period of more than two years but not more than
five years 305
9,225
W ) B TE R AR 2 E R — A N A Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year shown
Z FKIE under current liabilities (5,084)
FE VLT B IH T AR 2 R — AR R A 0 Amounts due for settlement after one year shown
Z #KIH under non-current liabilities 4,141

35. flE M2 R i

35. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

R ARAH £ 4F 3k

Minimum

lease payments

B ARFH %

i KB
Present value
of minimum

lease payments

SEJUE CF
2019 2019
T T#IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R 4% Pl AL 46 TR AR 2O Amounts payable under finance leases:
— AR Within one year 1,018 952
—EWER Within one to two year 766 739
W2 HAEN Within two to five year 275 270
2,059
AR N I < g Less: future finance charges (98)
LRI 2 B Present value of lease obligations 1,961 1,961
R SN B P @) Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
(R E B EIH N 5R) current liabilities (952)
A — 4% B A OA Amounts due after one year 1,009
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35. BhE M A R w0

T E—JUENA =+ B A E AR R G
HAMESL TRFE-FHHEENNF=2
PO4E o i = —F — JUAEM A =+ B L4 B
B MRAE F R A T3 83 525328 o Fl R T &
)1 I 5 o BT A FE 43 DL B RO R
L3 48 )t 8 98 L 4 9 RRT 7 A HE o AN 42 1
A SRR o AT AL A A AT (R o

A 42 ) 2 TS AH AR L AN SRR
7 J7 AR AT

TR JVER A — H O AU R R
o JI A 1658 % > A 4B BN il B R A R 3
Mo AHEAR

36. SRAT B KRATIE X

MoFZFERLE-NUFENA = H 8
TTEERBITEXURERZ ARYE &
TREWCR T A T A A E RO AR
PRAE HE A o 1] 301 R A5 K IH 75 DL K B ok BT
TR EROH B R

W R ZRER ZE—NFMH=Z+HH A
£E [ i A SRAT IS B S BRATIE S H— R A &
AR T A ZEAR R (T W RATIR ZEHRE D) Jm
1.5 B T 95 0 fi 18 SR 3R (T e 1O % )
A5 i B EOR) SR 1 1) VR B AR R R G o AL
B SR AT i B J SRAT 43 S Y B IS OB 2 o [ 4 4R
F2R3.34)H 225258 ( —F— JUAF - 4 F] 22,83
JEZ538)H) o

SRAT A A M ARAT I W 2 KA 2 S RO
BfsE42 o

A S [ T A SR AT A B S SR AT 9B I R BOR
R BN — R -
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35. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(CONTINUED)

As at 30 April 2019, the Group leases motor vehicles under finance leases.
The average lease term ranges from three to four years. For the year ended
30 April 2019, the effective interest rate ranges from 3.83% to 5.32% per
annum. The interest rate is fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent
rental payments. The Group has options to purchase the motor vehicles for a

nominal amount at the end of the lease term.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases were secured by the lessor’s

charge over the leased assets.

Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 at 1 May 2019, the Group reclassified

obligations under finance leases to lease liabilities.

36. BANK BORROWINGS AND BANK
OVERDRAFTS

As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, bank borrowings and bank overdrafts were
secured by the Group’s self-owned properties, certain trade receivables,
certain contract assets and the Company’s corporate guarantee. The amounts

due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

All the Group’s bank borrowings and bank overdrafts carried variable interest
at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”) plus 1.5% per
annum or from Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (the “Prime Rate”) to the Prime
Rate minus 1% as at 30 April 2020 and 2019. The effective interest rate for
the Group’s bank borrowings and bank overdrafts ranged from 3.34% to 5.25%
per annum (2019: 2.83% to 5.38% per annum).

Details of the pledged assets for the bank borrowings and bank overdrafts are

set out in note 42.

All of the Group’s bank borrowings and bank overdrafts are repayable on

demand or repayable within one year.



b B BB S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. HoAth 8 5k B H A £ B
ol f S0 A S 98 4T 2 B

RN AR E W EA RS A BERLS
Al (T&#)) i F— /4FERH+ 2 08T
7R 4 F8 F554,000,0009 G 0 T2 8 £ 8JH 2 W 4F
WEFE S BT i AR R SE R R LI
DL SRR ZF— AR LA 2 H BT
B B4 2 A R A AT R - 2
ARG REE S H B H BUR o A AR
&S5 BEAT H AL — 4 1% 2R B2 i I A
#o

BEF FRENA =+ HILERE SR
SE—UETA ARSI REE
{H £520,000,000% 7C > 22 5 448,58 2 =4 I Ik
T AR > FUY AR A S R R R
o M5 Z5 Fr AT AN 0] BRGNS SR B8 AT H O — 41
% 4R B i

HoAh B 2K — K 4 BB R BRI 1 AR R R
B12)JE (& — JLAF 9508 ) 1) — 4F ] &
348,000,000 0> H it —F — JLiE A
Bty o VRS IS B G AR Rk B

D A B R A B AT (T

R il R A B < U 2 4 A 0D OR 2 R T
35 M R 4 Bl 2 BUAE R E ) LR T (R R

2% S T 7 A 5 2 B A £ 5 04 28 0 3 R
{2 — 4 O o

38. WuEMIHEEE (A1)

37. OTHER LOAN AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Other borrowings represented the coupon bonds issued by the Group.

Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited (“Gold Medal”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued a 2-year 8% coupon bonds in the principal
amount of HK$54,000,000 on 12 September 2018 which were secured by
the Company’s corporate guarantee to refinance the 2-year 4% coupon bond
issued by Gold Medal on 12 September 2016. The whole principal amount
is repayable at the date of its maturity. The bondholder may request early

redemption of the bond after one year of the issuance date of the bond.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, a 3-year 8.5% coupon unlisted straight
bonds at a nominal value of HK$20,000,000 was issued by Gold Medal on
28 October 2019 which were secured by the Company’s corporate guarantee.
The bondholder may request early redemption of the bond after one year of

the issuance date of the bond.

Other loan represents a 1-year loan of HK$8,000,000 which fell due on
27 December 2019 and was extended for another one year by a financial

institution with 12% (2019: 9.5%) interest rate per annum.

The Directors consider the fair values of the other loan and other borrowings
are determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period,

approximate to their carrying amounts.

All other loan and other borrowings of the Group are either repayable on

demand or repayable within one year.

38. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

“EORE ZEUE

2020 2019

T TF oo

HK$’000 HK$’000

AL ol I Deferred tax assets 9,874 188
R 3 5t IH £ i Deferred tax liabilities (365) (283)
9,509 (95)

—Z—ZH44%  Annual Report 2020 173



A 7 S 5 e B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. MAEBEE R (AK)

(%)

B 7y A% SR B AR A BE RO 1 4F BE A TR 2
EIEBIHE R, (FfE) #8) :

38. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(CONTINUED)

Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group during
the current and prior years are as follows:

& e £k K
Bz
o 32 At YL B 5 i 0 s 4 928
Accelerated  ECL provision of
GREY E] tax  loan and interest At
Tax losses depreciation receivables Total
TH T T T T T TH T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
HoE—N\FHA—H At 1 May 2018 123 (84) - 39
RAE G (KEE10) Charged to profit or
loss (Note 10) - (134) - (134)
AZE—JUFENH=1H At 30 April 2019 and
KZF—JLFELA—H 1 May 2019 123 (218) = (95)
FEAHEEHEE10) Credited to profit or loss
(Note 10) - 175 9,429 9,604
ATETEENA=+H At 30 April 2020 123 43) 9,429 9,509

A TEEEN A =B R R R
A& s A 1Y e B R A A S 2 R B A B JE S 1R
HHFE B #£7238,340,0000 06 ( —F — JLAFE
204,866,000% 7T ) > F 7 A A& i A AR R 2 R W]
AP E - 2 £9237,591,0009 00 (—FE— L
A1 204,117,00095 70) 1 oK HE 58 24 4 4E Bl I8
BE-RKBARAKLE R ABIEERLD
238,340,000% 7C ( — & — JL4F : 204,866,000
JC) AT e R A 4 o

W E CEFFENA =+ H AL EA A
A B R 2R v R R R B B TE s R 5 A
255,208,000% 7 ( =& — JLAF : 216,443,000
I ) > R AR AR T R A IR 2 R AT FE I R
#1254,459,0005 76 ( =& — JL4F 1 215,694,000
W50 ) M A e RR A AR AE B JE G A o R ) B
TE 65 1 £9255,208,000% 76 ( = F — JL4F
216,443,000%% 70 ) 7] 48 R 0 &5 s
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At 30 April 2020, out of the total unused tax losses arising from continuing
operations of approximately HK$238,340,000 (2019: HK$204,866,000) that
are available to offset against future profits, approximately HK$237,591,000
(2019: HK$204,117,000) have not been recognised as deferred tax assets
because of unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused tax losses
arising from continuing operations of approximately HK$238,340,000 (2019:
HK$204,866,000) may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 April 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$255,208,000 (2019: HK$216,443,000) that are available to offset against
future profits, of which amounts of approximately HK$254,459,000 (2019:
HK$215,694,000) have not been recognised as deferred tax assets because
of the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused tax losses of
approximately HK$255,208,000 (2019: HK$216,443,000) may be carried

forward indefinitely.
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39. A 39. SHARE CAPITAL
Hf CROERE CRORE i (8 “E-NE “ENE
Par value 2020 2020  Par value 2019 2019
#7 it % T B ¥ THL
HK$ No. of shares HKS$’000 HKS$ No. of shares HK$'000
iy Authorised
RHEA—HREA=1H At 1 May and 30 April 0.01  40,000,000,000 400,000 0.01  40,000,000,000 400,000
CHITRAR Issued and fully paid
RHEA—-HREA=1H At 1 May and 30 April 0.01  14,367,101,072 143,670 0.01  14,367,101,072 143,670

40. A2 W) B IR Bt R 40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

A 2 W e R Z IR U R B R

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

mr: Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
CRORE —E U
2020 2019
T o0 T#s T
HK$’000 HK$°000
I I By & E Non-current assets
LES & Property and equipment 8 -
M A F 2 AR Investments in subsidiaries 396 396
404 396
B & Current assets
TA AT K T~ e 4 e H Ath iRk A Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,139 365
JREE W o Jog 2 ] R A Amounts due from subsidiaries 70,854 704,108
SRAT & R Bank balances 19,481 6,228
91,474 710,701
Wit B £ 1% Current liabilities
JEAS B g 2 ) kA Amounts due to subsidiaries 18,694 38,595
HCAth JRE A5 R IE Other payables 7,535 276
26,229 38,871
i B R Net current assets 65,245 671,830
B A Total net assets 65,649 672,226
JBE A B gk i Capital and reserves
i &N Share capital 143,670 143,670
it fhi Reserves (78,021) 528,556
HE 4 48 %1 Total equity 65,649 672,226
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40. A2 v B8R B # (a0 40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

o ) fi 2 : summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
Apv B ENT A f the C ’ foll
i 15 HHRG I ke Al
Share Contributed Share option Accumulated ok
premium surplus reserve losses Total
Tk T Ti#T Ti#T TikT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
REZF-NELA—H At 1 May 2018 560,230 191,087 7,280 (227,072) 531,525
AAEERBRLAH LA Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - - (2,969) (2,969)
REZZ-ENMA=ZTH  At30 April 2019 560,230 191,087 7,280 (230,041) 528,556
JBe i 50 BH AN Ji I ik AiHE#R
Share Contributed Share option Accumulated ok
premium surplus reserve losses Total
T Tz T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
REZZ-NERA—H At 1 May 2019 560,230 191,087 7,280 (230,041) 528,556
AFEEHEAE L BH Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - - (609,378) (609,378)
B FCHE SR Lapse of share options - - (7,280) 7,280 -
AR IR B BB AT 3 Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment - - 2,801 - 2,801
REZZFENA=ZTH At 30 April 2020 560,230 191,087 2,801 (832,139) (78,021)
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41. I JBEBE 51 31

REALAFAR T ——FENA=ZTHRMZ
W P RE R (TREE]) 203 AN RIEEE
([FEE g ]) Al 2 REY A5 8 5 A 2 =) 3R AT A
Wi Ja 28 W) 2 2 MR B (LR A & W) BCHHAE f]
Wi JB 2~ ®1 AT ~ IR AT S 5L AT B
AR FIAT o] 8 B 2> w2 AT ] B R ) H Ak T
AN E BB R DL E R B
A% B % BT > S ) 07 < 3B AR 4R TR EDRK
RAE G B B AR 2 AT AT H A i e E 2 1
T 14 2R AT (8 2 7 A W W AT o 1 T DL 84T
R A SO ATF AR AR A T R B
FTIeAR30% st B 2 FMEHE —F ——F N
HZ T ILA Bk —HAR-

AR NAT A2 7] K FC I IR 2 m) & ] s AT
A L A S P HEE R B4 T 2 W AR (B4 2 AT
7 R 1 A AT 00 W JBERE ) i A Al {8 T 4
WEEAT RO T RAT 2R RHEAE A5G
AN T COBEAT A MR 2 1% - BRI AL T
&N IT ON-NETE VS INEE T 3 PN
o B LR ) R Ao R BR A > Ho A
R N = 45 ) S RO B OB B R A (LA R
S ) 2RI T SR 4 il 8 2 o AR 2 B AE
I B8 ASF T (L 1 9 A AR -

B T o T MR AR () 1R
G e M 2 7 T 52 B 4 R SR BT R AR 2
Ji 453 GEM 2 W T {5 5 (b) B A A Al
S P AR ) S8 D T 1 L W S B 4 YRR
TR HRAS 2N B B 1 GEM -3 e i A 5 T
(c) R B 2 By (e > =& DA =i & /5
e M A R A > I AR I A R
T R AL

R = 8 2 Ak sk > T AR m] S S5 o 7 4
PE AR N 2 03T A0 T 2 S A 47
AR S B 2 A R AN 15 O B A % T
< FFE AR o AR PR RT3 2 A A 8 B R
TR A e B fo 4 SV 1] O RO AT S S BOME 2 — i
BE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
30 August 2011 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to Directors, eligible employees and consultants and rewarding
for their contribution to the Group, the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer full-time employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any consultants or advisors of any member of the Group, to take up options
to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The life of the Option
Scheme was effective until 29 August 2021.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted under the Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless separately approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such grantee and
his associates abstaining from voting, and the number and terms (including
the subscription price) of the options to be granted to such person must be
fixed before the shareholders’ approval. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of each grant.

The subscription price may be determined by the Board, provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of offer of the options; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
options of the Company; and (c) the nominal value of the shares on the date of
offer provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price per
share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which
the offer of the grant of the options is made in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme. There is no general requirement on the minimum period
for which an option must be held before an option can be exercised under the
terms of the Option Scheme.
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41. I JBERE 5T B (m)

R4 LA R 2 R B 1) 4 PR IR E &
SEERCFE-NFENA =+ H R BB
2 2 (] AT I B HE R AT (8 U
WO I -

R A% AT 5T 3 5 A £ [0 AT ] b 5 Je
FhE 2T 2 A R I T B AT SO T R AT
ZEREBRGBEE  AREREE T N\F
JUA = H (B AN BB e B 5T 5 #
—fEE R A10% 1Y H ) & E BAT R A
B 10% 5 B11,436,710,107 8 B 43 > 15 4 4F
H W B AT A AT 10% -

W E D FBAER - E - NLEMNHA=1+H
IR AF B S ARy ) B RE 2 S AR AN T

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (coNTINUED)

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, options issued prior
to or during the financial years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019 are fully vested
before the date of exercisable period.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at 20 September 2018, being the date of approval of
the refreshment of 10% general scheme limit under the Option Scheme by
the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 1,436,710,107 shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of this

annual report).

Details of movements in the Company’s share options for the years ended
30 April 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

REBZRAE
KRR MA=+H
Tt fitif § i i ERf R EREH EREH LEX Y
(HRmRLHELER) Bk W AT 1 Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding
et 3 B HE Exercisable period Exercise price  Outstanding during during during during at 30 April
2020 Date granted (both dates inclusive) HK$/share at 1 May 2019 the year the year the year the year 2020
YnEE ZEZEE-AZFEH BZEZREZAAHE
Executive Director 23 January 2020 ZFZ-FAJLA
From 6 February 2020 to
5 August 2021 0.0212 - 143,671,010 - - - 143,671,010
& SEZEE-AZFER HCESRECAAEE
Employee 23 January 2020 —“E--FAREA
From 6 February 2020 to
5 August 2021 0.0212 - 143,671,010 - - - 143,671,010
i “E-LEAATEA m-F-tEAN-TARE
Consultants* 15 September 2017 ZE-REAAZAAH
From 29 September 2017 to
28 September 2019 0.0186  1,149,030,000 - - - (1,149,030,000) -
ay
Total 1,149,030,000 287,342,020 - - (1,149,030,000) 287,342,020

178 EE#zRARAR  WLS Holdings Limited
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fo B SV W A fi
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (coNTINUED)

REF—JUE
AT~ WA=Z+H
i i LA—H ERE FERFTE B RE B EREM W R AT
(EEMXGHELEN) kL ER KA Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding
ZF-NE Rt A Exercisable period Exercise price  Outstanding during during during during at 30 April
2019 Date granted (both dates inclusive) HKS$/share ~ at | May 2018 the year the year the year the year 2019
B “EF-LEAATIA m-F-LFEAHZTARE
Consultants* 15 September 2017 ZE-NERAZTAH
From 29 September 2017 to
28 September 2019 0.0186  1,149,030,000 - - - - 1,149,030,000
ay
Total 1,149,030,000 - - - - 1,149,030,000
* RN EALEEMZBEANL AERERE * The consultants are not connected parties of the Group and have provided

F—IER R NENH =T HILEER
7 S T 13 R S TR IR 5

PEE F CFENA =+ A%
B =T A T = H AN R AT
#H AR B RN o i 3% H AR 2 B R
WE 2 Al 512 (8 £52,801,0009 7T > H D B A
45 [ N7 40 8] A8 1) 0B S B A S S A (e 3 T
ST HEAT I A (8 2 SR ST AR s o

R - JUEM A =+ B k4
A3 I S

%S NP E R TE UBTAL O o R A A
11 iy A R A0 R

business relation services to the Group for the year ended 30 April 2019 and
2018.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, share options were granted on
23 January 2020 to an executive director of the Company and an employee
of the Group. The estimated fair values of share options granted on that date
is HK$2,801,000 which was arrived on the basic of valuation carries out by
Assent Partners, an independent qualified professional valuer not connected to

the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2019, no share options were granted.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into

the model were as follows:

EORE
2020

i B PATE R
Executive
Employee Director
ANFH (WD) Fair value (HK$) 0.0096 0.0099
AT (HsoT) Exercise price (HK$) 0.0212 0.0212
TE 0% Expected volatility 115.68% 115.68%
FFEHEW (4F) Expected life (years) 1.53 1.53
48 oL o A 2R Risk-free rate 1.66 % 1.66 %
T S Expected dividend yield 0% 0%
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41. Vi HE s &1 (w0 41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cONTINUED)

TEHA U W 9 AR AR AR D IR A A e T T TR T Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
074 109 09 ] 2 JRR s Q0 e T R A o % A R Company’s share price over a period approximate to the expected life of
Z R TR S 2 AR R R share options. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
A TR AT (0 PR R AT By TR BT R R 2 R on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
T LA R o R A T A BE A T R GER restrictions and behavioural considerations. The value of an option could vary
PV SEE -1 GIPNAE materially with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

AR D F RN A = H R E R AR The Group recognised the total expense of HK$2,801,000 for the year ended
A A R4 S 2 PR e R 4 B 202,801,000 30 April 2020 in relation to share options granted by the Company.

WEIT o
42. & & K 42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
T R AR O KT R B E R A AR At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets
A W REST — R SRATRLE 2 R - as securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:
TRORE —E -4
2020 2019
T RR P
HK$’000 HK$’000
T3 4% 1 7 BRI Carrying amount of:
wEyE Investment properties 48,900 56,980
TR+ b S Leasehold land and buildings 6,210 6,579
JEE Uiz B 3K Trade receivables 17,738 18,118
GRIERE Contract assets 509 554
43. FEE M AR R K BE 43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS
A 4R [ 1 25 AR fLN The Group as lessee

AZE—JUEIA =+ B AEBERBEAT As at 30 April 2019, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease
TG 8 7 R A0 7 TR B T 3 0 R A5 22 o AR e payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
IR & SRR T

ZE—JUAF
2019
T
HK$°000

—4EN Within one year 5,177
BT (B EREME) In the second to fifth years inclusive 964

6,141
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43. B M AR KL @0

A AR A A LN ()
METANER L THAEWE L BT ZIE
FEFH 4 o L4 DUAE ) — 4F 28 IO 4 33T - FL &R
FH A B MR A5 -

A SE AR 2 LN

TR JUE A = B ARG A S
NI R AR AR I AT S A A

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its office
properties and warehouse. Leases are negotiated for terms of one year to four

years and rentals are fixed during the lease terms.
The Group as lessor

As at 30 April 2019, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following

future minimum lease payments:

EE
2019
Tl
HK$’000

—4ER

TR TEENA Z A H o RN AEN
POE Y 3 ORI D — 4 -

44, B 1 A 5 B

HoEERFE+H B AEHE AR
o A B H A s I S m A A E A% B L2
MG E WA SFE AR B EEAE
M2 FAL G E R S AL
B K AR B A5 8O B A R v ) T R
EAEE B U A 2 5% 3% 51145 A /e Ak
B oE—4ENH— B PLE H1,500% 7T
F5 B> HoAR SR g B R R o

A B R 0 BR 2 A8 AR £91,359,000% 0T (L F
— JLAE © £91,612,000% 7T ) $5 A< 45 [ 1] 58 f 4
FH# AR 2 Ao

30 RE 4w # 2 E EE BAR AE  0 HA E EE  BY
L R R VA e s R (LY A
T B4 R A SR 1 R OKE B R I R
BEWMA - MR_E_FFERF—JLFEN A
= H o N 4 R 2 A AT R A A 42
AR AE i 2 A Ao

Within one year 96

The investment properties held for rented purposes have committed lease term

for less than one year as at 30 April 2020.

44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all qualifying
employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to join the
MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and
the employees make monthly contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month effect from 1 June 2014

and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of approximately HK$1,359,000 (2019:
approximately HK$1,612,000) represents contributions payable to the MPF
Scheme by the Group.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years
as at 30 April 2020 and 2019.
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45. BN 1 P

AT > AR P BB N LRTSL AR 22 5

45. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related

parties:
ZEIRLY “E L
2020 2019
T# e T#IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HETEME AW —ZERZ Interest income from staff and
FE A a director of a subsidiary 17 25
KH—KBEARZ Management fee income from
FIMBEIA (H5Ea) a related company (Note a) - 550
KEH—KBEARZ Commission fee income from
A (Kfsta) a related company (Note a) 388 545
HH—RKBEAF 2 Commission expense paid to
WaER (fika) a related company (Note a) (1,014) (83)
OE/NCIEF A & S Nl Patent expense paid to a director of
R (MEED) the Company (Note b) (1,200) -
(i Notes:

(a)  HAAS G — SR 4 B0 2 [ R 2 L
) 8 B JBESR > A BR AR TE S i  SA T
JGE§ A% S 1 B PR ) A 2 D o

(b) A B IE T R o R B R AR AT S A
T AT R R

LA AR T N 2 A B R AR A
BEAR D3R B 45 B

182 ER#ZBEBRAR  WLS Holdings Limited

(a)  The amounts were received from or paid to a company which is a related company
to the Group as a director of a subsidiary of the Group is also the controlling

shareholder in that company.

(b) The amounts were paid to Dr. So Yu Shing, who is an executive director of the

Company in respect of the patented brand scaffolding system.

Details of the balances with the Group’s related parties are set out in the

consolidated statement of financial position and respective notes.
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45. B N 1 BB ()

FTEEHARME

AR L AT HE A T HoA AT B 2
[/

45. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(CONTINUED)
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

TR OEE TR

2020 2019

BRI Tt

HK$’000 HK$’000

i 10 4 ) Short-term benefits 11,404 13,335
B ARAE Post-employment benefits 189 235
11,593 13,570

AAFPATESR (A EEERAR) Z W&
TIm B ZE B Gk LR g EMAK
B B 3 M 1% e E -

46. & A )8\ b A B

2 B L VA - LT A S B
A ) A - BRI O 8 0 1 (R
Bt 3 T K TR I 9 < B b R A
5 1 SR A 2

A% B2 ) AR S R A AR A TS R N 4 R Y
T VR R (LA B 534 ~ 35 ~ 36 X3THT I 7%
B AR A B AL A R TE R W R &
DA 5 e IS 165 ) ~ SRAT 15 B M ERAT
i S e H A B K R LA £ )~ Bl B A5
[ERERSREE PO EN/NIES PN S E - )
5 AR T feti )

ERGEFNEAREN - FERZEN B
I AR o m A L A A T AT
Al e IR C IR 2 ZAF A EFHEEAR
AR T B 45 HEU A M ) 2 B o R N
AT BT I~ B AT R B e AHUR BLA R
DL i A% 55 [ Y 8 AR A o

The remuneration of executive directors of the Company, who are also
members of key management is, recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Group and its subsidiaries
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which includes lease
liabilities, obligations under finance leases (prior to initial application of
HKFRS 16), bank borrowings and bank overdrafts, other loan and other
borrowings disclosed in notes 34, 35, 36 and 37 respectively, net of cash
and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to the owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves, as disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements.

The Directors review the capital structure annually. As part of this review, the
Directors assess the annual budget prepared by management of the Company.
Based on the proposed annual budget, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Directors also
balance the Group’s overall capital structure through new share issuance, as

well as issuance of new debts and repayment of existing debts.
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46. & A & B BE (m)

TR TZAE H = B AR R W B
NE (ZF U W) 2R B R I
JEAR IR A o i 7 B (B BUEIR) KB ([
I B & (W BOER) B ) 2 57 B BUE R
BLRE o A 4R B 2 3% B B e R0 ST 38 5 I
B ECE IR SRR 9 S R AR B
MBEEHRE - EHESHEREEER
HeE Y U ) B < KT o LA DR 8 55 45 5 B R K
B (BEECE R ) B A0 e (R B L E o

EAEH

A AR (G R A R S (BIAR B R AL IR
DASBRE £ ) S 428 AR o {5 A B L 4% RS £ 4
Lo 8RAT 3 52> FA B B H A £ 45 3 T AL
£ e il A AR I O ¥ U T 7 ol B
Wt MERI S 169ERT) - T IR 2 BE AR
AR

46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

As at 30 April 2020, two subsidiaries (2019: two) of the Company are
regulated by the SFC and are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The Group’s regulated entities are subject
to minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid
capital level of these entities to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid

capital requirements under the SF(FR)R.

Management of capital

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which arrives at total
interest-bearing debts divided by the total equity. Total debts include bank
borrowings and bank overdrafts, other loan and other borrowings, certain lease
liabilities and obligations under finance leases (prior to initial application of
HKFRS 16). The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

ZROEE ZE—JUAE
2020 2019
Tt T oo
HK$’000 HKS$’000

BB B Interest-bearing debts:
SRAT B M BRAT B 3L Bank borrowings and bank overdrafts 64,509 54,359
At £ 8 A A £ Other loan and other borrowings 82,000 70,000
& &R (Kiska) Lease liabilities (Note a) 1,513 =
Pl L A R A Obligations under finance leases - 1,961
TR 15 AR Total debts 148,022 126,320
YRR (KRED) Total equity (Note b) 537,629 646,039
HEABLR Gearing ratio 27.5% 19.6%

BT Notes:

(a)  HFHSEEEAMILENT  HE A HEaRE
SR 42 AL 22 B S0 9 R A T o AL B

(b) R AT A T AT AN B A AR - B AR
KRN
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(a) For the purpose of computation of the gearing ratio, lease liabilities only consists
of lease liabilities associated with acquisition of motor vehicles under lease
arrangement.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group that are attributable to the
owners of the Company.
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47. & T H
a. LB THZEW

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

R —EF-0E
2020 2019
T# 5t TH#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
4 & Financial assets
AP HEF AR 2w EZ Equity instruments at FVTOCI
M TR 9,255 11,578
N PR ARG Z &MY A Financial assets at FVTPL 22,686 40,762
e Yk B AR At amortised cost
22 4 T H A R iRk IE Deposits and other receivables 7,113 8,444
R Wi B 3K T A Loan and interest receivables 462,442 461,077
B 2k Trade receivables 27,206 42,119
RATHE B LB & —(FREIRF Bank balances and cash — trust account 2 9,633
SRATH R Bl —— R IRF Bank balances and cash
— general accounts 78,298 110,074
607,002 683,687
A 214 Financial liabilities
e Yl B AR At amortised cost
JRE AT B 2 B L A B A5t 35 T Trade and other payables 12,788 22,469
JREASH {7 ] 485 3 IE Retention monies payables 1,642 2,617
$RAT I B Bank borrowings 45,113 34,532
At 45 8 A £ Other loan and other borrowings 82,000 70,000
AT X Bank overdrafts 19,396 19,827
160,939 149,445
L5 & fife il L0 AR AP Lease liabilities/obligations under
finance leases 9,225 1,961

b. BB B PR AR R R

AL 2 TE G T BN LR - 2% &
il L A A% B L B o T SO A B A
<& Bl T B A I 2 DL g e o AR R S L B 2
UK o A MR I e M R a2 A R o DA IR K
B 240 A 280 R U 2 8

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in the above table. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
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b. )R BE A B H AR R BUR (80

s B o B B ok AEL W Al
JE B R

A 3 PR S B RS > A 42 A B A S B
R Tt B o PR AR R Wi R A S A U A B
Bt o 5% Wl Ak 7 2 7 3 AT i B R 2 o U0
T it DA B A BRI 2 0 B B4 B o T R i
T RFE ZERIEE B KBRS
A ~ 1A 2 BE K 4R P R0 A DL R A MR
FLEKGE) oML - EH R A AEEEE
J B K R A -

BT T T SF o #4940 E R 3 R A 4 B
JE

A 3 B AR A5 B R > A 42 A LR © &R
BB AR ER R RGN T
A G T IR A A S T > A DR PR RER A
F e LA S [ A 30 6 I o 6 Ob - A 4 AR 9
95 B Ml 1R S (S A I AT 36 R
o1 EL A LS BB 5 ARG 25 S BB AT
G AL P 488 45 R 36 R ) A O A T BB T A
15 25 15 MR it ~ JR S B 56 A R 0 G Bk X
A 1 AR K0 A TR L AR - B A SRS A
T R AR AE B R A Al RHR G ROR RN E K
BER B AR R 2% AN EE W
S AR ARG T4 2 B AR BB R L
R HL AT S A4 A0S v R AT O R T2 S
BRI MR B 5 &5 B B AT BT o UL
B0 A A SR T £ BB ORI A
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Loan and interest receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has a policy
for assessing the credit risk of accounts and loan and interest receivables. The
assessment is based on a close monitoring and evaluation of collectability and
on management’s judgement, including the ageing analysis of receivables, the
current creditworthiness, account executives concentration analysis, collateral
distribution and concentration analysis and the past collection history of each
client, etc. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade balances based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that have similar credit
risk characteristics based on nature and industry of debtors. Internal credit
rating has been given to each category of debtors after considering aging,
historical observed default rates, repayment history and past due status of
respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on probability of
default and loss given default with reference to an external credit report and
are adjusted for reasonable and supportable forward-looking information that
is available without undue costs or effort while credit-impaired trade balances
were assessed individually. In this regard, the Directors consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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47. & T H m)

b. )R BE A B H AR R BUR (80

s B B B o AFL W Al (%80)
Al JE e IH

A AR T AR R A R R A R At B i IR
Z B > A A A AR WAGROH  (E - EE E
RERy - BRI ERRAL - 3% S REMGRIE 15 B JE
B SIf B 5T 5 94 I - T AR AR 4R S B R LB
N TEL S AR ST 0 38 1 IBL A P 19 2 A0 SO AT A
A U 7 AE 223 2 AR 355y B R] AT B i
W P AT A R o AR A AR O AT R Bl
I EERAR EREREIE
P9 =t At R RO A A 0 RN A B s
R A B9 s £R B A AN EE R > TR A Sl 9 k£ A
Vi $R T B A AT 4B A

RBEEZFEEABRAR HAXSH TR
B PR A B A AR A T R A SRAT -
A G PR AE O A T B R SR A 2 BRAT Y
U B < 1 B A R R

R AR AW E AL R KREF &
[GERCON-IaE N NERE DS -3 MR E 3
B 50 45 g~ RGBS AR 2
WA R T B A AR T 4 2 4 PP 15 B VB K T
56% (- FE—JLF 140%) 70% (—F—JL
B 163% ) o it HE HAR o AR 4 1 R AR AR Y
I KAEH N I W 4 I KAEHS A 43 il 728 A6 e
Wi 85 R T A S AR ER 2 4R P (S A R BR K T
6% ( —FE—JIF 1 6%) K10% ( ~FE—JLiF:
10%) °

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables

The Group assessed the impairment for its other receivables individually
based on internal credit rating and ageing of these debtors which, in the
opinion of the Directors, have no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. ECL is estimated based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of debtors and is adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. Based on the impairment
assessment performed by the Group, the Directors consider the loss allowance
for other receivables within lifetime ECL as at 30 April 2020 and 2019 was

insignificant and accordingly no allowance for credit losses was provided.

Bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The
Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are

deposited with several banks with high credit ratings.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain level of
concentration of credit risk as 56% (2019: 40%) and 70% (2019: 63%)
of the trade receivables and retention monies receivables arising from the
Group’s largest customer and the two largest customers from scaffolding,
fitting out and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work
respectively. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain level
of concentration of credit risk as 6% (2019: 6%) and 10% (2019: 10%) of the
total loan and interest receivables arising from the Group’s largest debtors and

the two largest debtors, respectively.
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47. & T H m)

b. B R bR H R B UK (80 b.
(Continued)
i Bl i B AL A (1)
A G TS 1 P B AT A AT A B DA
K - categories:
P B £ 5 B i
Internal credit rating Description

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

R WA B ik B A A
Trade receivables and
contract assets

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

At 45 0

Other financial assets

{9

Low risk

B4 B

Watch list

Doubtful

i 18

Loss

i 8

Write-off

188 EmzRERA

2 by 3 T3 40 L B A EL Sl 9 A o 00 O

The counterparty has a low risk of default

and does not have any past-due amounts

T o BT e RO E i (R EN F AR 5
AR I SRS IR AT B R S

The counterparty has amounts past-due but
is continuously settling after due date and
with continuous business transactions with

the Group

925 38 1 B A B 2 R B R R AT A
I e RBAR > 5 LR B B B - H A 5
T LA [ AT SE B L )

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources while the counterparty
is with continuous business transactions

with the Group

AR SRS A B R B AR AR

There is evidence indicating the asset is

credit-impaired

AR B AUBE N B A e Y B S IR L
A SR B AN R F AR T s e A B

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group

has no realistic prospect of recovery

WLS Holdings Limited

M EHEE R
R H A

Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

EWENEE R
AR BWE

Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

W EYEERE -
R A HE

Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

S MFHE R ER -
OB E R B E

Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired

A B B

Amount is written off

121 A S H
#H

12m ECL

121 A T8 145 5 s
1

12m ECL

SR F e 1E —
R A B

Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

M EIE R -
C B E 5 S (E

Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired

i A B B

Amount is written off
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b. )R BE A B H AR K BUR ()

7 8 DL B B ol AL W A (40)

AR FE A A SR AR R A B 1R T A 0
Al 5 T 0 £ R

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial
assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

RIRE “E-NE
hh ik £ P 5 £ 1210 A g2 2020 2019
EE [ TS S T 4R e A (.
External credit Internal credit
rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
T#x T#x T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JHE M B K LB, A {190 1218 I B 5 B
Loan and interest receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 162,836 470,141
Nl B2 E 121 7 BB AR B 15
N/A Watch list 12m ECL 140,181 1,693
PNl 5t BN R
KB AR B W
N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL - 145,813 4,033
not credit-impaired
A 5 EHEEEEH-
CHAEREME
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL - 87,659 536,489 26,266 502,133
credit-impaired
AR R TR AR {190 2HENEEEH-
MR R RS AR B REE AW
5 0 R (BT
Trade receivables from scaffolding, N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL - 24,008 32,125
fitting out and other auxiliary not credit-impaired
services for construction and i B4 ES iUl
buildings work (Note) T (B
N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL — 112 1,105
not credit-impaired
A T 5 EHENEEEE-
KB MR B
N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL - 163 1,547
not credit-impaired
R i e
CHAEREME
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL - 4,374 28,657 4,788 39,565

credit-impaired
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47. & T H m)

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. A% R B B H AR K BUR (s b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
15 8 B B DR AR BT Y (4 Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
i .
s 8 s £ 12 A g4 2020 2019
L1 i T R R I T 4 £ HRTH A8 (A
External credit Internal credit
rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
T FEn TEr Tk
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
BHERE (M) A % B EHENEEREE-
REE R B
Contract assets (Note) N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL - 8,028 8,028 5,196 5,196
not credit-impaired
A TE R A {190 1218 I B 5 B
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 7,113 7,113 8,444 8,444
RITHR AQE A1+ b 1218 A B 5 Bk R
Bank balances A-2to A-1+ N/A 12m ECL 78,298 78,298 119,684 119,684
[ % - Note:

S B R K % £ 6 o A S TR ) A o R
9 L) 0 A AL o ik 2 00 T £ 45 ol 1R A gl 4R
TG o B B AR A B (L Y R AR R % 4 20 R A
A S R P A o T MR % 0 AL O 95 AR R I A
% 4F JH H R EIAE B R

AREFMERGR LN T ZRE R E—JUFEN
A=+ HM2MENGE SEE CRBERE S
A A& IEAE 2 (B REA LI R EZER) 1 E
WA R TR I s 4 A I S FE K B A EUBRAK R
SRS B A

BEFRFENA =+ HILFE A BB ICR K
B4 Dok (5 8 938 I 988 1B) 49153,00086 9 ( ~F —JL
AE Yol G R B A I 211,000 ) M A B A K E
FEE 1Y I (L S 48 3 8 T 438 1m0 £923,000 00 (& — L
AF 1 490,000 70 ) A B8 AR {5 B W(E - I 4 AR 18 4
file w8 o WL AN B 40 Bl 18 4% e R A B B A A A I
(B 22 8 o T 3 P Bk L W 8438 5 V3% A £5985,000% T
(ZZF— JUAF « W s 48 5 4 5 48 1711,653,000% 7 )
Bl AT B 8 A A5 B 2 A A R Y (E
TR A0 B A 1) ( U — JUAR M s T R 0
[m1211,000%7C) -
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For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance of lifetime ECL. Except for trade receivables
and contract assets that are credit-impaired, the Group determine the ECL on these items
by using a provision matrix, grouped by past-due aging of receivables.

The management of the Group considers the loss allowance for trade receivables from
discontinued operation, securities brokerage and margin financing business, which
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) as at 30 April 2020 and 2019 was insignificant
and with low credit risk. No allowances for credit losses is provided.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, net reversal of impairment loss allowance of
HK$153,000 (2019: net provision of impairment loss allowance of HK$211,000) related
to trade receivables and net reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$23,000 (2019:
HK$490,000) related to contract assets that are not credit-impaired was recognised
in profit or loss, respectively. In addition, net provision of impairment loss allowance
of HK$985,000 (2019: net reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$1,653,000)
related to trade receivables and there is neither provision or reversal of provision (2019:
reversal of impairment loss allowance of HK$211,000) related to contract assets that are
credit-impaired was recognised in profit or loss, respectively.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances that has been

recognised for loan and interest receivables:

2w 2 MHEM
fi s 48 5 B H
121 H # (R A (B84
fi 6 4 fis M) f5 B HAE) it
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime ECL
12m ECL impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
THT THTT THTT TH T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
W= /ERH—H As at 1 May 2018 4,630 - 30,483 35,113
WA —HEMERZ Changes due to financial
SR 5 instruments recognised
as at | May:
— i BB AE B — Transfer to credit
— impaired (32) - 32 -
— M E R F — Transfer to not credit
— impaired (179) 179 - -
— O AR L s 4R — Impairment losses
recognised 4,375 2,041 - 6,416
— 1 Il 3ok (E i 4 — Impairment losses reversed (732) - (160) (892)
— R — Write-offs (360) - - (360)
AR M T New financial assets originated 779 - - 779
AZFE—JUFEMH =+ H & Asat 30 April 2019 and
“F-NERHA—H 1 May 2019 8,481 2,220 30,355 41,056
BHA—-HEWRZ Changes due to financial
SR H 2 S8 instruments recognised
as at | May:
—EE A AR — Transfer to credit
— impaired (1,828) (53) 1,881 -
— W E R A R — Transfer to not credit
— impaired (3,674) 3,674 - -
—EE12AH HEE — Transfer to 12m ECL
JiEi 18 6,617 (2,167) (4,450) -
— DR BUEIEE — Impairment losses
recognised 7,829 31,328 24,867 64,024
— 43 [ 5k (EL s 4R — Impairment losses reversed (5,656) - (1,750) (7,406)
— iUl — Write-offs - - (24,155) (24,155)
EEZHEMEE New financial assets originated 55 - 473 528
R-E_ZENH=1H As at 30 April 2020 11,824 35,002 27,221 74,047
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for loan and interest receivables are mainly due

to:

ZROFZFENA=1H
30 April 2020

W,/ (W4) ZMEYESEREN (WK)
Increase/
(decrease) Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
1218 A
WG SR RS ARG EWNE ARG R
Not credit-
In 12m ECL impaired Credit-impaired
T T F#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LNEREY PN S Loan and interest receivables from
) S THI (B £925,905,000 a debtor with gross carrying amount of
W ICE R ) K4 I E approximately HK$25,905,000 has been
JE L 451,750,000%5 5GfE  written off in full as at 30 April 2020
A TETEFEPA =+ H  after recoveries and reversal of
7 B AR impairment loss allowance of
HK$1,750,000 - - (24,155)

ZEF-NFEMNA=1H
30 April 2019

wm A RN SRR (B

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
1218 A
FHERER REEGEWHME CBAFERRE
Not credit-
In 12m ECL impaired  Credit-impaired
T#IT T#IT T#IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
W 177 #8111 £923,982,000%5 7C  One debtor with a gross carrying amount
3 —F— LA of approximately HK$23,982,000
WH=+HM1200H transferred from 12m ECL to
G REREE lifetime ECL-not credit-impaired as at
BN R RNy 7F | 30 April 2019 with further impairment
RBEE A B E R loss of HK$1,681,000 recognised
FEM IR (2 RERR
i — 20 (M 1R
1,681,000% 7)) (162) 1,843 -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

recognised for trade receivables from scaffolding, fitting out and other

auxiliary services for construction and buildings work under the simplified

approach.
4z 1 ¥ 1 2 1 ¥ 1
e Bl 4 (GRS Fi]
(A %A (B4
e SEPAE ) fi B UAE ) ik
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
T#: T T T#s T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
W oE—NERLH—H As at 1 May 2018 254 25,612 25,866
MHEH—HERRZ Changes due to financial instruments
BT A2 recognised as at 1 May:
— BRI — Transfer to credit — impaired (&) 9 -
— O AR A 1R — Impairment losses recognised - 479 479
— B 5 (] ek (L s 4R — Impairment losses reversed (243) (2,266) (2,509)
— AR — Write-offs - (22,975) (22,975)
JEELE 2 W A R New financial assets originated 454 134 588
A F—JLE M H =4 H X As at 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019
“E—-NHERHA—H 456 993 1,449
— i A A — Transfer to credit — impaired (139) 139 -
— % ffE R Uk e 4R — Impairment losses recognised 1 937 938
— O 988 ] ok s 48R — Impairment losses reversed (224) (101) (325)
— i — Write-offs - (830) (830)
JELE 2 WA R New financial assets originated 70 149 219
MRE-FZZEMHA=Z+TH  Asat30 April 2020 164 1,287 1,451
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables from scaffolding, fitting

out and other auxiliary services for construction and buildings work are

mainly due to:

- i
WA =+H
30 April 2020
e URiE R
0 18 9 A
Decrease in
lifetime ECL

L
WH=1H
30 April 2019
W EIE
5 e 18 ol D
Decrease in
lifetime ECL

CRAGESENME CEEFEREAE
Credit-impaired  Credit-impaired
T T#IT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
A AR A = H AR Written off of a trade debtor with a gross carrying
R T 48 {E 1,768,000 7T 2 amount of HK$1,768,000 and accumulated loss
B 5 WE IR 3K 619,000 7C 2 allowance of HK$619,000 as at 30 April 2020
Rt R 619,000 -
AZE—ENH =1H Trade debtor with a gross carrying amount with
B LE R A RHOR Y defaulted and written off as at 30 April 2019
B i M i SR R T 48 - 22,447,000
5 B IR TR 1 R TET A Settlement in full of a trade debtor with
gross carrying amount - 1,158,000
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been

recognised for contract assets from scaffolding, fitting out and other auxiliary

services for construction and buildings work under the simplified approach.

Ee IR ] £ N
R B HE 5 B HE
(AR BEA (C#4E
e BEIRAA) i BERAA) At
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
T#: 7T TH#s 7T THs T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$°000
AR NFERH—H As at | May 2018 544 439 983
WA — H B HERR Changes due to financial instruments
ST H 8 recognised as at 1 May:
— 3 [l I (M 1) — Impairment losses reversed (515) (211) (726)
— AR — Write-offs - (228) (228)
A2 W A E New financial assets originated 25 - 25
A= F UM A =+ H % As at 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019
—F—NELA—H 54 - 54
WHHA—HEOMERZ Changes due to financial instruments
Rl T HZ s recognised as at 1 May:
— O HERR B (A s 18 — Impairment losses recognised 6 - 6
— 5 [l W E e 1R — Impairment losses reversed (33) - (33)
FE A 22 5 4 il New financial assets originated 4 - 4
REZZFEMA=TH Asat 30 April 2020 31 - 31

ik A7 R B AR5 N IS A S I L SIE
I P (] T RE P (NGBS N A B 5L
7 R e MR AR i e A T O ) O v
(LB R Py dE) ) o JI A 4 10 Al S B AR
I AGHIERE -

The Group writes off a trade receivable and contract asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivable and contract asset are over two years past due, whichever occurs

earlier.
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i 455 Jal B
R 5 B
B 4 Ui ) 5 JE B

AR B R B R R 2 R AT A S AT
BDL R RAT R BR R Z A R B B 2 BB R
IR0

A S T B I S 0 B P B R 3 B K B 4 O
BB B A B 2 AT A R R e SR o EE R
N B B A A T T B JEL B o SIGE ER RR
el R & LIRS

U o) H

VAR 9 B0/ BE 2 A 75 (B S0 ) 2 5 B % R Bt
JI R % A T R E - NI B T R LR R% BT T
E N s S R 9 R N JEER
N A M) 3 T B 4 7R S S R T R
1% - T4 4 50 I 5 R 52 0] RE 5 BLAE ) 2 B
fili

fis A 17 B 31 % i BT A LAl s A R
Aot REBMBE _F _FTFWH=1H1E
AF B A% s 181 34D 527,000 T
(ZF—JU4F - WD /BN £925,0009 7C)

PR =R JE B
A B 22 ST (B R 36 L By T L[] R R

FHLET B B HoAth 0 3K S HoAth 1 S8 B (5% 5%
] 2 B AR B L H G M R34 137)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the changes in
interest rates related mainly to the Group’s variable-rates bank overdrafts,

bank borrowings and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy in relation
to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The directors
monitor the Group’s exposures on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging

the interest rate should the need arises.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that a change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence
at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post tax loss for the year ended 30 April 2020 would
have increased/decreased by approximately HK$27,000 (2019: decreased/
increased by approximately HK$25,000).

Fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed rate lease

liabilities and other loan and other borrowings (see notes 34 and 37 for details

of these fixed rate debt instruments).
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b. )R BE A B H AR R BUR (80

i 455 )l B (41)
S B

A R & 2 A0 W JE K B AR B AL 5y B
BB < 5 B B - A
R\ By 2 B W R AR W R T
A T 2 ] BE A IR AT ) — 11 WA B LR
i% JE B o R R AR R R S L
N R Je 38 o0 2 R A B« BRI > SORRBE 7 A
Az A F51

i B B < )l B

Ui B R B TG 16 4 I A SEAE B AT B i T
LA B 2 7R 5 I b 42 IR S 2 Ja o R B
4 e R B A A
fEUAR H B <l T

T VB S B AR AR T B o
A A ]y B K T HE TR I R 4B A A A
TG 2 SRAT R R R B KT

A A 9% o TR T T B A OB K B AR RN AR
B A 4 DL TE R A U R o A B R R
Bl 4 A B o DA £ BE 40 R AT 9T AT B B AR
T B HVE 4 750K o A > SRAT Rl G © S R 4
DERKFZ /% R R _FRFEMWA=+H
A% 45 B AT 2 SR AT Rl M RH £976,159,0009
JC (. F — JL4E 170,159,000 8) - H o &)
11,650,000 7€ ( % — JL4F : 54,359,000
J6) A R A T -

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through transactions
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily the Macau Pataca, Renminbi and US$. The Group mitigates this
risk by conducting transactions in the same currency, whenever possible.
The directors consider there is no material exposure to the Macau Pataca,
Renminbi and US$ as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,

sensitivity analysis has not been presented.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a group entity will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity
risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its

fair value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The
Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and cash deemed

adequate to finance the Group’s operations.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital
of the Group to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding requirements
could be met. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for
contingency purposes. As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s total available banking
facilities were approximately HK$76,159,000 (2019: HK$70,159,000), of
which approximately HK$11,650,000 (2019: HK$54,359,000) were utilised at
the end of the reporting period.
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47. & T H m) 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. BB B R PR H B K BUR (0 b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
B & AR B (40 Liquidity risk (Continued)

R IR R A R IT R B & WA
AEEEAAFEMAR HEARKME
FH A 7RI (8 75 i A s 0 o5 Y B S 16 R i)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities,
lease liabilities and obligations under financial leases (prior to application

of HKFRS 16) as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

BB undiscounted cash flow, is as follows:
Rl
2020
T3 B 8k
Uk L Pt
Weighted On Ra&wat
average  demand or —~WAE ZMAZE-% —HEELE Total JR T
effective less than ZfA 3Imonths to 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 1year years cash flow value
% Tt Tt Tt Tl T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
A5 ek R A A Trade and other payables
A - 12,788 - - - 12,788 12,788
JEA {8l 42 308 Retention monies payables - 1,642 - - - 1,642 1,642
BATIES (HEE) Bank borrowings (Note) 4.60 7,106 20971 10,614 7,294 46,585 45,113
BITEX Bank overdrafts 5.5 19,396 - - - 19,396 19,396
HM S R M i & Other loan and other borrowings 8.51 79 160 08,425 23,400 92,064 82,000
41,611 21,131 79,039 30,694 172,475 160,939
HEAH Lease liabilities 5.10 469 939 3,930 4,24 9,562 9,225
“ENE
2019
ik S8 Bt
B —MA R KB
Weighted On Ramast
average demand or —fiAE ZWAZ—4F —EREHE Total IR
effective less than =fEA 3 months to Ito5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 1 year years cash flow value
% T TH#T T T T T
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
B A M 3 L A Trade and other payables
WH - 22,469 - - - 22,469 22,469
HEA R 1 45 35 Retention monies payables - 2,617 - - - 2,617 2,617
BATIEE (W) Bank borrowings (Note) 469 6,176 19,255 2,300 8,029 35,760 34532
RITEX Bank overdrafts 5.38 19,827 - - - 19,827 19,827
S F R A Other loan and other borrowings 8.34 127 253 16,638 79,278 96,296 70,000
51,216 19,508 18,938 87,307 176,969 149,445
BB A RE Obligations under finance leases 5.07 85 170 763 1,041 2,059 1,961
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:  As at 30 April 2020, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$45,113,000 (2019: HK$34,532,000). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not believe that
it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. As at 30 April 2020, the aggregate undiscounted principal
and interest cash outflows amounts to approximately HK$46,585,000 (2019:
HK$35,760,000).

c. Fair value estimation

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less

than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties have not been determined as
the timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably

determined because of the relationship.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by

valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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47. & T H m) 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
C. 2 A5 o) C. Fair value estimation (Continued)

TREBMALEN - F_FER -FE—LE The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are

M H =4 H A PR R S E K AT measured at fair value at 30 April 2020 and 2019.
R
2020
580N 580N =00 fat
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TF#t T#t Tt T#t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B Assets
NP EFFA AL 2T Equity instruments of
Wz s TH FVTOCI 2,761 6,494 - 9,255
N TEFF AR R Financial assets at FVTPL
2 A 22,686 - - 22,686
L
2019
5 5 # A =50 &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T#T T#IT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B Assets
e EE A A A2 T Equity instruments of
W4t 2 M 45 T A FVTOCI 4,650 6,596 332 11,578
AP EF AR Financial assets at FVTPL
Z 25,907 - 14,855 40,762
I T IR 4 A R ST A A — These were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during both years.
BN VNS
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
c¢. Fair value estimation (Continued)
Price risk

The following table indicates the approximate changes in the Group’s loss
after taxation (and accumulated losses) and FVTOCI reserve in response to
reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market price (for listed
investments) to which the Group have significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period.

TRTRE
2020
Y 2 VARG
B Bt 1% e 4 B HAth 2
MR b R EHZ PR W 4 Gkl A
¥,/ (W) (BH &) 2B
Effect on
loss after
Increase/ taxation and
(decrease) in accumulated Effect on
the relevant losses FVTOCI
risk variable (Note) reserve
Tl Tilt G
HK$’000 HK$’000
T LT AE 2 TS K+ Market price of underlying listed
investments: 10% 2,269 276
(10%) (2,269) (276)
ZE—JUE
2019
WAFEFEA
W B A% i 18 2% HoAth 4> THT
AR R B AR 2 REtE IR 2 R Wi i 1 5
W, () (B5E) Z 58
Effect on
loss after taxation
Increase/ and
(decrease) in accumulated Effect on
the relevant losses FVTOCI
risk variable (Note) reserve
RREP Tt
HK$°000 HK$’000
e L& 2 8 {E % © Market price of underlying listed
investments: 10% 2,590 465
(10%) (2,590) (465)
MY 5E A FBR B G H 2 S BT RBLH I H 2 Note: The effect in the Group’s loss after taxation has disregarded the utilisation of tax

M-

losses.
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47. & T H (m)

c. OFEMNE (s

BB emT R
REF-FFER-F-AFMASAA K
EHRER S I AT EER SRS EE
FE > I A8 2 2 A B G A A 0 n] 82 E A
(BRI ) T A5 T B S 2 R T o o
BEHNZ R TR

A TH %8 -

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

c. Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of the unlisted investments funds as at 30 April 2020 and 2019
was determined based on the net asset values of the funds, determined with
reference to observable (quoted) prices of underlying investment portfolio and
adjustment of related expenses.

Financial instrument in level 3

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instrument for the year
ended 30 April 2020.

CE Yidies

Convertible

Bond

T T

HK$ 000

AR &5 iR Opening balance 14,855

iR 5 B AR 2 AT (E AR Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss 145

AR A E Matured during the year (15,000)

R BR Closing balance -
AR & A & (1) | 2 Fair value gain for the year included in profit or loss under

AR FE T W A “Other gains and (losses)” 145

T R AR S 2 2 S ( BEL T ) 35 W AL IE B o

B EFEJUEMA =4 o RTE B T
22 Ty W AT B S 2 8 P (B ey BEL A AR [ I e
I 2k 2 2 Sl (B S T A AT 2 A B 2 2
W AT o AT B R T R T L IE S
T ML TR A AT A (L < il (0 5 ) 22 T 9%
7 7 i o R 2 T LA R

F2 B OR O] AR BN 2 TEOHA U OR o R A A A
B H A0 R B E 00 B A A ORI AR
A e 22 B o Al FT 0T 4R R 5 ZF — LA
WA=+ HZ A8 A2 5 5
128.37% © Mo A P L4 B0 2 5 ) i T K 8
ST R ATE-

202 EmzBRAERAT WLS Holdings Limited

The fair value of the convertible bond is positively correlated to the expected

volatility.

The fair value of the convertible bond that was not traded in an active market
as at 30 April 2019 was arrived on the basis of valuations carried out by
Ascent Partners, a professional independent valuer not connected to the
Group. The convertible bond was valued by the Binomial model. The valuer
used a variety of methods and made assumptions that were based on market

conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

The key unobservable data is expected volatility. Volatility is the annualised
standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return on the
daily adjusted share price of a company. The expected volatility adopted
in estimating the fair value of the convertible bond as at 30 April 2019 was
128.37%. Change in this unobservable data might materially affect the fair

value of the financial instruments.
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47. & T H )
c. AP (0
B2 AW TR ()
2l 177 15 06 B 1 SRR T

AR 50 /3R 32 4 A 75 B S T 39 0 W 5 B 2 R R
R B A R E - I OO R SR 8% A B
T3 20 1 < TR 2 7 A 3 ) L B e S )
FURE BN A AR AP (R I L SR BT @5 % >
T H A5 L S T ST 4 T RE S FRLAE B 2 BT A o

0 FE I U 5N S5 9% T T A At g 2 A
WA AEmEE —F - LENH=+H
1k 4F BE (1 s 18051 2 Bl 2> 48 Tin %917,000%
JC S 48,0005 JG o Ut T H A A4 45 [ A 48 A 4% 4
TEFI A #5240l B 2 n] A 5 A
AT 34 1) T8 0 0 ) B o

A AR ) 2 B Ay A B O P (E T A ]
W FMARE RN AR
(G AR 2 A B o JAA AR & b 7 I
e 2B 0 > AR 2 R Al A AT RS

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
c.  Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial instrument in level 3 (Continued)
Volatile financial market sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below had been determined assuming that a change in
the expected volatility had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to expected volatility for financial instruments
in existence at that date. A 5% increase or decrease was used when reporting
the fair value to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in expected volatility.

If expected volatility had been 5% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2019 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$17,000 and HK$48,000, respectively.
This was attributable to the Group’s exposure to expected volatility on its

investments in convertible bonds designated as financial assets at FVTPL.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer. There were no reclassifications of financial assets nor

transfers between levels during the year.
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48. e W B E A A AR IR

R FE B A SR T R A AR A T ) T AR
MR SR Kb af e kRS-
FEE B EAN RSB SR E DR (5K
R B AR ) R AR 4R B Y AR S BB U
BROMFHMEGD I GRERE 2 B

48. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the continuing operations of Group’s

liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash

flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows from financing activities.

& A5 1,
(A
& A5 M 3k K
H Al B35 R iagiika] Al 8 A
BT B Al £ i & i KIEA) A
Interest
payables
Obligations (included
Other loan under in trade
Bank and other finance Lease and other
borrowings  borrowings leases liabilities payables) Total
Wi 5E36 W &E37 Wi &E35 Wi &E34 Wi E32
Note 36 Note 37 Note 35 Note 34 Note 32
THTT TH# T THTT THT T T TH#TT
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
TR — )\ At 1 May 2018
HH—H 29,006 92,000 2,182 - 1,729 124917
AE B & Financing cash flows 5,526 (22,000) (335) = (6,368) (23,177)
& A Finance costs = = 114 = 7,447 7,561
R FE LA At 30 April 2019
MHA=+H 34,532 70,000 1,961 - 2,808 109,301
7 HE T s B Adjustment upon application
At Y FI 5 1697 of HKFRS 16 (Note 3)
RF % (K 3E3) = = (1,961) 3,271 = 1,310
AR At 1 May 2019
hH—H 34,532 70,000 - 3,271 2,808 110,611
MER &= Financing cash flows 10,581 12,000 = (3,060) (7,439) 12,082
Al A Finance costs — - - 285 8,526 8,811
MEH &M =3 Net cash generated from
(BrAl) Blai##  (used in) financing
cash flows 10,581 12,000 - (2,775) 1,087 20,893
AR T New lease entered or modified
W - - - 8,729 - 8,729
BB TR At 30 April 2020
WH=+H 45,113 82,000 - 9,225 3,895 140,233
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W OECFAENH = H R S F—JUEN A
=T HEEREA A (BEAERELAA)FF

fo B SV W A fi
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies,
at 30 April 2020 and 30 April 2019 are as follows:

HR
Ak MR/
at /A C#ITR
Place of N BRBA
incorporation/ EREA Issued and A B e A R R A R B ERE 2 L
it 5 2% ¥ 44 1 registration/ Form of fully paid up Proportion of equity interests and FEEHR
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital voting rights held by the Company Principal activities
“EEE “FhE
2020 2019
HE Ifl % H# Mtk
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
HERRARAF KRBT AR LA % 100% - 100% - REER
Apex Gain Global Limited BVI Limited Company Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
BRI ARAR 4 £ HRAH LERA1005% - 100% - 100% HEHER
Blue Pool Ventures Limited Samoa Limited Company Ordinary US$100 Investment holding
RESEARAR KRARARE AR LA 100% - 100% - wERE
Conkar Investments Limited BVI Limited Company Ordinary US$1 Securities investment
B EEHRAT B ARAR TERA LT - 100% - 100%  #%5GE
First Occasion Limited Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary HKS$1 Securities investment
| i ARAH LEBAET - 100% = 100% 5
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary HK$1 Money lending
Instant Victory Global Limited SeBAER B AR T A 100% - 100% - RERRK
BVI Limited Company 50,0003 7 Investment holding
Ordinary
US$50,000
HEEEHRAT KRS AR LR A0 100% - 100% - BEER
Jubilee Treasure Investments Limited BVI Limited Company  Ordinary HK$780 Investment holding
(e ERARA T i AR ifilies - 100% = 100% HEER
Mass Fidelity Asset Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited Company 200,000 76 Assets management
Ordinary
HK$200,000
FEGGT TRERARAE ((FE) i AR LA - 51% = 51%  HERBEH
Sense Key Design Holdings Limited Hong Kong Limited Company 10004 ¢ Fitting out business
(“Sense Key”) Ordinary
HK$1,000
—FE-F

==
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49. A 2 ) F R 2§ R 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
(%) SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
aE ML/
Ve 3L CHEIR
Place of EA B RA
incorporation/ HREL Issued and TR T A7 W A R A B
it 6 % ¥ 45 1 registration/ Form of fully paid up Proportion of equity interests and FEEHK
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital voting rights held by the Company Principal activities
st s S i
2020 2019

H#% Il H# il &
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly

ERTRARAT (TER]) i ARAT il - 70% - 0% RETHEEES st
1.226.667# ¢ W HERRE
DYk 2 A
BB LR
B Y8
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Trading, design, sales,
(“Sinogain”) HK$1,226,667 repairs and maintenance

of gondolas and parapet
railings and access
equipment installation
and maintenance

services
RERBRAERAR & HRAT LAk - 100% = 100% GHARLES
10,0001 ¢
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Gondolas rental
HK$10,000
REEEE HHRAA Fik HRAH T A - 100% - 100%  H 8 R 7
10,000 72
Skyway Transport & Trading Company Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Provision of
Limited HK$10,000 transportation
services
REBEARAT PR AR ARAT L@ERAIET 100% - 100% - fEER
Starry Lake Investments Limited BVI Limited Company Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
RERBA R KRERARE AR TEBA100% T 100% - 100% - REER
Talent Gain International Limited BVI Limited Company ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding
FEARAT AR AIRAT LERA1005% 100% - 100% - fEER
Up Billion Limited BVI Limited Company Ordinary US$100 Investment holding
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49. A 2 ) F R 2§ R

49.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

(#1) SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
REMRAL/
AL/ B CHITR
Place of EA B A&
incorporation/ B Issued and AR A B A S L
it 6 % ¥ 45 1 registration/ Form of fully paid up Proportion of equity interests and FEEHK
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital voting rights held by the Company Principal activities
e Jue 42 “E-nE
2020 2019
H#% Il H# fif &
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
HEEARAR PR AR ARAH S § 1 ZSESH 100% - 100% - HEHE
Upright Victory Limited BVI Limited Company Ordinary US$1 Securities investment
WLS (BVI) Limited KRERARE AR e 100% - 100% - REER
38,510% 7T
BVI Limited Company Ordinary Investment holding
US$38,510
MR R A KRR RS ARAR TER AT 100% - 100% - RERR
World Lion Global Limited BVI Limited Company Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
ERTEEEARAR ik AR e - 100% - 100%  REEHSOHRE
10,0001 7C
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Provision of management
HK$10,000 contracting services
TR CRM) TRAERAHA iy A ifilies - 96% = 9% HRERER
25,0001 7t
WLS (Macau) Engineering Company Macau Limited Company Ordinary Scaffolding works
Limited MOP25,000 business
TERE R A TR 22 ] i AR e - 100% = 100% G ALRH A By
100,000 72
Wui Loong Consultancy Company Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Provision of consultancy
Limited HKS$100,000 services
e B ARAH e - 100% - 100%  HERE
100,000 ¢
WL Holdings Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Property holding
HK$100,000
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49. A 2wl Z & 2§ o 49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
(#0) SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
aE ML/
GLVE & k] CHITR
Place of EA B RA
incorporation/ HREL Issued and TR T A7 W A R A B
it 6 % ¥ 45 1 registration/ Form of fully paid up Proportion of equity interests and FEEHK
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital voting rights held by the Company Principal activities
R e
2020 2019

H#% Il H& il &
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly

TR (7l ) WA R/ Fik ARAH L@RAET - 100% - - MR
Wui Loong (H.K.) Scaffolding Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary HK$2 Scaffolding works
Works Company Limited business
T A R 7 i AR ik - 100% = 100% SREEHRE
10,0007 2
Wui Loong Resources Limited Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Provision of management
HK$10,000 services
TEREM A R 7 i AR TiE AT - 100% = 100% MR & ER
B
IR (M)
1,900,000 ¢
Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company ~ Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary HK$2 Scaffolding works
Limited Non-voting business
deferred (Note)
HK$1,900,000
ERERGWEARAR Fik ARAT LS - 100% = 100% AR AR E R
100,000 1T
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Company Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Scaffolding works
Limited HK$100,000 business
TR AR T ik AIRAT e - 100% - 100% FEEEHEE
100,000% ¢
Wui Luen Engineering Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited Company Ordinary Fitting out business
HK$100,000
BRF T 4% SRR GE R Fr A N ERE A IS - MEAE Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend
T B HROK & B b R I A T or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return
2 B 8] & 4 vp A28 A2 AT 0] R AR A (ME S bl of capital in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after
TE M 43 R T AR A 8 iR A A 1,000,000 the sum of HK$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
TR IO 2 G 1 — 2B A BR IR AL o shares of the Company in such winding-up).

I E PN 2 PN S The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion

B E R TR A 2 AN FD M R S E e of the Directors, materially affected the results of the Group or formed a
T 0 5 4 A B B A ) 2 B I S R e substantial portion of the net assets. To give details of other subsidiaries
W TR - would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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50, EA ERJEEERESAE 2 JE 50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY-OWNED
EEMB AW ZEE SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

FRBHEEERIFLERME S 2 AL L The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
o s m) 2 REA that have material non-controlling interests:

12 I W 4 £ B2 1 ST TP e 2 2

A 3 5 HE 2 % B 57 L il R/ () B
EX 3 -£41 Proportion of ownership Total comprehensive Rt e b 4
I 2 W) 44 B Place of incorporation and  interests and voting rights held expense/(income) attributable Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business by non-controlling interests to non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
CRIFRE ZZUE ZRIRE ZEFUE ZFIERE ZFNE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

T Tt T Tt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000

fos il 49% 49% 1,868 3,988 60,641 4,773
Sense Key Hong Kong
A & 30% 30% 3 9) 6,639 6,636
Sinogain Hong Kong

A A B AT A7 A B O OJE R A Y — W) R Summarised financial information in respect of a material subsidiary of
T B B 2 R 0 B S S S R AR A R o DT B AR the Group that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
N S Ve S TN i a1 e The summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intra-group eliminations.
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50. A O IR BB A 2 JF 50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY-OWNED
EEME A A Z W w0 SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

FRER G LRERA R AT Sense Key Design Holdings Limited

ZEORE —E -4
2020 2019
T# T TH# T
HK$’000 HK$’000
IE B K Non-current assets 210 360
it B Current assets 3,303 4,717
I B £ K Current liabilities (17,067) (14,818)
EN/NCIES PNy E Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company (6,913) (4,968)
I 7= B AE Non-controlling interests (6,641) (4,773)
A Revenue 9,697 19,175
X Expenses (13,509) (27,314)
AF B s 48 S A T S S AL AR Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (3,812) (8,139)
DA A REAL E s 15 K Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year
A2 TH K KRR attributable to:
EN/NEIEREEDN Owners of the Company (1,944) (4,151)
IE P I RE 2 Non-controlling interests (1,868) (3,988)
3,812) (8,139)
A8 BT B AR AR Net cash used in operating activities (1,496) (8,222)
E BT B4 i A Net cash used in investing activities - (15)
Pl S T A B TR Net cash generated from financing activities 1,397 7,830
B4 U A Net cash outflow (99) (407)

51. Wi HIE

20195 MR B MR A —F R —
JE A BROK AT o A 48 B 0F 2% V) B 4% K REA
FoE A 8 0 0T A 1T BT T 00 TE 7 4 MG DA 4%
AR B2 [ 1 B SR T M A 4 3 8 TR T 2
B 5 28 o FE 3201956 1R i 25 05 4 55 1% 7 48 30
Ty 3 2 Tl 458 U B B AN A e AR S 1 0D R T R
A AR E R T AR R AR Ik #E %
Tis Rl IR A T RE DR I 7 R R o A 4 ) O 4 A
BN AL > A0 AE H AR B AR S M

%o

51. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The outbreak of COVID-19 has grown into a global pandemic during the first
quarter of 2020. The Group is closely monitoring and evaluating its potential
impact, and is taking precautionary and necessary measures to mitigate its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the Group. The
outbreak of COVID-19 is expected to have at least, a short-term negative
impact on the global economic environment which in turn, is likely to affect
the Group’s revenue and profit in the first half of 2020. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the change of situation and make timely response and
adjustments in the future.

BRSO ER A A A B kR B A
P 7 A HL At T R ) 4% R O -

Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have other significant subsequent
event as at the date of this financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B RESULTS
BEWA=1HIREE
Year ended 30 April
SEORE F-NUE ZF-)MEE F—LE DF-ARE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
T T T SRP ARV T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
(&E )
(restated)
RERE Continuing operations
i 35 Revenue 139,516 179,503 152,175 185,633 155,451
B4 B A Cost of sales (80,759) (119,351) (98,813) (138,499) (131,633)
EF Gross profit 58,757 60,152 53,362 47,134 23,818
HAt g A Other income 2,215 1,898 3,462 12,456 4,203
HAbd #5 K (F5H) Other gains and (losses) (78,194) (30,401) (108,401) 923 3,412
B RATEE Operating and administrative
expenses (43,996) (41,000) (75,693) (70,811) (34,975)
BEYEZ N TE Fair value gain and (losses) on
g5 e (5 4E) investment properties (8,080) 410 12,000 4,350 (9,880)
TR IIRE 2 3P (E 5 B Change in fair value of call option - = = = (1,641)
B3 B S Gain on disposal of
14 U it property, plant and equipment 81 80 584 853 81
AT R Impairment losses recognised
w8 2 W8 fE i 18 in respect of goodwill and
intangible asset (34,954) (32,666) - - -
thE—HITE /AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
i 45 - = = 2,309 202
VES VT Loss on disposal and write-off of
2 W TR i 1R property, plant and equipment (25) (28) (1,190) (1,592) (8)
& A Finance costs (9,795) (8,565) (6,593) (5,232) (2,230)
MEAG B 2% /N @) 2 2645 Share of results of associates - - - 176 206
I 8 1 M 4 Loss before taxation (113,991) (50,120) (122,469) (9,434) (16,812)
B IH Taxation 8,986 (463) (257) (5,211) (5,689)
AR BE e R Loss for the year (105,005) (50,583) (122,726) (14,645) (22,501)
& KA ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RMA=+H
At 30 April
ZERFE ZEZ-UF ZF-NFE ZF-LF  ZE-AF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
T P P AP RRCPI
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Mg E Total assets 732,119 798,250 928,494 952,711 882,288
MER Total liabilities (207,770) (163,620) (218,045) (170,454) (86,101)
524,349 634,630 710,449 782,257 796,187
VN/NGIEE YN Equity attributable to the owners
JRE A HE 45 of the Company 537,629 646,039 727,256 786,126 801,365
I HE R 25 Non-controlling interests (13,280) (11,409) (16,807) (3,869) (5,178)
524,349 634,630 710,449 782,257 796,187
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTIES

R R EEMNHA=THZ®RE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 30 APRIL 2020
LE S

1B 40 8 4 1 A
(CEFR) A4 M A
Approximate VA MR RE4i A 4 L
LB Jjifz saleable area Vacant Held Percentage of the
Description Use (square feet) Status under Group’s interest

&k 7 1,756 HiAH RUMHE 100%
B 115E Commercial Rented Long term lease
T B 5 A R 102123 %
(FF U7 4 B 423%5%)
Unit 21-23 on 10/F,
Tower A, Southmark,
No. 11 Yip Hing Street,
Hong Kong
(Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 423)

2) i i 1 2,285 kil RHE 100%
EWAE115% Commercial Not rented Long term lease
I S 5 A 101812527 %
(s 17 M Bea23 k)
Unit 25-27 on 10/F,
Tower A, Southmark,
No. 11 Yip Hing Street,
Hong Kong
(Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 423)
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